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GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT

CL>X

CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(“Issuer” / “Company”)

A private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and validly existing under the
Companies Act, 2013.
General Information Document for issue of Non-Convertible Securities on a private placement basis dated:
25t October 2023

ISSUE OF SENIOR / UNSUBORDINATED / SUBORDINATED, SECURED / UNSECURED, RATED,
LISTED, PRINCIPAL PROTECTED OR NOT, MARKET LINKED OR NOT, GREEN DEBT SECURITIES
OR NOT, NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES AGGREGATING FOR AN AMOUNT AS SHALL BE MORE
PARTICULARLY SET OUT IN THE KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT, IN MULTIPLE TRANCHES /
ISSUANCES, FOR CASH, AT PAR OR AT PREMIUM OR AT DISCOUNT, EITHER FULLY PAID
ISSUANCE OR PARTLY PAID ISSUANCE, IN A DEMATERIALISED FORM ON A PRIVATE
PLACEMENT BASIS (THE “ISSUE”) BY CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (THE
“COMPANY”) OR (“ISSUER?”).

PART A: DISCLOSURES AS PER SEBI NCS Regulations:

** Please refer pages 1-4 for all information required to be placed on the front page of a General Information
Document as per Schedule | of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (as amended from time to time).

Please see below the disclosures as required under the terms of the SEBI NCS Regulations (as defined below):
The below disclosures as set out in this General Information Document shall be valid and applicable unless
otherwise modified in the respective Key Information Document as shall be issued by the Issuer from time to
time.

This General Information Document is valid for a period of 1 (one) year.

Relevant Disclosure
U65929DL1994PTC116256

Particulars

1. Corporate Identity
Number of the Issuer:

2. Permanent Account | AAACC0642F

Number of the Issuer:

3. Date and place of | Date of incorporation: February 11, 1994
Incorporation of the | Place of incorporation: New Delhi, India
Issuer:

4. Latest registration /| 116256

identification number
issued by any
regulatory authority
which regulates the
Issuer (in this case the
RBI):

5. Registered Office

RBI License No.B-14.02950

Plot No. 23, 5% Floor, Aggarwal Corporate Tower Govind Lal Sikka

address of the Issuer:

Marg, Rajendra Place, New Delhi - 110008, India, India.

Corporate Office
address of the Issuer:

901 B, 9th Floor, Two Horizon Centre, DLF Phase-5, Gurugram -
122002, Haryana, India
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Particulars Relevant Disclosure
7. Telephone No of the 0120 646 5400
Issuer:
8. Details of Compliance | Name: Ms. Vinu Rajat Kalra

officer of the Issuer: | 1\ hone Number: 0120 646 5400

Email address: clix.listing@clix-capital.com

9. Details of Company Name: Ms. Vinu Rajat Kalra
Secretary of the i
Issuer: Telephone Number: 0120 646 5400
Email address: clix.listing@clix-capital.com
10. Details of Chief Name: Mr. Gagan Aggarwal

Financial Officer of

the Issuer: Telephone Number: 0120 646 5400

Email address: clix.listing@clix-capital.com

11. Details of Promoters Name: Plutus Financials Private Limited
of the Issuer: Telephone Number: 0120 646 5400

Email address: clix.listing@clix-capital.com

12. Website address of www.clix.capital
the Issuer:
13. Email address of the clix.listing@clix-capital.com
Issuer:
14. Details of debenture Name: Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

trustee for the Issue: Address: GDA House, Plot no.85, Bhusari Colony, Paud Road, Pune —

411038, Maharashtra

Logo:

Telephone Number: +91 (20) 66807200

Email address: ComplianceCTL-Mumbai@ctltrustee.com
Contact person: Mr. Umesh Salvi, Managing Director

Or such other Debenture Trustee as shall be set out in the respective
Key Information Document.

15. Details of credit | Name: CARE Ratings Limited
Rating Agent for the
Issue:

Address: 13t Floor, E-1 Block, Videocon Tower, Jhandewalan
Extension, New Delhi - 110055

F_a!'_e —dlge
Logo:
Telephone Number: 011- 4533 3209; 45333200 (Board)

Email address: Gaurav.Dixit@careratings.com

Contact person: Mr. Gaurav Dixit

Or such other Rating Agent as shall be set out in the respective Key
Information Document.
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Particulars Relevant Disclosure
16. Disclosure of filing Given this is a private placement of non-convertible securities, there
shall be no requirement of filing the same with the Registrar of
Companies pursuant to the Section 26(4) of the Act.
17. Date of General | 25" October 2023
Information Document This General Information Document is valid for a period of 1 (one) year
from the first issue opening date.
18. Type of General | This General Information Document is being issued in relation to the
Information Document | private placement basis of Non-Convertible Securities.
19. The nature, number, | Base Issue: Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document
price and amount of s . .
securities offered and Green Shoe: Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document
issue size (base issue
or green shoe), as may
be applicable
20. The aggregate amount | Not applicable.
proposed to be raised
through all the stages
of offers of non-
convertible securities
made through the
General Information
Document (applicable
only in case of public
issuance);
21. Details of Registrar to | Name: Link Intime Private Limited
the Issue: .
Address: C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai,
Maharashtra, 400083
LIMK INTIME
Logo: .
Telephone Number: 022 4918 6000
Email address: mumbai@linkintime.co.in
Contact person: Mr. Amit Dabhade
Or such other Registrar as shall be set out in the respective Key
Information Document.
22. Legal Counsel Name: Juris Corp, Advocates & Solicitors
Juris Corp
Logo: advocries B =l
Contact Person: Partner, Securities
Address: 302, Century Bhavan, 3 Floor,
Dr Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400 030, India
Email: securities@jclex.com
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Particulars Relevant Disclosure

Tel: 022 6720 5555
Website: www.jclex.com

Or such other Legal Counsel as shall be set out in the respective Key
Information Document.

23. Statutory Auditor

- .
"y ‘

| A 3 f‘""f. .,
D aliidy yai LU
Name: Brahamaya & Co
(ICAI Firm Registration No. 000511S)

Address: Ground Floor, DLF Plaza Tower, Qutub Enclave, Block B,
Ground Floor, DLF Plaza Tower, Qutub Enclave, Block B,

Website: www. brahmayya.com

Email address: mail@brahmayya.com
Telephone Number: 0124 - 4235522
Contact Person: Mr. N Venkata Suneel

Peer review certificate no.: 012700

(A copy of the same is attached in Annexure X of this General
Information Document)

Or such other Statutory Auditor as shall be set out in the respective Key
Information Document.

24. Issue Schedule Date of opening of the Issue: As set out in the respective Key
Information Document

Date of closing of the Issue: As set out in the respective Key
Information Document

Date of earliest closing of the Issue (if any): As set out in the
respective Key Information Document

This General Information Document shall be issued as on 25" October
2023 and shall be valid for a period of 1 (one) year from the first issue
opening date under this General Information Document.

25. Credit Rating of the | The Rating Agent has vide its letter dated October 13, 2023 and rating
Issue rationale and its press release dated June 27, 2023 assigned a rating of
“A (Stable)” (pronounced as “A stable”) in respect of the Debentures.
Please refer to Annexure Il of this General Information Document for
the credit rating letter and rating rationale received from the Rating
Agent assigning the credit rating abovementioned and the press release
by the Rating Agent in this respect.

Link for the press release:
https://www.careratings.com/upload/CompanyFiles/PR/202306060752
CLIX Capital Services Private Limited.pdf

Or such other rating as shall be assigned from time to time and as shall
be set out in the respective Key Information Document.

26. All the ratings | Please refer to S.no 25 (Credit Rating of the Issue) above.
obtained for the
private placement of
Issue
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Particulars Relevant Disclosure

27. The name(s) of the | The Non-Convertible Securities are proposed to be listed on the
stock exchanges | wholesale debt market of the BSE Limited (“BSE”) and / or National
where the securities | Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE”).
are proposefl to be Please refer to Annexure VI (In-Principle approval received from NSE)
listed, subject to ) . : e
change gf _thls Ger]eral Information Document for the in-principle approval for

listing obtained from NSE).

NSE shall be the ‘Designated Stock Exchange’ for the purpose of
maintenance of the recovery expense fund prescribed by
SEBI under the SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular, as may be amended
from time to time.

28. The details about | As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
eligible investors; Document.

29. Coupon rate, coupon | As specified in the respective Key Information Document.
payment_ frequency, The details of Debenture Trustee are provided under S. No. 14 of this
redemption date,

. table above.
redemption amount
and details of
debenture trustee

30. Nature and issue size, | Issue Size - Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document
base issue and green . . . .
shoe option, if any, E)if;enﬂ::?e Size - As set out in the respective Key Information
shelf or tranche size, u '
each as may be | Green shoe option - As set out in the respective Key Information
applicable Document.

31. Details about | Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document
underwriting of the
issue including the
amount undertaken to
be underwritten by the
underwriters:

32. Inclusion of a | The final subscription to the Non-Convertible Securities shall be made
compliance clause in | by the Eligible Investors through the electronic book mechanism as
relation to electronic | prescribed by SEBI under the EBP Guidelines by placing bids on the
book mechanism and | electronic book platform during the Issue period. In case the Eligible
details pertaining to | Investors are not registered on the EBP, they will have to register
the uploading the | themselves as investor on the said platform (as a one-time exercise) and
General Information | also complete the mandatory KYC verification process. The Eligible
Document on the | Investors should also refer to the operational guidelines of the EBP in
Electronic Book | this respect. The disclosures required pursuant to the EBP Guidelines
Provider Platform, if | are set out hereinbelow:
applicable.

Details of size of the lIssue | Total Issue size of Issue: Kindly
including green shoe option, if | refer to the respective Key
any Information Document
Bid opening and closing date Bid opening date: Kindly refer to
the respective Key Information
Document.
Bid closing date: Kindly refer to the
respective Key Information
Document
5
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Particulars Relevant Disclosure

Minimum Bid lot Kindly refer to the respective Key
Information Document

Manner of bidding in the Issue Kindly refer to the respective Key
Information Document

Manner of allotment in the Issue | Kindly refer to the respective Key
Information Document

Manner of settlement in the | Kindly refer to the respective Key

Issue Information Document
Settlement cycle T+1, where T refers to the date of
bid opening date / issue opening
date
33. Specific declaration | Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document

requested by BSE:
non-equity regulatory
capital

Background

This General Information Document (as defined below) is related to the issue of senior / unsubordinated /
subordinated, secured / unsecured, rated, listed, non-convertible securities to be issued in multiple
tranches/issuances, secured/unsecured, principal protected or not, market linked or not,
redeemable/perpetual, green debt securities or not, for cash at par or at premium or at discount, either fully
paid issuance or partly paid issuance, in a dematerialised form on a private placement basis by Clix Capital
Services Private Limited (the “Issuer” or “Company”) and contains relevant information and disclosures
required for the purpose of issuing of the Non-Convertible Securities. The issue of the Non-Convertible
Securities comprised in the Issue and described under this General Information Document shall be
authorised by the Issuer through resolutions of the shareholders of the Issuer and the Board of Directors of
the Issuer, the details of which shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information Document
and has been authorised by the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The details of the
corporate authorizations i.e. the resolution passed by the board of directors of the Issuer and the resolution
passed by the shareholders of the Issuer shall be set out in each of the relevant Key Information Document
that shall be issued by the Company from time to time for the purpose of issuance of the Non-Convertible
Securities. The Issuer shall ensure that at all times, such relevant issuance of the Non-Convertible Securities
shall be within the limits as shall be prescribed in such relevant resolution.

THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT IS NEITHER A PROSPECTUS NOR A STATEMENT IN
LIEU OF A PROSPECTUS AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO THE PUBLIC GENERALLY
TO SUBSCRIBE FOR OR OTHERWISE ACQUIRE THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES TO BE
ISSUED UNDER THE ISSUE.

THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT IS PREPARED AND ISSUED IN CONFORMITY WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE AND LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES) REGULATIONS, 2021, ISSUED VIDE NOTIFICATION NUMBER SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2021/
39 DATED 09™ AUGUST 2021, AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, READ WITH THE CIRCULARS
ISSUED THEREUNDER; THE MASTER CIRCULAR FOR ISSUE AND LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES, SECURITISED DEBT INSTRUMENTS, SECURITY RECEIPTS, MUNICIPAL DEBT
SECURITIES AND COMMERCIAL PAPER ISSUED BY SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF
INDIA, ISSUED VIDE CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/119 DATED 10™ AUGUST,
2021, AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER CUM APPLICATION
LETTER PURSUANT TO SECTION 42 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 14 OF THE
COMPANIES (PROSPECTUS AND ALLOTMENT OF SECURITIES) RULES, 2014 AND PURSUANT TO
SECTION 71 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 18 OF THE COMPANIES (SHARE
CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES) RULES, 2014 (AS APPLICABLE) FOR ISSUE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS.
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Wilful Defaulters

The Issuer, its directors and promoters have not been declared as a wilful defaulter by RBI or any
other authority. Please refer to Section 6 (Disclosures pertaining to wilful defaulters) for the
disclosures pertaining to wilful default.

Issuer’s Absolute Responsibility

The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this
General Information Document contains all information with regard to the Issuer and the Issue which
is material in the context of the Issue, that the information contained in the General Information
Document is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading, that the opinions and
intentions expressed herein are honestly stated and that there are no other facts, the omission of
which make this document as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such
opinions or intentions misleading.

Particulars Date

Validity period of the General Information | From 25" October 2023 to 24t October 2024
Document

Issue Opening Date Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document
Issue Closing Date Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document
Pay In Date Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document
Deemed Date of Allotment Kindly refer to the respective Key Information Document

GENERAL RISK

INVESTMENT IN THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES INVOLVES A DEGREE OF RISK AND
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THIS ISSUE UNLESS THEY CAN
AFFORD TO TAKE THE RISK OF LOSING THEIR INVESTMENT AND SUCH RISKS AS ATTACHED TO
SUCH INVESTMENTS. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO MAKE AN INFORMED DECISION
AND TO READ SECTION 3 (RISK FACTORS) OF THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT
CAREFULLY BEFORE TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION IN THIS ISSUE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES. FOR THE PURPOSES OF TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, PROSPECTIVE
INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER, THE ISSUE, THE GENERAL
INFORMATION DOCUMENT AND THE KEY INFORMATION DOCUMENT TO BE ISSUED FROM TIME TO
TOME INCLUDING THE RISKS INVOLVED IN IT. SPECIFIC ATTENTION OF THE PROSPECTIVE
INVESTORS IS INVITED TO THE STATEMENT OF RISK FACTORS CONTAINED UNDER SECTION 3
(RISK FACTORS) OF THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT. THESE RISKS ARE NOT, AND ARE
NOT INTENDED TO BE, A COMPLETE LIST OF ALL RISKS AND CONSIDERATIONS RELEVANT TO THE
NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES OR PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR’S DECISION TO PURCHASE SUCH
NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN LEGAL, REGULATORY, TAX, FINANCIAL
AND/OR ACCOUNTING ADVISORS ABOUT RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT IN SUCH NON-
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES AND THE SUITABILITY OF INVESTING IN SUCH NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES IN LIGHT OF THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES.

THE ISSUE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES HAS NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (“SEBI”) NOT DOES SEBI GUARANTEE THE
ACCURACY AND ADEQUACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

The Non-Convertible Securities are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt market of the BSE and / or
NSE. The Issuer has obtained an in-principle approval from NSE on October 19, 2023.

Public & Non Confidential Information



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: 25th October 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

The Issuer, with prior notice to the Debenture Trustee, may get the Non-Convertible Securities listed on other
material stock exchanges as it deems fit. The Issuer shall comply with the requirements of the listing
agreement to the extent applicable to it on a continuous basis.
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires or unless a different meaning is provided to it in
the respective Key Information Document or the relevant Transaction Document, the following terms
shall have the meanings given below in this General Information Document.

Act means the Companies Act 2013 and includes any rules, circulars,
notifications and orders framed/ issued thereunder and any statutory
modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereof or of such rules,
circulars, notifications, orders, as issued from time to time.

Allot/Allotment/Allotted The allotment of the Non-Convertible Securities pursuant to this Issue.
Applicable Accounting shall mean (a) until the adoption of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-
Standards AS) in accordance with Applicable Law, generally accepted

accounting principles in India, and (b) thereafter, Indian Accounting
Standards, in each case as amended, supplemented or re-issued from
time to time, applied on a consistent basis both as to amounts and to
classification of items.

Applicable Law shall mean any statute, national, state, provincial, local, municipal or
other law, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, order, decree,
byelaws, approval of Governmental Authority, directives, guidelines,
policy requirement, circulars or other governmental restriction or any
similar form of decision of or determination by, or any interpretation or
administration having the force of law in India of any of the foregoing
by Governmental Authority in India.

Applicant means a Person who is eligible to invest in the Non-Convertible
Securities and has submitted / will be submitting an Application for
subscribing to the Non-Convertible Securities in accordance with the
terms of the General Information Document and other Transaction
Documents.

Application Form means an application for subscribing to the Non-Convertible
Securities, which is in the form annexed to this General Information
Document and marked as Annexure IV.

Application Monies means money paid or payable by an Applicant on its Application for
subscription to the Non-Convertible Securities.

Assets means, for any date of determination, the assets of the Issuer on such
date as the same would be determined in accordance with the
Applicable Accounting Standards.

Beneficial means the Persons who are, for the time being, and from time to time,
Owner(s)/Debenture and who will become the owners of the Tranches/Issuances of the
Holder(s) Non-Convertible Securities in electronic (dematerialized) form, and

whose names appear in the list of the beneficial owner(s)/register of
beneficial owners(s) prepared, held and given by the Depository and
shall mean the Secured Debenture Holders and/or the Unsecured
Debenture Holders and/ or such other holders of the Non-Convertible
Security, as may be contextually applicable, and “Beneficial Owner”
means each such Person and includes their respective successors/
transferees and assigns.

Board / Board of The Board of Directors of the Issuer for the time being and from time
Directors to time.
BSE means the BSE Limited.
Business Day As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited.
10
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CERSAI means the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and
Security Interest.
Client Loan means each loan disbursed by the Issuer as a lender and “Client

Loans” shall construed accordingly.

Company/Issuer

shall mean Clix Capital Services Private Limited, a company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
validly existing under the Companies Act 2013 and registered with the
Reserve Bank of India as a non-deposit taking systemically important
non-banking finance company with corporate identification number
U65929DL1994PTC116256 and having its registered office at Plot No.
23, 5th Floor, Aggarwal Corporate Tower Govind Lal Sikka Marg,
Rajendra Place, New Delhi - 110008, India, India.

Conditions Precedent

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Conditions Subsequent

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Constitutional means the certificate of incorporation of the Issuer, the memorandum
Documents / Charter of association and articles of association of the Issuer and the
Documents certificate of registration issued by the RBI to the Issuer.

Control shall mean right to appoint majority of the directors or to control the

management or policy decisions by a person or persons acting
individually or in concert, directly or indirectly, including by virtue of
their shareholding or management rights or shareholders agreements
or voting agreements or in any other manner.

Debenture Obligations

means all financial obligations of the Company at all times owing to
the Debenture Trustee or to the Debenture Holders in respect of the
Debentures, the Debenture Trust Deed and / or any other Transaction
Document and shall include the obligations to redeem the Debentures
in terms thereof together with the principal amounts, Coupon and the
Default Interest (if applicable), accrued thereon, any outstanding
remuneration and all fees, costs, charges and expenses payable to
the Debenture Trustee, any indemnification payments to the
Debenture Trustee and all other monies payable by the Company in
respect of the Debentures under the Transaction Documents to which
the Company is a party and all other present and future financial
obligations and liabilities of the Company under the Transaction
Documents to which the Company is a party.

Debenture Trust Deed

means each of the trust deed to be executed by and between the
Debenture Trustee and the Issuer which will set out the terms upon
which the respective Tranche/lssuance of the Debentures are being
issued and shall include the representations and warranties and the
covenants to be provided by the Issuer.

Debenture Trustee

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited or such other debenture trustee
appointed for respective Tranche/lssuance of the Debentures as more
particularly mentioned in the respective Debenture Trustee
Agreement.

Debenture Trustee
Agreement

means each of the agreement executed / to be executed by and
between the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer for the purposes of
appointment of the Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee in
connection with the issuance of the respective Tranche/lssuance of
the Debentures.

Debenture Trustees
Regulations

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture
Trustees) Regulations, 1993.

11
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Debentures

Listed, rated, redeemable or perpetual, secured or unsecured, senior
/ unsubordinated / subordinated, principal protected or not, market
linked or not, green debt securities or not, non-convertible debentures
to be issued by the Company on a private placement basis or green
debt securities or not) having either zero coupon or Coupon as set out
in the relevant Key Information Document or redemption premium or
redemption discount, or whose Coupon is linked to the performance of
the reference index etc.) as more particularly set out in the Key
Information Document and shall be collectively referred to as the
Secured Debentures or Unsecured Debentures (as applicable).

Deed of Corporate
Guarantee

shall mean each of the deed of corporate guarantee dated on or
around the date of the issuance of Tranche / Issuance of the
Debentures (if applicable) to be executed by the Guarantor in favor of
the Debenture Trustee for the relevant Tranche/lssuance of the
Debentures, to the extent applicable.

Deed of Personal
Guarantee

shall mean each of the deed of personal guarantee dated on or around
the date of the issuance of Tranche / Issuance of the Debentures (if
applicable) to be executed by the Guarantor in favor of the Debenture
Trustee for the relevant Tranche/lssuance of the Debentures, to the
extent applicable.

Deed of Hypothecation

shall mean each of the deed of hypothecation dated on or around the
date of the relevant Tranche / Issuance of the Debentures (if
applicable) to create a charge over the Hypothecated Assets for the
respective Tranche/lssuance of Debentures, to be executed between
the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee to secure the Debenture
Obligations in relation to the respective Tranche/lssuance of the
Secured Debentures.

Deemed Date of

shall mean the date on which the Debentures shall have been deemed

Allotment to be allotted to the Debenture Holders — as mentioned in detail in the
respective Key Information Document.
Demat means dematerialized securities which are securities that are in

electronic form, and not in physical form, with the entries noted by the
Depository.

Depositories

means the depositories with which the Issuer has made arrangements
for dematerialising the Non-Convertible Securities, being NSDL and
CDSL.

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time

Depository Participant /
DP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

Designated Stock
Exchange

The stock exchange designated by the Issuer under the General
Information Document being NSE for the purposes of maintaining the
recovery expense fund in terms of Regulation 11 of the SEBI NCS
Regulations read with SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular.

Director(s)

Director(s) of the Issuer.

DP ID Depository Participant Identification Number.
DRR has the meaning given to it in Section 5.36(a)
Due Date means the date on which any interest or liquidated damages, any

Redemption Payment or premature redemption amount and/or any
other amounts payable, are due and payable, including but not limited
to each of Redemption Dates, and any other date on which any
payment is to be made by the Issuer under the respective Transaction
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Documents.

EBP Guidelines

The guidelines issued by SEBI with respect to electronic book
mechanism under the terms of the SEBI Master Circular and the
operational guidelines issued by the relevant Electronic Book Provider,
as may be amended, clarified or updated from time to time.

EFT

Electronic Fund Transfer

Electronic Book
Provider/ EBP

Shall have the meaning assigned to such term under the EBP
Guidelines.

Eligible Investors

As set out in the respective Key Information Document, if applicable.

Events of Default

As set out in the respective Key Information Document.

Final Redemption Date

With respect to any Tranche / Issuance shall mean the date on which
repayment of Redemption Payment together with all other Debenture
Obligations in respect of that Tranche / Issuance will be made and
shall be as specified in the relevant Key Information Document issued
for such Tranche / Issuance.

Final Settlement Date

means the date on which all Debenture Obligations have been
irrevocably and unconditionally paid and discharged in full to the
satisfaction of the Debenture Holders

Financial Indebtedness

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

Financial Statements

means in relation to a company, its audited financial statements (on a
consolidated and non-consolidated basis) for a Financial Year.

Financial Year End Date

shall mean 315t March of each year

Financial Year/ FY

means each period of 12 (twelve) months commencing on April 1 of
any calendar year and ending on March 31 of the subsequent calendar
year.

Form PAS-3 The return of allotment required to be filed by the Issuer pursuant to
the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014
relating to the Non-Convertible Securities.

Form PAS-5 The record of private placement maintained by the Issuer pursuant to

the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014
relating to the Non-Convertible Securities.

General Information
Document

means this General Information Document issued by the Issuer for the
issue of the Non-Convertible Securities on a private placement basis
in accordance with Applicable Laws.

Governmental Authority

means any government (central, state or otherwise) or any
governmental agency, semi-governmental or judicial or quasi-judicial
or administrative entity, department or authority, agency or authority
including any stock exchange or any self-regulatory organization,
established under any Applicable Law.

Group Entities

means and refers to the subsidiaries of the Issuer, associate
companies (as defined under the Act) of the Issuer, and the entities
under Control of the Issuer, from time to time, and "Group Entity" shall
mean anyone of them.

Guarantor

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document, if applicable.

Hypothecated Assets

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document, if applicable.

Hypothecated Assets

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
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Report

Document, if applicable.

Interest Payment Dates

means the payment dates as specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Interest Rate/Coupon
Rate

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Issue

means the private placement of the Non-Convertible Securities.

Issue Closing Date

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Issue Opening Date

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Key Information
Document

The Key Information Document to be issued by the Issuer in respect
of each Tranche / Issuance containing inter alia the issue price,
Tranche / Issuance size, interest / coupon (if any), redemption
premium (if any), any material change to the disclosures and other
terms and conditions vis-a-vis the General Information Document for
that Tranche / Issuance of Non-Convertible Securities issued under
the Issue. The Company shall be free to amend the format of Key
Information Document depending upon the terms and conditions of the
Non-Convertible Securities being issued in each Tranche / Issuance.

Listing Period

has the meaning given to it in Section 5.38 (/ssue Details).

LODR Regulations

means the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended,
modified or restated from time to time.

Majority Debenture

Holders

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Majority Resolution

means a resolution approved by the Majority Debenture Holders who
are present and voting or if a poll is demanded, by the Majority
Debenture Holders who are present and voting in such poll.

NA

Not Applicable

NBFC

Non-banking financial company

NBFC Directions

means the Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023 (as
amended, modified or restated from time to time) as may be
applicable read together with the RBI's circular no. DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on
"Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards" (as amended,
modified or restated from time to time).

Net Worth

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

Non-Convertible

means the Debentures and / or perpetual debt instruments and/or

Securities other securities as specified by SEBI and under the Applicable Law.
NSDL National Securities Depository Limited
NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Outstanding Amounts

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

Outstanding Face Value

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

PAN

Permanent Account Number

Payment Default

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
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Document.

Person

shall include an individual, natural person, corporation, partnership,
joint venture, incorporated or unincorporated body or association,
company, Government Authority and in case of a company and a body
corporate shall include their respective successors and assigns and in
case of any individual his/her respective legal representative,
administrators, executors and heirs and in case of trust shall include
the trustee(s) for the time being and from time to time. The term
“Persons” shall be construed accordingly.

Private Placement Offer
cum Application

The offer cum application letter prepared in compliance with Section
42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus

Letter/PPOAL and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.
Promoter shall mean Plutus Financials Private Limited
Purpose As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information

Document.

Quarterly Date

means each of March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31
of a calendar year, and "Quarterly Dates" shall be construed
accordingly.

R&T Agent/Registrar

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Rating

As specified in the respective Key Information Document.

Rating Agent

As specified in the respective Key Information Document.

RBI

Reserve Bank of India.

Record Date

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

Recovery Expense
Fund/REF

means the recovery expense fund established/to be established and
maintained by the Issuer in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Circular.

Redemption Date

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

Redemption Payment

As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

Register of Beneficial
Owners

means the register of beneficial owners of the Non-Convertible
Securities maintained in the records of the Depositories

Register of Debenture
Holders

means the register of debenture holders maintained by the Issuer in
accordance with Section 88 of the Act.

Related Party

has the meaning given to it in the Act.

ROC Registrar of Companies.

Rs. /INR Indian National Rupee.

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement.

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (as amended from
time to time).

SEBI Centralized
Database Requirements

means the requirements prescribed in Chapter IV (Centralized
Database for corporate bonds/ debentures) of the SEBI Master
Circular.

SEBI Debenture

shall mean a master circular dated 31t March 2023 issued by SEBI
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Trustees Circular titted “Master Circular for Debenture Trustees”, bearing reference
number SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2023/50 under SEBI (Debenture
Trustee) Regulations, 1993, as amended from time to time.

SEBI ILNCS The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Regulations/ SEBI NCS | Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 together with the SEBI
Regulations Master Circular, as amended from time to time.

SEBI Listing Timelines means the requirements in respect of the timelines for listing of debt
Requirements securities issued on a private placement basis prescribed in Chapter

VIl (Standardization of timelines for listing of securities issued on a
private placement basis) of the SEBI Master Circular.

SEBI Master Circular means the circular issued by SEBI bearing the reference number
SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/119 dated August 10, 2021 on
"Master Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities,
Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt
Securities and Commercial Paper', as amended, modified, or restated
from time to time.

Secured Debenture Holders of the Secured Debentures from time to time.
Holders
Secured Debentures Debentures issued/to be issued by the Company which shall be

secured by creation of charge over the assets of the Company and/or
any other security provider.

Security Cover has the meaning given to it in the Section 5.38 (Issue Details).

Special Resolution means resolution approved by the Special Majority Debenture Holders
who are present and voting or if a poll is demanded, by the Special
Maijority Debenture Holders who are present and voting in such poll.

Stock Exchange shall mean BSE and / or NSE, as the case may be

Stressed Assets means the RBI's circular no. DBR.No.BP.BC.45/21.04.048/2018-19

Framework dated June 7, 2019 on "Prudential Framework for Resolution of
Stressed Assets", as may be amended, modified or restated from time
to time.

Tax shall mean any present or future tax, including but not limited to

indirect taxes such as goods and services tax, service tax, value added
tax or other similar taxes), levy, duty deductions, withholdings,
imposts, cesses, fees or other charge of a similar nature (including any
penalty or interest payable on account of any failure to pay or delay in
paying the same), now or hereafter imposed by Applicable Laws.

Tax Deduction means a deduction or withholding for or on account of Tax from a
payment under the relevant Tranche / Issuance Debenture Trust
Deed.

TDS Tax Deducted at Source.

Terms & Conditions The terms and conditions pertaining to the Issue as outlined in the

Transaction Documents.

Tranche/lssuance Any tranchef/issuance of Non-Convertible Securities issued by the
Issuer from time to time under this General Information Document
pursuant to such terms as set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

Transaction Documents | As shall be more particularly set out in the respective Key Information
Document.

Transaction Security has the meaning given to it in the Section 5.38 (/ssue Details).
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Unsecured Debenture The holders of the Unsecured Debentures from time to time.
Holders

Unsecured Debentures Debentures which are issued/to be issued by the Company which shall
be unsecured.

WDM Wholesale Debt Market segment of the relevant stock exchange.

Wilful Defaulter Shall mean an Issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by any
Bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with
the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and includes an issuer whose director or promoter is categorized as
such.
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SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS
ISSUER’S DISCLAIMER

This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a
prospectus and should not be construed to be a prospectus or a statement in lieu of a
prospectus under the Companies Act. The issue of the Non-Convertible Securities to be
listed on the WDM segment of the BSE and / or NSE is being made strictly on a private
placement basis. Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given
to the same person and shall be treated as such. This General Information Document does
not constitute and shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe to the
Non-Convertible Securities to the public in general.

As per the applicable provisions, it is not necessary for a copy of this General Information
Document to be filed or submitted to the SEBI for its review and/or approval. This General
Information Document has been prepared in conformity with the SEBI NCS Regulations as
amended from time to time and applicable RBI regulations governing private placements of
Non-Convertible Securities by NBFCs. This General Information Document has been
prepared solely to provide general information about the Issuer to Eligible Investors to whom
it is addressed and who are willing and eligible to subscribe to the Non-Convertible Securities.
This General Information Document does not purport to contain all the information that any
Eligible Investor may require. Further, this General Information Document has been prepared
for informational purposes relating to this transaction only and upon the express
understanding that it will be used only for the purposes set forth herein.

Neither this General Information Document nor any other information supplied in connection
with the Non-Convertible Securities is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other
evaluation and any recipient of this General Information Document should not consider such
receipt as a recommendation to subscribe to any Non-Convertible Securities. Each potential
Investor contemplating subscription to any Non-Convertible Securities should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own
appraisal of the creditworthiness of the Issuer. Potential investors should consult their own
financial, legal, tax and other professional advisors as to the risks and investment
considerations arising from an investment in the Non-Convertible Securities and should
possess the appropriate resources to analyze such investment and the suitability of such
investment to such potential Investor’s particular circumstances.

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this General Information Document (including
the documents incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is
material in the context of the Issue and regulatory requirements in relation to the Issue and
is accurate in all such material respects. No person has been authorized to give any
information or to make any representation not contained or incorporated by reference in this
General Information Document or in any material made available by the Issuer to any
potential Investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made, such information or representation
must not be relied upon as having being authorized by the Issuer. The Issuer certifies that
the disclosures made in this General Information Document and/or the Private Placement
Offer cum Application Letter are adequate and in conformity with the SEBI NCS Regulations
and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014. Further, the Issuer
accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in the General Information
Document or any other material issued by or at the instance of the Issuer and anyone placing
reliance on any source of information other than this General Information Document would
be doing so at its own risk.

This General Information Document, the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and
the respective contents hereof respectively, are restricted only for the intended recipient(s)
who have been addressed directly and specifically through a communication by the Issuer
and only such recipients are eligible to apply for the Non-Convertible Securities. All Investors
are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for
investing in this Issue. The contents of this General Information Document and/or the Private
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Placement Offer cum Application Letter are intended to be used only by those Investors to
whom it is distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other person and should not be
reproduced by the recipient.

No invitation is being made to any persons other than those to whom Application Forms along
with this General Information Document and/or Key Information Document and / or the
Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter being issued have been sent. Any application
by a person to whom the General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer
cum Application Letter has not been sent by the Issuer shall be rejected without assigning
any reason.

The person who is in receipt of this General Information Document and/or the Private
Placement Offer cum Application Letter shall not reproduce or distribute in whole or in part
or make any announcement in public or to a third party regarding the contents hereof without
the consent of the Issuer. The recipient agrees to keep confidential all information provided
(or made available hereafter), including, without limitation, the existence and terms of the
Issue, any specific pricing information related to the Issue or the amount or terms of any fees
payable to us or other parties in connection with the Issue. This General Information
Document and/or the Key Information Document and / or the Private Placement Offer cum
Application Letter may not be photocopied, reproduced, or distributed to others at any time
without the prior written consent of the Issuer. Upon request, the recipients will promptly
return all material received from the Issuer (including this General Information Document)
without retaining any copies hereof. If any recipient of this General Information Document
and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter decides not to participate in the
Issue, that recipient must promptly return this General Information Document and/or the
Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter and all reproductions whether in whole or in
part and any other information statement, notice, opinion, memorandum, expression or
forecast made or supplied at any time in relation thereto or received in connection with the
Issue to the Issuer.

The Issuer does not undertake to update the General Information Document and/or the
Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter to reflect subsequent events after the date of
General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter
and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such subsequent events without first
confirming its accuracy with the Issuer, save and except the disclosures that shall be made
in the Key Information Document at the time of subsequent issuances, from time to time.

Neither the delivery of this General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer
cum Application Letter nor any sale of Non-Convertible Securities made hereafter shall,
under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof.

This General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application
Letter does not constitute, nor may it be used for or in connection with, an offer or solicitation
by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. No action is being taken
to permit an offering of the Non-Convertible Securities or the distribution of this General
Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter in any
jurisdiction where such action is required. Persons into whose possession this General
Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter comes are
required to inform themselves of, and to observe, any such restrictions. The General
Information Document is made available to potential Investors in the Issue on the strict
understanding that it is confidential.

This General Information Document is for the exclusive use of the addressee and restricted
for only the intended recipient and it should not be circulated or distributed to third party(ies).
This Issue is made strictly on private placement basis. Apart from this General Information
Document, no offer document or prospectus has been prepared in connection with the
offering of this Issue or in relation to the Issuer.
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It is not necessary for the General Information Document to be registered under Applicable
Laws. Accordingly, this General Information Document has neither been delivered for
registration nor is it intended to be registered.

This General Information Document is intended to be circulated to not exceeding 200 (two
hundred) persons in the aggregate in a financial year. Multiple copies hereof given to the
same entity shall be deemed to be given to the same person and shall be treated as such. It
does not constitute and shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or an invitation to subscribe
to the Non-Convertible Securities to the public in general.

The General Information Document does not include a statement purporting to be made by
an expert. In case any such statement is made, it shall be made by an expert who is not, and
has not been, engaged or interested in the formation or promotion or management, of the
Company and has given his written consent to the issue of the General Information Document
and has not withdrawn such consent before the delivery of a copy of the General Information
Document, as applicable.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

As required, a copy of this General Information Document has been filed with the BSE and /
or NSE in terms of the SEBI NCS Regulations. It is to be distinctly understood that submission
of this General Information Document to the BSE and / or NSE should not in any way be
deemed or construed to mean that this General Information Document has been reviewed,
cleared, or approved by the BSE and / or NSE; nor does the BSE and / or NSE in any manner
warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this
General Information Document, nor does the BSE and / or NSE warrant that the Issuer’s
Non-Convertible Securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the BSE and / or NSE;
nor does the BSE and / or NSE take any responsibility for the soundness of the financial and
other conditions of the Issuer, its promoters, its management or any scheme or project of the
Issuer.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF RBI

The company is having a valid certificate of registration issued by the Reserve Bank of India
under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However, the RBI does not
accept any responsibility or guarantee about the present position as to the financial
soundness of the company or for the correctness of any of the statements or representations
made or opinions expressed by the company and for repayment of deposits/ discharge of
liability by the company.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF THE SEBI NCS REGULATIONS, IT IS NOT STIPULATED
THAT A COPY OF THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT HAS TO BE FILED WITH
OR SUBMITTED TO THE SEBI FOR ITS REVIEW / APPROVAL. IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY
UNDERSTOOD THAT FILING OF THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT TO SEBI
SHOULD NOT IN ANY WAY BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED TO HAVE BEEN APPROVED
OR VETTED BY SEBI AND THAT THIS ISSUE IS NOT RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED
BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT TAKE ANY RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL
SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THE ISSUE IS
PROPOSED TO BE MADE OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE
OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT.

DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION
This Issue is made in India to investors as specified under the paragraph titled “Eligible

Investors” of this General Information Document, who shall be/have been identified upfront
by the Issuer. This General Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum
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Application Letter does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe to Non-
Convertible Securities offered hereby to any person to whom it is not specifically addressed.
Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts
and tribunals as specified in the relevant Key Information Document. This General
Information Document and/or the Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter does not
constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe to the Non-Convertible Securities
herein, in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make an offer or
invitation in such jurisdiction.

DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCY

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew,
disburse or recall the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Rating
Agent has based its ratings on information obtained from sources believed by it to be
accurate and reliable. The Rating Agent does not, however, guarantee the accuracy,
adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible for any errors or
omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities whose
bank facilities/instruments are rated by the Rating Agent have paid a credit rating fee, based
on the amount and type of bank facilities/instruments.

DISCLAIMER OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

(a) The Debenture Trustee or its agents or advisers associated with the Issue do not
undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer during the life of
the arrangements contemplated by this General Information Document and do not
have any responsibility to advise any Investor or prospective Investor in the Non-
Convertible Securities of any information available with or subsequently coming to
the attention of the Debenture Trustee, its agents or advisors except as specifically
provided for in the relevant Tranche/lssuance Debenture Trust Deed.

(b) The Debenture Trustee does not guarantee the terms of payment regarding the issue
as stated in this General Information Document and shall not be held liable for any
default in the same.

(c) The Debenture Trustee or its agents or advisers associated with the Issue have not
separately verified the information contained in this General Information Document.
Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made
and no responsibility is accepted by Debenture Trustee as to the accuracy or any
other information provided by the Issuer. Accordingly, the Debenture Trustee
associated with the issue shall have no liability in relation to the information contained
in this General Information Document or any other information provided by the Issuer
in connection with the issue.

(d) The Debenture Trustee is neither a principal debtor nor a guarantor of the
Debentures.

ISSUE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Non-Convertible Securities will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made
arrangements with the Depositories for the issue of the Non-Convertible Securities in
dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the Non-Convertible Securities in
dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The Issuer shall take
necessary steps to credit the Non-Convertible Securities allotted to the beneficiary account
maintained by the Investor with its depositary participant. The Issuer will make the Allotment
to the Investors on the Deemed Date of Allotment after verification of the Application Form,
the accompanying documents and on realisation of the application money.

ASSUMPTIONS

EACH PERSON RECEIVING THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT SHALL BE DEEMED
TO HAVE AGREED THAT AND ACCORDINGLY THE COMPANY SHALL BE ENTITLED TO
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PRESUME THAT SUCH PERSON:

(1) HAS REVIEWED THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NON-
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES AS CONTAINED HEREIN AND HAS UNDERSTOOD THE
SAME, AND, ON AN INDEPENDENT ASSESSMENT THEREOF, FOUND THE SAME
ACCEPTABLE FOR THE INVESTMENT MADE AND HAS ALSO REVIEWED THE RISK
FACTORS CONTAINED HEREIN AND HAS UNDERSTOOD THE RISKS, AND THE RISKS
INVOLVED IN INVESTING IN THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES INCLUDING FOR
ANY REASON HAVING TO SELL THEM OR BE MADE TO REDEEM THEM BEFORE
THE FINAL REDEMPTION DATE AND DETERMINED THAT NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES ARE A SUITABLE INVESTMENT AND THAT THE INVESTOR CAN BEAR
THE ECONOMIC RISK OF THAT INVESTMENT;

(2) HAS BEEN AFFORDED AN OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST AND TO REVIEW AND HAS
RECEIVED AND REVIEWED THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT AND ALL THE
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONSIDERED BY AN INDIVIDUAL TO BE NECESSARY TO
VERIFY THE ACCURACY OF OR TO SUPPLEMENT THE INFORMATION HEREIN
BELIEVED BY IT TO BE NECESSARY AND APPROPRIATE OR MATERIAL IN
CONNECTION WITH, AND FOR, INVESTMENT IN THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES;

(3) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE THE
GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT TO REFLECT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER
THE DATE OF THE GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT AND, THUS, IT SHOULD NOT
BE RELIED UPON WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SUBSEQUENT EVENTS WITHOUT
FIRST CONFIRMING ITS ACCURACY WITH THE ISSUER. NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF
THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT NOR ANY SALE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES MADE HEREUNDER SHALL, UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES,
CONSTITUTE A REPRESENTATION OR CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS
BEEN NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE ISSUER SINCE THE DATE HEREOF,;

4) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT DOES NOT
CONSTITUTE, NOR MAY IT BE USED FOR OR IN CONNECTION WITH, AN OFFER OR
SOLICITATION BY ANYONE IN ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH SUCH OFFER OR
SOLICITATION IS NOT AUTHORIZED OR TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL
TO MAKE SUCH AN OFFER OR SOLICITATION. NO ACTION IS BEING TAKEN TO
PERMIT AN OFFERING OF THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES OR THE
DISTRIBUTION OF THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT IN ANY JURISDICTION
WHERE SUCH ACTION IS REQUIRED. THE DISTRIBUTION OF THIS GENERAL
INFORMATION DOCUMENT AND THE OFFERING AND SALE OF THE NON-
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES MAY BE RESTRICTED BY LAW IN CERTAIN
JURISDICTIONS. PERSONS INTO WHOSE POSSESSION THIS GENERAL
INFORMATION DOCUMENT COMES ARE REQUIRED TO INFORM THEMSELVES
ABOUT, AND TO OBSERVE, ANY SUCH RESTRICTIONS;

(5) HAS BEEN AFFORDED AN OPPORTUNITY TO VERIFY THE ACCURACY OF OR TO
SUPPLEMENT THE INFORMATION HEREIN;

(6) HAS SUFFICIENT KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND EXPERTISE AS AN INVESTOR, TO
MAKE THE INVESTMENT IN THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES;

(7) HAS NOT RELIED ON EITHER THE ISSUER OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATE, ASSOCIATE,
HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY OR GROUP ENTITIES OR ANY PERSON ACTING IN ITS OR
THEIR BEHALF FOR ANY INFORMATION, ADVICE OR RECOMMENDATIONS OF ANY
SORT EXCEPT AS REGARDS THE ACCURACY OF THE SPECIFIC FACTUAL
INFORMATION ABOUT THE TERMS OF THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES SET
OUT IN THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT;
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(8) HAS UNDERSTOOD THAT INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISGENERAL
INFORMATION DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS BUSINESS OR
INVESTMENT ADVICE;

(9) HAS MADE AN INDEPENDENT EVALUATION AND JUDGMENT OF ALL RISKS AND
MERITS BEFORE INVESTING IN THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES;

(10)  HAS THE LEGAL ABILITY TO INVEST IN THE NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES AND
THE INVESTMENT DOES NOT CONTRAVENE ANY PROVISION OF ANY LAW,
REGULATION OR CONTRACTUAL RESTRICTION OR OBLIGATION OR UNDERTAKING
BINDING ON OR AFFECTING THE DEBENTURE HOLDER OR ITS ASSETS; AND

(11)  HAS NOT RELIED ON ANY INTERMEDIARY OR ADVISORS THAT MAY BE ASSOCIATED
WITH THE ISSUE IN CONNECTION WITH ITS INVESTIGATION OF THE ACCURACY OF
SUCH INFORMATION OR ITS INVESTMENT DECISION.
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SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

Investment in non-convertible securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest
any funds in such securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments.
Investors are advised to take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully before
investing in this offering. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their
examination of the issue including the risks involved in it. Specific attention of investors is invited
to statement of risk factors contained under Section 3 of this General Information Document. These
risks are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list of all risks and considerations relevant to
the non-convertible securities or investor’s decision to purchase such securities.

The following are the risks relating to the Company, the Debenture and the market in general
envisaged by the management of the Company. Potential investors should carefully consider all the
risk factors stated in this General Information Document for evaluating the Company and its business
and the Debentures before making any investment decision relating to the Debentures. The Company
believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the
Debentures, but does not represent that the statements below regarding risks of holding the
Debentures are exhaustive. The ordering of the risk factors is intended to facilitate ease of reading
and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor over another.
Potential investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this General
Information Document and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

(a) STRUCTURAL RISKS IN RELATION TO THE DEBENTURES

(i) The Debentures being structured debentures are sophisticated instruments which
involve a significant degree of risk and are intended for sale only to those investors
capable of understanding the risks involved in such instruments. Please note that
both the return on the Debentures and the return of the principal amount in full are
at risk if the Debentures are not held till or for any reason have to be sold or
redeemed before the Final Redemption Date. The Debentures are a principal
protected product only upon maturity.

(ii) An investment in Debentures where the payment of Coupon and/or other
consideration (if any) payable or deliverable thereon is determined by basis of
reference will entail significant risks not associated with a conventional fixed rate.
Such risks include, without limitation, changes in the level or value of the relevant
underlying asset or basis of reference and the Debenture Holder may receive a lower
amount Coupon or other consideration than the Debenture Holder(s) expected. The
Issuer has no control over a number of matters that are important in determining the
existence, magnitude and longevity of such risks and their results, including, but not
limited to, economic, financial and political events. In addition, if formula used to
determine any amounts payable or deliverable in respect of the Debentures contains
a multiplier or leverage factor, the effect of any change in such index or formula will
be magnified. In recent times, the values of certain indices, baskets and formulae
have been volatile and volatility in those and other indices, baskets and formulas
may occur in the future.

(b) Market Factors in relation to the reference asset/underlying
(i) Valuation of the underlying
An investment in the Debentures involves risk regarding the value of the underlying being
the net worth of the Issuer. The value of the underlying may vary over time and may
increase or decrease by reference to a variety of factors which may include corporate
actions, macroeconomic factors and/or speculation.

(i) The historical performance of the underlying being the net worth of the Issuer is not
an indication of future performance.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

The historical value (if any) of the underlying being the net worth of the Issuer does
not indicate the future performance of the underlying being the net worth of the Issuer.

(iii) The value of the underlying being the net worth of the Issuer will affect the value of the
Debentures
The value of the underlying being the net worth of the Issuer on any day will affect the
value of the Debentures on such day. Changes in the composition of the underlying
and factors (including those described in these Risk Factors) which either affect or
may affect the value of the underlying will affect the value of the Debentures.

(iv) Market Value
The market value of the Debentures during their term depends primarily on the value
and the volatility of the underlying and the level of interest rates for instruments of
comparable maturities. The level of market volatility is not purely a measurement of
the actual volatility but is largely determined by the prices for instruments which offer
Investors’ protection against such market volatility.

(v) Certain Hedging Considerations

Certain risks apply to purchasers that acquire the Debentures for hedging purposes.
Investors intending to purchase the Debentures for the purpose of hedging their
exposure to the underlying or any constituents should recognise the risks of utilising
the Debentures in such manner. No assurance is or can be given that the value of
the Debentures will correlate with movements in the value of the underlying or any
constituents and the composition of the underlying or any basket constituents may
change over time. Furthermore, it may not be possible to liquidate the Debentures
at a price which directly reflects the value of the underlying or any constituents.
Therefore, there can be no assurance as to the level of any correlation between the
return on an investment in the Debentures and the return on a direct investment in
the underlying or any constituents. Hedging transactions in order to limit the risks
associated with the Debentures might not be successful.

THE SECONDARY MARKET FOR DEBENTURES MAY BE ILLIQUID.

The Debentures may be very illiquid and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof.
Even if there is a secondary market for the Debentures, it is not likely to provide significant
liquidity. Potential Debenture Holders may have to hold the Debentures until redemption to
realize any value. If the Debentures are so listed or quoted or admitted to trading on Stock
Exchange, no assurance is given by the Stock Exchange that any such listing or quotation
or admission to trading will be maintained. The fact that the Debentures may be so listed or
quoted or admitted to trading does not necessarily lead to greater liquidity than if they were
not so listed or quoted or admitted to trading.

However, as of date, we are not aware of any limited or sporadic trading of the non-
convertible securities of the Issuer on stock exchanges and therefore, this would not be
applicable.

CREDIT RISK & RATING DOWNGRADE RISK

The Rating Agency has assigned the credit ratings to the Debentures. In the event of
deterioration in the financial health of the Company, there is a possibility that the Rating
Agency may downgrade the rating of the Debentures. In such cases, potential Debenture
Holders may incur losses on revaluation of their investment or make provisions towards sub-
standard/ non-performing investment as per their usual norms.

CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES MAY AFFECT THE PRICE OF DEBENTURES
All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as this Issue, are subject to price
risk. The price of such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates,

i.e. when interest rates rise, prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates
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drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or rise in the prices is a function of the existing
coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of prevailing interest rates.
Increased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and/or a growing economy,
are likely to have a negative effect on the pricing of the Debentures.

(f) ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

Special accounting considerations may apply to certain types of taxpayers. Potential
Investors are urged to consult with their own accounting advisors to determine implications
of this investment.

(9) MATERIAL CHANGES IN REGULATIONS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS SUBJECT COULD
IMPAIR THE ISSUER’S ABILITY TO MEET PAYMENT OR OTHER OBLIGATIONS.

The Issuer is subject generally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government
regulations and policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework
could adversely affect the profitability of the Issuer or its future financial performance, by
requiring a restructuring of its activities, increasing costs or otherwise.

(h) LEGALITY OF PURCHASE

Potential Investors of the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness of the acquisition
of the Debentures, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or the
jurisdiction in which it operates or for compliance by that potential Investor with any law,
regulation or regulatory policy applicable to it.

(i) POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RISK IN INDIA

The Company operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived
from the domestic market. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic
conditions in India and its results of operations are significantly affected by factors influencing
the Indian economy. An uncertain economic situation, in India and globally, could result in a
further slowdown in economic growth, investment and consumption. A slowdown in the rate
of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand for credit and other financial
products and services and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or negative growth
of sectors where the Company has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its
performance. Any such slowdown could adversely affect its business, prospects, results of
operations and financial condition.

() RISKS RELATED TO THE SECURITY / HYPOTHECATION:

Risk related to the sustained generation of the receivables at certain levels from a host of
factors outside of the control of the borrower, e.g. anticipated reserves may not materialise
or seasonal variations in the anticipated levels of receivables may occur.

(k) REFUSAL OF LISTING OF ANY SECURITY OF THE ISSUER DURING LAST THREE
YEARS BY ANY OF THE STOCK EXCHANGES IN INDIA OR ABROAD

As on the date of this General Information Document, no stock exchange in India or abroad
has refused listing of any equity or debt security issued by the Issuer. However, the Issuer
cannot guarantee that the stock exchanges may continue to grant permissions in future.

({)] RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

(i) Business Risk Profile

Prior to acquisition of the Company by the current shareholders in August 2016,
growth in the lending business remained subdued primarily owing to GE Money’s

26

Public & Non Confidential Information



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: 25th October 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

(iif)

strategy to exit its lending business in India. However, with the change in
management, the AUM of the company grew at a CAGR of over 35%. As on March
23, AUM of the company was Rs.4200 crores. Management took a conscious
decision to discontinue corporate disbursements. As on March 23, 98% of the book
consisted of retail and MSME.

CRAR of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is ~36% (thirty six percent) and the
net worth of the Issuer is at INR 2000,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Thousand
Crores), one of the highest capitalized NBFCs given the size of the Issuer. The Issuer
has rationalized its product strategy post Aug-20 to focus on the following key
products in micro, small, and medium enterprises sector and retail sector. The Issuer
disbursed around ~INR 37,00,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty Seven Hundred
Crores) in the financial year ending March 31, 2023. During COVID-19 pandemic,
under RBI’s restructuring program, we offered restructuring to customers in need
and in three major segments (MSME, personal loans and School Finance who had
near to nil past default history.

However, prolonged difficult environment for this segment has put this portfolio under
stress. In financial year ending March 31, 2022, the management took the decision
to either write off or provide for the restructured book, given the adequate capital in
the company Ability to execute growth plans in the consumer segment while
maintaining healthy credit quality will be a monitorable given the intense competition
from banks and other NBFCs in this segment.

Given the evolving situation for non-banking financial companies, asset quality in
some of the business segments including micro, small, and medium enterprises
(MSME) segment, is a key monitorable. This stems from sensitivity of borrowers to
an environment of Covid uncertainty. Delinquencies in these loans are not high
currently owing to strong credit appraisal and risk-mitigating mechanisms.

Further, on liability, the Company constantly strives to broaden its investor profile
and has increased its lender base to ~40 financial institutions in just 6 years of
operations. Currently, the liability book is well diversified across various instruments
(Bank term loans, NCD, MLDs, PTC/DA, DFI funding). The ability to further add
investors and diversify source of funding will be monitorable in the challenging
market environments.

Financial risk profile

(A) The Company is backed by AION Capital (a part of Apollo Global, one of the
largest fund managers with global asset under management of more than
USD 400 bn) which owns significant stake in the Company.

(B) Promoters including AION committed fresh capital of INR 250,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees Two Hundred and Fifty Crores)for the Company on
September 30, 2019 and another INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty
Crores) in November 23, 2020.

(C) Total Capital Adequacy of the company stood at ~21% as on March 31, 2021
and ~36% as on March 31, 2023.

(D) The Company’s capitalization is supported by its ability to raise additional
capital, through either existing sponsors or new investors as and when
required.

Conservative liquidity policy

The Company follows a conservative liquidity management policy with stringent
stress testing framework where it maintains adequate liquidity buffer in the form of
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(m)

cash, cash equivalents and undrawn bank lines against total debt maturing in the
next three months.

IN CASE OF OUTSTANDING DEBT INSTRUMENTS OR DEPOSITS OR BORROWINGS:

(i)

ANY DEFAULT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERIAL COVENANTS SUCH AS
CREATION OF SECURITY AS PER TERMS AGREED: As on the date of this
General Information Document, the Issuer has not committed any default in
compliance with the material covenants such as creation of security as per terms
agreed in respect of any outstanding borrowings.

DEFAULT IN PAYMENT OF INTEREST: As on the date of this General Information
Document, the Issuer has not committed any default in payment of interest in respect
of any outstanding borrowings.

DEFAULT IN REDEMPTION OR REPAYMENT: As on the date of this General
Information Document, the Issuer has not committed any default in redemption or
repayment in respect of any outstanding borrowings.

NON-CREATION OF DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE: Pursuant Rule 18
(7) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, an NBFC is not
required to maintain debenture redemption reserve for debentures issued on a
private placement basis.

DEFAULT IN PAYMENT OF PENAL INTEREST WHEREVER APPLICABLE: As on
the date of this General Information Document, the Issuer has not committed any
default in payment of interest penal in respect of any outstanding borrowings.

OTHERS: A failure to observe the covenants underthe Issuer's financing
arrangements or to obtain necessary consents required thereunder may lead to the
termination of the Issuer's credit facilities, acceleration of all amounts due under such
facilities and the enforcement of any security provided. Any acceleration of amounts
due under such facilities may also trigger cross default provisions under the Issuer's
other financing agreements. If the obligations under any of the Issuer's financing
documents are accelerated, the Issuer may have to dedicate a substantial portion of
the Issuer's cash flow from operations to make payments under such financing
documents, thereby reducing the availability of cash for the Issuer's working capital
requirements and other general corporate purposes. Further, during any period in
which the Issuer is in default, the Issuer may be unable to raise, or face difficulties
raising, further financing. Any of these circumstances could adversely affect the
Issuer's business, credit rating and financial condition, cash flows and results of
operations. If the Issuer fails to meet its debt service obligations or covenants
provided under the financing agreements, the relevant lenders could declare the
Issuer to be in default under the terms of the Issuer's agreements or accelerate the
maturity of the Issuer's obligations. the Issuer cannot assure the Investors that, in
the event of any such acceleration, the Issuer will have sufficient resources to repay
the borrowings.
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SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended 31st March 2023, 31st March 2022,
and 31st March 2021 along with the unaudited financial statements for the period ended 30th June
2023 are set out in Annexure V hereto.

It shall be noted that the audited financial statements have been certified by the statutory auditor who
holds a valid certificate issued by the peer review board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

The link for website is as below:- www.clix.capital/investors
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SECTION 5: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

The General Information Document is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI NCS
Regulations and in this section, the Issuer has set out the details required as per Schedule | of the
SEBI NCS Regulations.

5.1 Documents Submitted to the Exchanges

The following documents have been / shall be submitted along with the listing application to
the NSE and with the Debenture Trustee:

(a) This General Information Document;

(b) Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Non-Convertible Securities;

(c) Since the current issuance does not exceed the limit set out under Section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and given the Company is a private limited company, the shareholders
resolution under Section 42 of the Act is not required for the purpose of issue of Debentures.

(d) Copy of the resolution passed by the board of directors of the Company dated July 26, 2023
authorizing the issuance of the debentures. In case of any further resolution passed by the
Issuer in relation to the subject (as shall be required) shall be annexed in the relevant Key
Information Document from time to time;

(e) Copy of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company for each Tranche /
Issuance shall be annexed at the time of issuance of the Key Information Document.

(f) Copy of last 3 (three) years audited Annual Reports;

(9) Reports about the business or transaction to which the proceeds of the securities are to be
applied directly or indirectly;

(h) Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

(i) An undertaking from the Issuer stating that the necessary documents for the creation of the

charge, where applicable, including the Debenture Trust Deed would be executed within the
time frame prescribed in the relevant regulations/acts/rules etc. and the same would be
uploaded on the website of the BSE and / or NSE, where such debt securities are proposed
to be listed;

)] Where applicable, an undertaking that permission/consent from the prior creditor for a
second or pari passu charge being created, in favor of the trustees to the proposed issue has
been obtained;

(k) Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for as it
deems fit; and

(N Due diligence certificates from the Debenture Trustee as per the format specified in Annexure
A of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular and Schedule 1V of the SEBI NCS Regulations.

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to NSE at the time of filing the draft
of this General Information Document:

(a) Due diligence certificates from the Debenture Trustee as per the format specified in Annexure
A of the SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular and Schedule 1V of the SEBI NCS Regulations.
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5.2 Details of Promoters of the Issuer:

S. No. Details of Promoter Management Description

1. Name of promoter Plutus Financials Pvt. Ltd.
2. Date of Birth Not applicable
3. Age Not applicable
4, Personal Addresses Lot 15 A3, 1st Floor, Cybercity, Ebene 72201,
Mauritius
5. Education Qualifications Not applicable
Experience in the business or | Plutus Financials Pvt. Ltd. is a company
employment incorporated in Mauritius since 2016
7. positions/posts held in the past by the | Not applicable
promoter management
8. directorships held by the promoter | Not applicable
management
9. Other ventures of the promoter | Not applicable
management
10. Special achievements Not applicable
11. Business and financial activities of | The purpose of Plutus Financials Pvt. Ltd. is to
the promoter management acquire and hold Investments in India primarily
in Financial Services Entities
12. Photograph Not applicable
13. Permanent Accountant Number Not applicable
14. Other Details Nil
Declaration
The Issuer confirms that (to the extent applicable) the Permanent Account Number,
Aadhaar Number, Driving License Number, Bank Account Number(s) and Passport
Number of the promoters and Permanent Account Number of directors have been
submitted to the stock exchanges on which the Non-Convertible Securities are proposed
to be listed, at the time of filing the draft General Information Document.
5.3 Details of specific entities in relation to the current Issue of Non-Convertible
Debentures:
S. No. ‘ Particulars ‘ Details
1. Legal Counsel (if any) Name: Juris Corp, Advocates & Solicitors
Logo:
Juris Corp

advocates & solicitors

Contact Person: Partner, Securities
Address: 302, Century Bhavan, 3™ Floor,
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(b)
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S. No. Particulars

Dr Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai — 400 030, India

Email: securities@jclex.com
Tel: 022 6720 5555
Website: www.jclex.com

Or such other Legal Counsel as shall be set
out in the respective Key Information

Document.

2. Guarantor (if applicable) As set out in the respective Key Information
Document

3. Arrangers, if any As set out in the respective Key Information
Document

About the Issuer: A brief summary of business / activities of the Issuer and its
subsidiaries with the details of branches or units if any and its line of business
containing at least the following information:

Overview of the business of the Issuer

The Company was incorporated as GE Money Financial Services Ltd in 1994, a fully owned
subsidiary of General Electric Capital Corporation (GE Capital), the financial services arm of
and wholly owned by, General Electric Company, USA. In August 2016, Mr. Pramod Bhasin
and Mr. Anil Chawla along with AION Capital by way of management buyout formed Clix
Capital (previously known as GE Money Financial Services Private Ltd) and Clix Finance
(formerly known as GE Capital Services India). AION Capital is the largest shareholder in the
company. It provides, healthcare finance, consumer financing (personal loans) and SME
financing (school financing, merchant loans, business loans,). The company ventured into
housing finance through a wholly owned subsidiary, Clix Housing Finance, which began
operations in fiscal 2019. The company has set up the requisite infrastructure such as branch
network, sales force and branch staff, technological solutions for effective customer targeting,
credit decisions through scorecards, collections, and analytic frameworks.

Branch details:

As of the date of this General Information Document, the Company has 22
branches/Corporate Office across India.

Purpose State Location ‘ Office Address

1 Business Gujar | Ahmedaba | Office No. 406, Sakar 2, Near Ellisebridge,
Activity at d Ahmedabad-380006, Gujarat
Business Karnat No:6/13, Gurappa Avenue, Ground & 15t Floor, Off
2 Activit aka Bangalore | Primrose Road, Craig Park Layout, Sivanchetti
y Garden, Bangalore, Karnataka-560024
3 Business Chand Chandiaarh Office no. 302-A, 3rd Floor, SCO 120-121-122,
Activity igarh 9 Sector 17C, Chandigarh- 160017
Business Tamil Old No. 669, New No. 306, The Work Villa, Kamala
4 Activit Nadu Chennai Arcade, Anna Salai, Thousand Lights, Chennai -
y 600006
5 Business Kerala | Cochin Wee space, CC 54,2593-5, Bose Nagar,
Activity Kadavanthra, Cochin, Kerala 682020
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Purpose State Location Office Address
Business Tamil Shamims Tower, 512 Thadagam Main Road,
6 Activit Nadu Coimbatore | (LandMark: Opp to Smart City Lake), RS Puram,
y Coimbatore- 641002, Tamil Nadu
Business Plot No.23, 5th Floor, Aggarwal Corporate Tower,
7 . Delhi Delhi Govind Lal Sikka Marg, Rajendra Place, New Delhi
Activity
110001
Business Harya Gurgaon 901B, 9th Floor, Two Horizon Center, DLF Phase-
8 S Corporate
Activity na ) 5, Gurgaon-122002
Office
9 Business Karnat Hubli 3rd Floor, KGS Plaza, Deshpande Nagar, Hubli —
Activity aka 580029, Karnataka
BUSINESS Telan Hatch Station, 15t & 2nd Floor, 1-8-303, 48/15, PG
10 Activit ana Hyderabad | Road, Sindhi Colony, Begumpet, Hyderabad,
y 9 Telangana- 500003
Business Raiast Office No. 806, V-jai Citi Point, Ahinsa circle, D-52,
11 o J Jaipur Subhash Marg, C-Scheme, Jaipur- 302001,
Activity han )
Rajasthan
. Uttar . .
12 Business Prade | Kanpur Cabin no. 606, 6th Floor, 15/63, Krishna Tower,
Activity sh Civil Lines, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh
BuSINEss Mahar Solitaire Corporate Park, Building no.9, Unit No, 9
13 Activit ashtra Mumbai 72, Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road, Chakala, Andh
y eri (East) Mumbai- 400093, Maharashtra.
BUSINEsS Mahar Aster Coworking, B1-7, 1st Floor, Reverie, Above
14 S Pune Skoda Showroom, Bhandarkar Road, Pune -
Activity ashtra
411004
Business Guiar Office No-513, Runway Heights, Above Reliance
15 | actvi ot ) Rajkot Trends, Nr Ayodhya Chowk BRTS Bus Stop,150
y Feet Ring Road, Rajkot - 360006
Business Guiar Ikoverk, 2nd, Plot No.13/Flat No. A11, Silverpalam,
16 Activit at ) Surat Building, Timaliyawad, Near Kadampalli Society,
y Nanpura-395001, Surat, Gujarat
17 Business Gujar Vadodara 204/1, Platinum Square, Beside SBI Urmi Branch,
Activity at BPC Road, Akota, Vadodara, Gujarat-390020
Business :ndhr iSprout Business Centre, Door No. 40-14-8/2, Near
18 Activit Prade Vijayawada | Jyoti Convention Hall, Benz Circle, Vijayawada,
y o Andhra Pradesh-520010
Busness | ane Office No 49-12-15/1,2nd Floor Lalitha Nagar,
19 Activit Prade Vizag Revenue Ward 12, Visakhapatnam, Andhra
y o Pradesh -530016
20 Business Tamil | Madurai K RV Arcade Annexe, 1st Floor, 39 Pechiamman,
Activity Nadu New Padithurai Road, Madurai 625001
. West . . - .
21 Business Bange | Kolkata 19 R.N. Mukherjee Road, Main Building, Third
Activity | Floor Kolkata - 700001
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State Location Office Address
. Uttar . .
22 Business Prade | Noida Suit no - 508, BSI Business Park, C 51, Sector -
Activity 62, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 210301

sh

*In addition to above, there are some spoke locations as well through which business is done.

(c) Corporate Structure of the Issuer:

Board of Directors

Designation Experience

Pramod Bhasin | Director Pramod’s career spans an entrepreneurial and professional
career across the globe in the US, UK and Asia. He has built
global businesses in Financial Services, Business process
Management and Skills Training. Pramod is the founder of
Genpact starting in 1997 and considered the pioneer of the
Business Process Management industry in India today,
which employs over a million people in India. Under his
leadership, Genpact has also been the pioneer of this
industry in China, Eastern Europe and Latin America.
Genpact is acknowledged today as the leader in its industry
with over 65,000 employees across 17 countries and over
$2b in revenues, and is a public company listed on NYSE.
Pramod built the company from inception till 2011 when he
stepped down as CEO.

Prior to Genpact, Pramod’s career with GE spanned 25
years across Europe, US and Asia. He started GE Capital’s
initial operations in India as the CEO in 1994 and was also
the President of GE Capital Asia from 1999. During this time,
he was the architect of GE Capital’s businesses in
Commercial and Consumer Finance and joint ventures with
SBl in credit cards and HDFC in Consumer Finance. Prior to
that he worked with GE Capital in Corporate Finance in New
York and Stanford, CT., as well as with GE in London and
New York.

Anil Chawla Director Started D. E. Shaw & Co's Indian operations with their
investing arm. Acknowledged as one of the most successful
investors in India while leading D.E. Shaw & Co, with
investments greater than US $1.6 billion in a short span.

Inherited a small balance sheet, while at GE Capital
Services India, which consisted of short term assets, which
eventually grew up to, become one of the best performing
companies with a book size of US$1 billion during his tenure.
Widely accredited for propelling GE Capital Services India
into the league of large ticket lenders in India (US$3 billion
in assets in 3 years).

Also, instrumental in arresting the delinquencies with
proactive follow-up mechanism and recover monies from old
delinquencies in workout situations.

Utsav Baijal Director 20 years of experience in the financial services sector as an
Senior Partner and Managing Director at Apollo Global
Management Inc.
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Board of Directors

Designation Experience

Kaushik Director Prior to joining AION, Kaushik was an Investment
Ramakrishnana Professional in the Private Equity Group at Apollo, Mumbai.
Kaushik graduated from Mumbai University with a Bachelor
of Commerce and Masters in Business Administration, from
S.P. Jain Business School. Mr. Kaushik Ramakrishnan is an
investment professional with over 12 years of experience in
debt capital markets and structured corporate financing. In
year 2007 he started his career as a consultant responsible
for evaluating investments for Apollo and recommending
funding structures for the firm. He then moved to the Apollo
and subsequently to AION where he gained experience in
various debt financing structures. During this time, he has
invested over INR 35,000M across various debt instruments.

Rakesh Kaul Director Rakesh brings over two decades of experience in the
Financial Services industry. He joined Clix from RHB
Malaysia, where he led the Consumer banking business for
the group covering Malaysia and ASEAN markets. Prior to
RHB he was with Citigroup and did a number of leadership
roles across its Consumer Banking, Corporate Banking and
Capital Markets divisions.

He brings deep and diverse cross functional exposure
across Sales & Distribution, Business Management, Product
Development, Corporate Strategy and Risk Management.
Rakesh also brings tremendous leadership in building
teams, managing businesses through change cycles,
building scale and leading transformation.

Ajay Candade Non-Executive | Mr. Ajay is the Managing Partner and co-founder of Fractal
Independent Growth Partners, a scale-up focused investor in technology-
Director enabled businesses, he was previously co-lead of KKR's

Private Equity team in India, and was an investor with
Warburg Pincus in Mumbai, and also previously worked as
a management consultant at McKinsey & Company in New
York and Mumbai.

Mr. Ajay has served on and/or been an observer on the
boards of Alliance Tire, Avendus Capital, Continental
Warehousing Corporation Limited, Euro kids Group/
Lighthouse Learning, Magma Fincorp, Magma Housing
Finance, Max India, and Max Healthcare, and TVS Supply
Chain Solutions. He has been a member of the Cll National
Committee on Logistics.

Anuradha Bajpai | Non-Executive | Ms. Bajpai has an experience of more than 30 years in the
Independent field of Audit and Assurance having worked as a consultant
Director with Deloitte, Haskins and Sells for 17 years leading the
team on Statutory Audit and Group Reporting under
IFRS/US GAAP for NBFC’S forming part of the Merrill Lynch
Group, the Morgan Stanley Group and the Caspian Group,
Media Companies in India forming part of the WPP Group,
Companies in the telecom Sector, Companies in the Retail
Industry, Other service industries and manufacturing
companies in the lIron and Steel Sector.
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Board of Directors

Designation Experience

Chander Mohan | Non-Executive | Mr. Vasudev has worked in Ministry of Finance, Government
Vasudev Independent of India as Secretary in Department of Banking, Expenditure
Director and economic affairs. He was also GOI nominee on the
board of several public sector financial institution and on the
Central Board of RBI. He has chaired a committee for reform
of NBFC sector and worked as Executive Director, World
Bank for over 3 Years.

Aditya Gupta Additional Aditya Gupta, Principal , AIP Investment Advisors Private
Director Limited (AIP) has worked on private equity, hybrid and credit
investment in Indian market. He has over 19 year of
experience in corporate finance, leverage buy-outs,
acquisition finance, debt capital markets and has strong
relationships with emerging and large corporate client
across India.

Mr. Aditya Gupta has also worked in ICICI BANK UK PLC,
HSBC and ABN AMRO Bank. He Completed his MBA from
Faculty of Management Studies, Delhi University and
Bachelor of Engineering in Mechanical with a Distinction,
from Delhi college of Engineering, Delhi university.

Brief Profile of the senior management

Name Designation Experience

Rakesh Kaul CEO Rakesh brings over two decades of experience in the
Financial Services industry. He joined Clix from RHB
Malaysia, where he led the Consumer banking business
for the group covering Malaysia and ASEAN markets.
Prior to RHB he was with Citigroup and did a number of
leadership roles across its Consumer Banking, Corporate
Banking and Capital Markets divisions.

He brings deep and diverse cross functional exposure
across Sales & Distribution, Business Management,
Product Development, Corporate Strategy and Risk
Management. Rakesh also brings tremendous leadership
in building teams, managing businesses through change
cycles, building scale and leading transformation.

Gagan CFO Gagan is chartered accountant with more than 18 years
Aggarwal of experience of working with marquee organizations
such as Indifi,Home Credit and GE Capital. As part of his
last assignment, he was heading Finance Treasury at
Bijak, a new age agri-tech company. His experience
spans across different sectors, building up a strong
finance function from scratch, formulation &
implementation of budget models, unit economics
product profitability, fund raising and treasury operations.
Gagan holds Chartered Accountant degree from ICAI,
India.

Vikram Rathi Chief Risk Officer | Vikram is the Chief Risk Officer at Clix and he is
responsible to build a comprehensive Enterprise Risk
Framework pivoted towards retail digital businesses.
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Experience

Vikram has 19 years of experience with organizations

such as Ratan India, Barclays and Tata International
across various domains such as new product launches,
deal underwriting, portfolio risk management and
analytics. Vikram brings deep domain knowledge and
comprehensive market understanding of the retail lending
industry.

Santawana
Periwal

Chief Human
Resource Officer

Santwana is a seasoned professional with more than 20
years of strategic Human Resource experience — as a
practitioner as well as in Consulting. She is a post
graduate in Business Management from MDI, Gurgaon.

She brings diverse industry exposure of driving the talent
agenda in organizations like EXL Service, Max Life
Insurance, Idea Cellular as well as through numerous
projects/long term assignments in her strategic HR
Consulting role at Salto De Fee wherein she worked
closely with organizations in the Telecommunications,
Technology, Healthcare, FMCG and other sectors.

Santwana has experience of all aspects of Human
Resources and is skilled in HR Strategy, Business
Partnering, Talent Management, Employee Engagement
and Capability Building.

Prakash Shetty

Head of
Operations,
Compliance & CS

Prakash Shetty is the Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Compliance Officer. He has over 20 years of total
experience all through with GE Capital. He has well
diversified experience in operations, compliance and has
headed the operations vertical for erstwhile GE Money.

Pankaj Bansal-

Head SME
Finance

Mr. Pankaj Bansal is the Business Head of SME Finance.
He joined Clix in March 2017. Prior to joining Clix, Mr.
Pankaj had co-founded two startups- MindNudge
Technologies and Adventus Business Services.
Subsequently he had left the startups to join Clix. Mr.
Pankaj was earlier associated with Standard Chartered
Bank as Director-Corporate and Institution Banking for
around 7 years. Prior to that, Mr. Pankaj was associated
with Deloitte.

Vishal Jain

Head- Collections
& Recovery

Mr. Vishal Jain is the Head-Collections at Clix Group. He
has an overall work experience of 16 years in the
collections where previously he was associated with ICICI
Bank till 2017 as Head-Collections for Home Finance,
Credit Cards, Personal loans etc.

Vijaykumar
Ramakrishna

CTO

Vijay is our Head of Information Technology. Vijay joined
us from Comtech LLC where he was the Chief Growth &
Delivery Officer for India. He brings deep and diverse
exposure across multiple technology domains like
Applications, Infra, Digital Transformation, Engineering,
Cloud & Cyber Security etc. Vijay has over two decades
of experience and has spent significant time working with
large Banking and Financial services organisations like
Deutsche Bank, Yes Bank -Bandhan Bank in leadership
roles as CIO, CTO, COO Technology & CAO.
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GE Money/Capital was rebranded as Clix post the management takeover and at present,
carried out the business through 3 entities (2 entities acquired from GE and a newly set up
Housing Finance entity). Investments were done through Plutus Financials which was
incorporated on 21st Jan, 2016 in Mauritius. Plutus Financials Private. Ltd. (Mauritius) holds
99.99% stake in Clix and Plutus Capital Private. Ltd. (Mauritius) holds 0.01% in Clix.

. Clix Capital (earlier GE Money) - focused on SME, Consumer Lending, Corporate

o Clix Housing (new entity) — 100% subsidiary of Clix Capital - focused on
Housing/Mortgage finance products

PLUTUS
|

l 100%
Capital

|

100%

Housing

Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding of new projects
Not Applicable

Corporate Structure of the Group:

PLUTUS
|

l 100%

Capital

|

100%

Housing
Expenses of the issue:
As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
Key Operational and Financial Parameters for the last 3 audited years on a

consolidated basis (wherever available) else on a standalone basis, as on June 30,
2023:
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In Rs Cr
Particulars 30.06.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
BALANCE SHEET

Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 57.85 46 54.04 105.17
Financial Assets 5,433.3 5,005 4242.20 4587.84
Non-financial Assets excluding 700.41 705 691.02 664.82
property, plant and equipment
Total Assets 6,191.5 5,756 4,987.3 5,357.8
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

-Derivative financial instruments 1.65 0 0 0

-Trade Payables 311.45 244 149.75 107.45

-Debt Securities 501.84 476 746.63 1373.84

-Borrowings (other than Debt 3,176.99 2,830 1916.76 1615.96

Securities)

-Subordinated liabilities 4.87 6 7.95 17.49

-Other financial liabilities 87.22 96 108.55 103.74
Non-Financial Liabilities

-Current tax liabilities (net) 0 0 0 0

-Provisions 34.82 34 33.59 31.73

-Deferred tax liabilities (net)

-Other non-financial liabilities 21.18 38 26.02 21.23
Equity (Equity Share Capital and 2,051.51 2,031 1998.01 2086.39
Other Equity)

Total Liabilities and Equity 6,191.52 5,756.49 4,987.26 5,357.82
Revenue from operations 214.8 679 637.520 772.38
Other Income 6.8 27 25.980 42.76
Total Income 221.6 706 663.500 815.14
Total Expense 203.14 652 787.080 799.26
Profit after tax for the year 13.80 24 -93.310 9.40
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Other Comprehensive income -1.18 0 0.380 0.49
Total Comprehensive Income 12.62 25 -92.93 9.89
Earnings per equity share (Basic) 0.10 0.17 -0.66 0.07
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) 0.10 0.17 -0.66 0.07
Cash Flow
Net cash from / used in(-) -573.68 438.14 475.26
operating activities
Net cash from / used in(-) 27.39 41.25 -338.58
investing activities

Cashflows
Net cash from / used in (-) are prepared 157.75 -346.93 -409.48
financing activities on Annual

Basis under
Net increase/decrease (-) in cash IND-As 231.30 132.46 -272.80
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as per -157.23 231.31 98.85
Cash Flow Statement as at end of Half
Year
Additional Information
Net worth 2,051.51 2,031.25 1,998.01 2,086.39
Cash and cash equivalents 756.92 672.54 428.23 231.76
Loans 4376.57 4,029.83 3336.026 3,788.67
Loans (Principal Amount) 4497.67 4,151.92 3560 4,023.06
Total Debts to Total Assets 0.59 0.57 0.53 0.56
Interest Income 183.07 608.52 538.84 666.66
Interest Expense 93.17 301.75 282.16 339.1
Impairment on Financial Instruments 40.79 226.90 250.94 96.79
Bad Debts to Loans 0.9% 0.05 7.0% 2.4%
% Stage 3 Loans on Loans 111.72 99.77 176.09 142,11
(Principal Amount)
% Net Stage 3 Loans on Loans 70.9 63.10 48.86 63,06
(Principal Amount)
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 36.16% 38.46% 35.01% 30.64%
Tier Il Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) -1.70% -1.38% 0.76% 0.38%
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31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Particulars 31.03.2023
‘ BALANCE SHEET
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 57.85 46 54 105
Financial Assets 5488.26 5,064 4,339 4,691
Total Assets 6,254 5,824 5,087 5,464
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Derivative financial instruments 1.65 - - -
-Trade Payables 129.61 77 81 145
-Other Payables 185.14 46 78 101
-Debt Securities 542.79 1,384 786 517
SBe‘(’:':‘r’I;’IVe”S‘?S (other than Debt 3196.37 1,697 1,973 2,852
-Deposits - - - -
-Subordinated liabilities - - -
-Lease liabilities 4.87 17 8 6
-Other financial liabilities 90.52 107 112 104
Non-Financial Liabilities
-Current tax liabilities (net) - - - -
-Provisions 34.92 32 34 34
-Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - - -
-Other non-financial liabilities 21.21 22 26 39
5‘:‘::&21‘1:‘;;" Share Capital and 2047 2,082 1,088 2,025
Non-controlling interest
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,254 5,464 5,087 5,824
PROFIT AND LOSS ‘ ‘
Revenue from operations 217.85 705.0 659.7 794.4
Other Income 6.84 27.8 26.1 43.0
Total Income 224.70 732.8 685.9 837.4
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Total Expenses 204.13 674.0 814.4 818.1

) 12.86
Profit after tax for the year 15.47 28.3 -98.5
Other Comprehensive Income -1.17 0.3 0.5 0-53
Total Comprehensive Income 14.30 28.6 -97.9 13.39
Earnings per equity share (Basic) 0.20 0.20 -0.69 0.09
Earnings per equity share (Diluted) 0.19 0.19 -0.69 0.09
Cash Flow
Net cash from / used in(-) -588.0 446.1 483.0
operating activities
Net cash from / used in(-) 112.2 60.7 -374.0
investing activities

Cashflows are

Net cash from / used in (—) prepared on 585.7 -320.7 -330.6
financing activities annual basis as

. . per IND-AS
Net increase/decrease (-) in cash and -221.6 186.2 109.8
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash 80.5 266.6 376.5
Flow Statement as at end of Half Year
Additional Information
Net worth 2047 2,025.5 1,988.3 2,081.7
Cash and cash equivalents 944.8 395.6 287.2 112.0
Loans 4460.06 4,125.5 3,430.9 3,905.5
Total Debts to Total Assets 0.60 0.58 0.54 0.56
Interest Income 185.79 623.7 557.6 557.6
Interest Expense 94.75 318.2 298.1 298.1
Impairment on  Financial Instruments 44.24 227.8 283.0 96.8

0, 0, 0, (o]

Bad Debis to Loans 2.5% 5.5% 8.2% 2.5%

5.5 Debt: Equity Ratio of the Company:

Before the issue (as on June 30, 2023) | 1.70
After the issue As shall .be set out in the respective Key
Information Document
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5.6 Details of any other contingent liabilities of the Issuer based on the latest audited
financial statements including amount and nature of liability:

Details as on June 30, 2023 are as follows:-
Lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings - Rs. 4.88 Crores
Contingent liability with respect to taxes - Rs. 38.02 Crores

5.7 The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the Company along
with details of the counterparty (viz. name and nature of the counterparty, whether a
subsidiary, joint venture entity, group company etc.) on behalf of whom it has been
issued
Not Applicable

5.8 A brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:

(a) Details of Share Capital as on last quarter end, i.e., June 30, 2023:

Share Capital Amount
(in Rs.)
Authorised Share Capital
2,160,000,000 shares of face value of INR 10/- each 21,600,000,000
TOTAL 21,600,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid- up Share Capital 14,35,993,541
TOTAL 14,35,993,541
(b) Changes in its capital structure as at last quarter end i.e., June 30, 2023 for the

preceding three financial years and the current year:
Not Applicable

(c) Details of the Equity Share Capital of the Company, for the preceding three financial
years and the current financial year:

Cumulative Paid
Up Capital

Equit Equit
Issue y y

- No
Price Consider hature of § Shar Shar Remark
Allotmen ©

Allotm (in ation Equi e e s

ent Shares ' ; t ty  Capit Prem

Shar al ium
es (in (in
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August | 61,56,03 | INR | INR | Cash & | Transfe | #615603425 -Cash &
31, 425 10 | 22.2 | Cash r Cash
2016 shares 9 Equivalen Share Capital: Equivale

were per |ts (Via Rs. 615,60,34,250 nts (Via

transferr fully | Bank Bank

ed to paid | Transfer) Share Premium: Transfer)

Plutus equi Rs. 756,85,60,739

Financia ty

Is Pvt shar

Ltd. (For e

2 shares

Plutus

Capital

Pvt Ltd

was

acting

as

nominee

sharehol

der)
Novem | 80,02,84 | INR | INR | Cash & | Bonus | #800884452 Cash &
ber 04, | ,452 10 10 Cash Cash
2016 bonus Equivalen Share Capital: Rs. Equivale

equity ts (Via 800,28,44,520 nts (Via

shares Bank Bank

allotted Transfer) Transfer)

to Plutus

Financia

Is Pvt

Ltd
Novem | buy- INR [ INR | Cash & | Buybac | #118803425 Cash &
ber 21, | back of | 10 12.7 | Cash k Share Capital: Rs Cash
2016 118,803, per | Equivalen 11880342p50. ' Equivale

425 from fully | ts (Via nts (Via

Plutus paid | Bank Premium: Bank

Financia equi | Transfer) 320769247.5 Transfer)

Is Pvt ty

Ltd shar

e

March | For 2 |INR |INR | Cash & | Revoca | #2 Cash &
28, shares 10 12.7 | Cash tion of Share Cabital: Rs.20 Cash
2017 nominee per | Equivalen | Nomin pral- RS. Equivale

rights of fully | ts (Via | ation Share Premium: | nts (Via

Plutus paid | Bank Rs.5.4 Bank

Capital equi | Transfer) Transfer)

Pvt Ltd ty

were shar

revoked e

by

Plutus

Financia

Is Pvt

Ltd

pursuant

to

transfer

of
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benefici
al
ownersh
ip.
Septe Issue of | INR | INR | Cash & | Rights | #11050000 Cash &
mber 11,050,0 | 10 17.5 | Cash Cash
30, 00 5 Equivalen Share Capital: Equivale
2019 allotted per |ts (Via Rs. 11,05,00,000 nts (Via
to Plutus fully | Bank Bank
Financia paid | Transfer) Share Premium: Transfer)
Is up Rs. 8,34,27,500
Private equi
Limited ty
Shar
es
23-11- | Issueof | INR | INR | Cash & Rights | Share Capital: Rs. Cash &
2020 2840909 | 10 17.6 | Cash @10 Cash
1 shares 0 Equivalen Equivale
allotted per |ts(Via — nts (Via
to Plutus fully | Bank ?féare Premium: Rs. Bank
Financia paid | Transfer) ' Transfer)
Is up
Private equi
Limited ty
Shar
es
#100
31-03- | Issue of | INR | INR | Cash ESOP Share Capital: Rs Cash &
2023 100 10 13.1 1000 ' cash
shares 0 Equivale
allotted per Share Premium: Rs. | nts
to fully 3.10
Catalyst paid
Trustees up
hip equi
under ty
the Shar
ESOP es
Scheme

5.9

5.10

5.11

Details of any Acquisition or Amalgamation with any entity in the preceding 1 (one)
year:

Clix Finance India Pvt Ltd, which was a wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital, was merged
in Clix Capital Services Pvt. Ltd w.e.f April 01, 2022.. New merged entity is Clix Capital
Services Pvt Ltd.

Details of any Reorganization or Reconstruction in the preceding 1 (one) year:

Not Applicable

Details of the shareholding of the Company as at the latest quarter end, i.e., June 30,
2023:

Shareholding pattern of the Company as on last quarter end, i.e. June 30, 2023 as per
the format specified under the listing regulations:
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Name of the Equity Shareholders & No. of Equity %age of
Country thereof Shares held shareholding
1 Plutus Financials Pvt. Ltd. (Mauritius) 1,43,59,93,541 99.99999289
2 Plutus Capital Pvt. Ltd. (Mauritius) 2 0.000014%
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
3 ) 100 0.00070%
(Clix Employee Stock Trust)
Total 1,43,59,93,643 100.00%

(b)
June 30, 2023:

Name of the shareholders

Total no. of
Equity shares

No. of shares
in demat form

List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as at the latest quarter end, i.e.

Total
shareholding as
% of total no.

1,43,59,93,541

equity shares

1 Plutus Financials Pvt. Ltd. (Mauritius) 1,43,59,93,541 99.99999289
2 Plutus Capital Pvt. Ltd. (Mauritius) 2 2 0.000014%
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited (Clix o
3 Employee Stock Trust) 100 100 0.00070%
Total Equity Shares 1,43,59,93,643 | 1,43,59,93,643 100.00%
5.12 Following details regarding the directors of the Company:

(@)

Details of the current directors of the Company:

This table sets out the details regarding the Company’s Board of Directors as on date of this
General Information Document:

Name of Director of
the Age Address DIN the company Director In Other Company
Directors since
Rakesh Exec | 50 197, Sector 33866 | 23-Sep- Na
Kaul utive | years | 37, Arun Vihar, | 65 2021
Direct Noida Sector
or 37 S.0,
and Gautam
CEO Buddha
Nagar, Uttar
Pradesh-
201303
Pramod Direct | 67 F-35 Radhey | 01197 | 31-Aug-16 Vishwas Vision for health
Bhasin or years | Mohan Drive, | 009 welfare and Special needs
Gadaipur,
Mehrauli, New International Foundation
Delhi - 110030 for Research and
Education.
Vandana Foundation
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Name of

the
Directors

Desi
gnati

Address

Director of

the company Director In Other Company

Skills Academy Private

Limited

Inception Advisory Private
Limited

DLF Limited.

Asha Impact Advisory
Services Private Limited

Anil Direct | 55 8 Club Marg | 00016 | 31-Aug-16 1. Avant India Advisory
Chawla or years | DLF Phase 1, | 555 Services Private
Gurgaon Limited.
|1-|2azrogr3a 2. A and M Publications
y Private Limited
Kaushik Direct | 36 174,3a Scarlet, | 08303 | 11-Feb- nil
Ramakrish | or years | Kalpataru 198 2021
na Aura,Lbs
Marg,
Ghatkopar
West, Mumbai-
400086
Utsav Direct | 44 G-79 Gujarati | 02592 | 01-Oct-2020 | 1. AGM India  Advisors
Baijal or years | Society, 194 Private Limited
Ground Floor
Extn, Nehru
Road, Vile
Parle, east,
Mumbai,
Maharashtra,
India 400057
Non- | 43 201, 07090 | 31-Mar- 1. Nil
Exec | years | ARAVINDAKS | 569 2023
utive HA, 113, 3rd
Indep MAIN
Ajay Bharat itnde EgéD DEFE
Candade | py; ot COLONY,
or INDIRANAGA
R7
BANGALORE
560038
Non- | 56 1501 07128 | 31-Mar- .
Exec | years | Eagleridge, B | 141 2023 Il J?thslp_)%t Special
utive Wing, roducts
|ndep Hiranandani 2. Creixent SpeCial Steels
Anuradha | ende Estate, Near Ltd
Bajpai nt Hiranandani 3. JTPM Atsali Ltd
Direct Foundation 4. Brahmani River Pellets
or School, Thane

West- 400607

Ltd

5. JSW Severfield
Structures Ltd
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Name of i Director of

the i Address DIN the company Director In Other Company
Directors i

6. JSW Industrial Gases
Ltd
7. JSW Steel Coated
Product Ltd
8. JSW Vallabh Tinplate
Ltd
9. JSW Vijaynagar
Metallics Ltd
Non- | 80 224, Sector | 00143 | 31-Mar- 1. Star Paper Mills Ltd
Exec | years | 15A, Noida, | 885 2023 2. NDML
Chander Iut'(\j/e 201301 3. UJVN Ltd
Mohan ndep 4. UPCL
ende
Vasudev
nt
Direct
or
Additi |43 | 6602 B Wing, | 02408 | 31-Ju3 | 1 Reshim Commercial
Private Limited
onal years | Allura Towers, | 452
grlrect ;%dha ;Oagg’ 2. Helios Capital Advisors
' Private Limited
Lower Parel
(W), Mumbai- 3. Helios Finserve Private
400013 o
Limited
Aditya 4. JSW Ispat Special
Gupta Product Limited
5. JTPM Atsali Limited
6. Creixent Special Steels
Limited
7. Arcion Revitalization
Private Limited

*Company to disclose name of the current directors who are appearing in the RBI defaulter list and/or
ECGC default list, if any: Nil

(b) Details of change in directors in the preceding three financial years and the current
financial year:

Name Designation DIN Date of Director of the Remarks
Appointment / Company
Resignation since (in case
of resignation)
Aditya Gupta | Additional | 02408452 31-07-23 NA NA
Director
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Designation Date of Director of the Remarks
Appointment / Company
Resignation since (in case
of resignation)
Steve Director 06765499 31-07-23 31.07.23 NA
Martinez
Ajay Non- 07090569 31-03-23 NA NA
Candade Executive
Independent
Director
Anuradha Non- 07128141 31-03-23 NA NA
Bajpai Executive
Independent
Director
Chander Non- 00143885 31-03-23 NA NA
Mohan Executive
Vasudev Independent
Director
Sanjiv Misra Director 03511635 31-03-23 11-02-21 NA
Rakesh Kaul | Whole Time | 03386665 23-09-21 NA NA
Director and
CEO
Rashmi Whole Time | 07072541 20-10-22 28-11-19 NA
Mohanty Director
Kaushik Director 08303198 11-02-21 NA NA
Ramakrishna
Utsav Baijal Director 02592194 01-10-20 NA NA
Pramod Director 01197009 31-08-16 NA NA
Bhasin
Anil Chawla Director 00016555 31-08-16 NA NA
Parth Gandhi Director 01658253 01-10-20 31-08-16 NA
Shekhar Director 07471871 11-02-21 31-08-16 NA
Daga
Kalpesh Director 03534772 11-02-21 31-08-16 NA
Kikani

(c)

Details of directors’ remuneration, and such particulars of the nature and extent of

their interests in the Company (during the current year and preceding three financial

years):

Remuneration payable or paid to a
Company,
subsidiary or associate company;
shareholding of the director in the
subsidiaries

director

company,

by

its

the

its

and

Mr. Rakesh Kaul is an employee of Issuer and draw
regular salary and compensation.

There are no separate director fees payable.

He does not hold any shares in the Company,
subsidiary or associate
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associate companies on a fully
diluted basis.

Appointment of any relatives to an | None of the relatives of Directors is appointed to office
office or place of profit of the issuer, | or place of profit in Company or its subsidiary
its subsidiary or associate company

Full particulars of the nature and | -NIL
extent of interest, if any, of every
director:

A. in the promotion of the issuer
company; or

B. in any immoveable property
acquired by the issuer company in
the two years preceding the date of
the issue document or any
immoveable property proposed to be
acquired by it; or

C. where the interest of such a
director consists in being a member
of a firm or company, the nature and
extent of his interest in the firm or
company, with a statement of all
sums paid or agreed to be paid to him
or to the firm or company in cash or
shares or otherwise by any person
either to induce him to become, or to
help him qualify as a director, or
otherwise for services rendered by
him or by the firm or company, in
connection with the promotion or
formation of the issuer company
shall be disclosed

Contribution being made by the | NIL
directors as part of the offer or
separately in furtherance of such
objects

5.13 Any financial or other material interest of the directors, promoters, key managerial
personnel or senior management in the offer and the effect of such interest in so far
as it is different from the interests of other persons — Not Applicable

5.14 Following details regarding the auditors of the Company:

(a) Details of the auditor of the Company:

Name of the Auditor Address Date of
appointment

Brahamayya & Co 404, DLF City Court, Sikandarpur, MG May 31, 2022
Road, Gurugram, Haryana-122002.

(b) Details of change in auditor for preceding three financial years and current financial
year:
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Address Date of Date of cessation, Date of

Appointment if applicable resignation, if
applicable

Building No. 10, .
& 8th Floor, Tower- April 07, 2014 NA Septezn(w)t;(;r 30,
Associa | B, DLF Cyber City,
tes Phase — I,
LLP Gurugram -
122002, India
SR 2nd & 3rd Floor, Golf | September 30, NAA September 27,
Batliboi | View  Corporate 2017 2021
& Tower B, Sector
Associa | 42, Gurugram 122
tes LLP | 002
March 31, 2022
, 3d  Floor, 52-B
Haribhak ’ o (Pursuant to RBI
ti & Co. Okhla  Industrial | September 30, Press Release: NA
LLP Area, Phase 3, 2021 2021-2022/1027
New Delhi 110020 dated Oct 12,
2021)
Braham |404, DLF City | May 31, 2022 NA NA
ayya & | Court,
Co. Sikandarpur, MG
Road, Gurugram,
Haryana-122002.

5.15 DETAILS OF THE BORROWING OF THE ISSUER

Details of the following liabilities of the Issuer, as at the end of the last quarter, i.e June 30,
2023, or if available, a later date:

(a) Details of Outstanding Secured Loan Facilities as on the preceding quarter (as on June
30, 2023
Note: All Loan facilities have security on Pari-Pasu basis except facility taken from
NABARD
Cre
Princip Repa el
Name of Amount . Rati
. Availe al yment . Asset
lender Type of Sanction Securit ng, iy
e d Amount date - Classifi
Bank / FI Facility | ed (INR y if .
. Amt Outstan /sche cation
Name in Crore) . appl
ding dule .
icab
le
Bank of Term 200 200 40 Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Baroda Loan y Debts RE d
and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
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Princip Repa

L ELITE 2 et Availe al ment . Asset
lender Type of Sanction y Securit iy
e d Amount date . Classifi
Bank / FI Facility | ed (INR y :
. Amt Outstan /sche cation
Name in Crore) .
ding dule
IDFC First Term 470 470 341.66 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Bank Loan/wcd y Debts RE d
l/lcc and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)

Bank of India Term 75 75 28.13 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Karnataka Term 50 50 25.00 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Bank Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
State Bank of Term 305 305 219.36 |Quarterly Book CA | Standar
India Loan/cc Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Indian Bank Term 195 195 120.52 |Quarterly Book CA | Standar
Loan/cc Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Suryoday Term 44 44 2450 |Quarterly Book CA | Standar
Small Finance Loan Debts RE d
Bank and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
DCB Term 40 40 23.93 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan/cc y Debts RE d
and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)

Bank of Term 200 200 177.72 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Maharashtra Loan y Debts RE d
and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
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Princip Repa

AENTR O (AT Availe al ment ! Asset
lender Type of Sanction y Securit iy
.. d Amount date . Classifi
Bank / FI Facility | ed (INR y :
. Outstan /sche cation
Name in Crore) ding dule
NABARD Term 200 200 110.00 |Quarterl| Book | Acui | Standar
Loan y Debts te d
and A+

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)

Nabsamrudhi Term 48 48 26.72 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Financial Loan y Debts RE d
Services and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Northern Arc Term 220 220 146.25 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta

ables ble)

MAS Financial Term 121.25 121.25 80.94 | Monthl Book CA | Standar

Services Loan y Debts RE d
Limited and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Maanaveeya Term 50 50 25 Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Finance Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Federal Bank Term 250 250 225 Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan/cc/ y Debts RE d
wcdl and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
South Indian Term 60 60 9.58 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Bank Loan/cc y Debts RE d
and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)

JM Finance Term 100 100 17.34 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
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Princip Repa

2 ETD Ej et Availe al ment . Asset
lender Type of Sanction y Securit iy
e d Amount date . Classifi

Bank / FI Facility | ed (INR y :
. Outstan /sche cation

Name in Crore) .
ding dule

ICICI Bank CcC 15 15 0.00 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar

y Debts RE d

and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)

Kisetsu Term 79 79 53.63 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Saison Loan y Debts RE d
Finance and A
(India) Pvt. Receiv | (Sta
Ltd. ables ble)
Utkarsh Small Term 30 30 21.25 | Monthl Book CA | Standar
Finance Bank Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Hinduja Term 50 50 38.51 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Leyland Loan y Debts RE d
Finance Ltd. and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
SIDBI Term 100 100 90.91 Monthl Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Bandhan Bank Term 50 50 46.67 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Cholamandala Term 15 15 13.57 | Monthl Book CA | Standar
m Loan y Debts RE d
and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)

Manappuram Term 40 40 36.2 Monthl Book CA | Standar
Finance Ltd. Loan y Debts RE d
and A

Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
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Princip Repa

2 ETD Ej et Availe al yment Asset
lender Type of Sanction d Amount date Securit Classifi
ElLSUIA 7 ) Gl Amt Outstan /sche y ] cation
Name in Crore) ding dule
Indusind Term 50 50 41.67 | Monthl Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
ABFL Term 25 25 22.50 |Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
CSB Bank Ltd Term 25 25 25 Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta
ables ble)
Canara Bank Term 50 50 50 Quarterl| Book CA | Standar
Loan y Debts RE d
and A
Receiv | (Sta

ables ble)

Global Climate Term 82.02 82.02 82.02 Yearly Book CA | Standar

Partnership Loan Debts RE d
Fund and A
S.A.,SICAV- Receiv | (Sta
SIF ables ble)
(b) Details of Outstanding Unsecured Loan Facilities as on the preceding quarter (as on

June 30, 2023):

Name of lender Type of (L Availed AEEL RGN

o Sanctioned Amount date
e BT el (INR in Crore) - Outstanding Ischedule

Clix Housing Finance

Ltd. TL 10 10 9 17-Feb-23
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(c) Details of Outstanding Non-Convertible Securities as on the preceding quarter (as on
June 30, 2023):

Series of ISIN Tenor / Amount Date Redem Cr |Secure Secur

NCS Maturity Outstandi of ption edi d/ 147

Period in nginCr. Allot Date/ t |Unsec
months ment Schedu Ra | ured
le tin

SES/ZIE)/ INE157D07D 36 10.60% 20 18- 18- CA BSecure | Book
21/08 J6 Sep- | Sep- | RE |d Debt
20 23 A s and
Recei
vable

S
INE157D07D 18 10.10% 6 30- 31- CA BSecure | Book
CCSPL/ R9 Jun- | Dec- | RE |d Debt
DEB/22- 22 23 | A s and
23/01 Recei
vable

S
ggg};;/_ INE157D07D 16 10.00% 50 20- 20- CA |Secur | Book
23/02 S7 Jul-22 | Nov- | RE ed Debt
23 A s and
Recei
vable

S
INE157D07D 24 10.10% | 31.25 16- 16- CA |Secur | Book
CCSPL/ T5 Sep- | Sep- | RE | ed | Debt
DEB/22- 22 24 A s and
vable

S
ggg};;/_ INE157D07D 37 10.66% 35 26- 31- CA |Secur | Book
23/05 U3 Sep- Oct- | RE | ed Debt
22 25 A s and
Recei
vable

S
INE157D07D 18 9.65% 20 29- 29- CA |Secur | Book
CCSPL/ w9 Sep- | Mar- | RE | ed | Debt
DEB/22- 22 24 A s and
vable

S
S(E:S/Zé/ INE157D07D 30 10.25% 25 3- 2- CA |Secur | Book
23/07 X7 Mar- | Sept- | RE | ed Debt
23 25 A s and
Recei
vable

S
INE157D07D 18 2% 49 27- 27- CA |Secur | Book
Y5 Apr- Oct- | RE | ed Debt
23 24 A s and
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Series of ISIN Tenor/ | Coupo Amount Date Redem Cr |Secure Secur

NCS Maturity n Outstandi of ption edi d/ ity

Period in nginCr. Allot Date/ t | Unsec
months ment Schedu Ra | ured
le tin

CCSPL/ Recei
DEB/23- vable

24/01 s
SESIPZIL_’,/ INE157D07D 24 10.15% 35 24- 24- | CA |Secur | Book
24102 Z2 May- | May- | RE | ed Debt
23 25 A s and
Recei
vable

s
INE157D07E 24 10.40% 50 12- 12- | CA |Secur | Book
CCSPL/ A3 Jun- | Jun- | RE | ed | Debt
DEB/23- 23 25 A s and
vable

s
SES/ZI;}/ INE157D0O7E 27 10.10% 50 30- 30- | CA |Secur | Book
24/04 B1 Jun- | Sept- | RE | ed Debt
23 25 A s and
Recei
vable

s

(d)

2023):

Series of

NCS

Amoun
t Date
Coupg Outsta of
n nding  Allot
(in
Crores)

Details of Outstanding commercial papers as on the preceding quarter (as on June 30,

- INE157D 365 [9.6%| 21.90 28- |28-Nov- CARE/Unsecu | NA ICIC
CP 14ED3 Nov- 23 A1 red |
issuance/ 22 Ban
22- k
23/03/1
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- INE157D | 363 |9.65% 15 10- 7-Mar- CARBEUnsecu | NA ICIC
CP 14EE1 Mar- 24 A1 red I
issuance/ 23 Ban
22- k
23/03/2
- INE157D 165 [10.5% 25 17- 29- CAREUnsecu | NA ICIC
CP 14EF8 Apr- |Sept-23 | A1 red I
issuance/ 23 Ban
22- k
23/03/3
- INE157D 179 [10.5% 45 17- |13-Oct- CARHUnsecu | NA ICIC
CP 14EG6 Apr- 23 A1 red I
issuance/ 23 Ban
22- k
23/03/4
- INE157D 126 | 9.9% 25 24- 27- CAREUnsecu | NA ICIC
INE157D 14EH4 May- |Sept-23 | A1 red I
14EH4 23 Ban
k

5.16 List of top 10 holders of non-convertible securities in terms of value as on the
preceding quarter (as on June 30, 2023) (in cumulative basis)

Name of holder Category Face Amount  Principal % of total non-
of holder Value of (in Amount convertible
holding Crores) Outstandi security
ng outstanding
1. UNIFI AIF AlF 100000 50 50 100%
2. IKF FINANCE LIMITED NBFC 100000 45 45 100%
Navy 100%
NAVAL GROUP Insurance
INSURANCE FUND fund 100000 13.72 13.72
4. TIPSONS FINANCIAL Investment 100%
SERVICES PRIVATE Advisors
LIMITED 100000 11.83 11.83
5. NORTHERN ARC NBFC 100%
CAPITAL LIMITED 625000 31.25 31.25
6. IKF HOME FINANCE HFC 100%
LIMITED . 100000 3 3
7. S KFINANCE LIMITED NBFC 100000 2.7 2.7 100%
TWINSTAR LLP 100%
AGENCIES LLP 100000 2.5 25
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9. Listed 100%
Public
UNIPARTS INDIALTD | Company 100000 2.1 2.1
10. | CSB BANK LIMITED Bank 1000000 2 2 100%
PRAKASH COTTON
1. | MILLS PRIVATE CPvt. Ltd. 100%
LIMITED ompany 100000 2 2

5.17 List of top 10 holders of commercial papers in terms of value as on the preceding
quarter (as on June 30, 2023) (in cumulative basis)

Name of holder Category of Face % of total non-
holder Value of convertible
holding security
outstanding
1. The Kangra Central Co-operative Co- 5,00,000 Na
Bank Ltd. operative
Bank
2. The Kangra Central Co-operative Co- 5,00,000 Na
Bank Ltd. operative
Bank
3. Northern Arc Money Market AlF 5,00,000 Na
Alpha Trust
4. Northern Arc Money Market AlF 5,00,000 Na
Alpha Trust
5. Sundaram Finance Ltd. NBFC 5,00,000 Na

5.18 Details of the bank fund based facilities/ rest of the borrowing (if any, including hybrid
debt like Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), Optionally Convertible
Debentures/ Preference Shares) from financial institutions or financial creditors:

No preference shares, hybrid debt or optionally convertible debentures have been issued by
the Company.

5.19 The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the issuer along with
name of the counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, joint venture entity, group
company, etc.) on behalf of whom it has been issued, contingent liability including
debt service reserve account guarantees/ any put option etc.

Nil

5.20 Details of any outstanding borrowing taken / debt securities issued for consideration
other than cash. This information shall be disclosed whether such borrowing / debt
securities have been taken / issued: (i) in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or discount,
or (iii) in pursuance of an option or not:

Nil

5.21 Details of all defaults and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of
term loans, debt securities, commercial paper (including technical delay) and other
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financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee or letters of comfort issued by
the Company, in the preceding 3 (three) years, including the current financial year:

Nil

Where the Issuer is a non-banking finance company or housing finance company, the
following disclosures on Asset Liability Management (ALM) shall be provided for the
latest audited financials:

As set out in Annexure VII hereinbelow.
Financial Information

The audited financial statements (i.e. Profit & Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash
Flow statement) both on a standalone and consolidated basis for a period of three
completed years:

The above financial statements shall be accompanied with the Auditor’s Report along
with the requisite schedules, footnotes, summary etc.

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended 31st March 2023, 31st
March 2022, and 31st March 2021 along with the unaudited financial statements for the
period ended 30th June 2023 are set out in Annexure V hereto.

It shall be noted that the audited financial statements have been certified by the statutory
auditor who holds a valid certificate issued by the peer review board of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

However, if the issuer being a listed REIT/listed InvIT has been in existence for a period
less than three completed years and historical financial statements of such REIT/InvIT
are not available for some portion or the entire portion of the reporting period of three
years and interim period, then the combined financial statements need to be disclosed
for the periods when such historical financial statements are not available.

Not applicable

Listed issuers (whose debt securities or specified securities are listed on recognised
stock exchange(s)) in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, may disclose
unaudited financial information for the stub period in the format as prescribed therein
with limited review report in the General Information Document, as filed with the stock
exchanges, instead of audited financial statements for stub period, subject to making
necessary disclosures in this regard in General Information Document including risk
factors.

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the year ended 31st March 2023, 31st
March 2022, and 31st March 2021 along with the unaudited financial statements for the
period ended 30th June 2023 are set out in Annexure V hereto.

Issuers other than unlisted REITs / unlisted InviTs desirous of issuing debt securities
on private placement basis and who are in existence for less than three years may
disclose financial statements mentioned at (a) above for such period of existence,
subject to the following conditions:

(i) The issue is made on the EBP platform irrespective of the issue size; and

(i) The issue is open for subscription only to Qualified Institutional Buyers.
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5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32
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Not Applicable as the Issuer has been in existence for a period of more that 3 (three) years
prior to the date of this General Information Document.

Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/
credit quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/ promoters,
tax litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc.) at the
time of Issue which may affect the Issue or the investor’s decision to invest / continue
to invest in the non-convertible securities / commercial papers.

The Issuer hereby declares that there has been no material event, development or change
on the financials/credit quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the
Issuer/promoters, tax litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event
etc.) at the time of issue, which may affect the Issue or the Investor's decision to invest/
continue to invest in the debt securities of the Issuer.

Any litigation or legal action pending or taken by a Government Department or a
statutory body or a regulatory body during the last three years immediately preceding
the year of the issue of prospectus against the promoter of the Company

Not Applicable

Details of default and non-payment of statutory dues for the preceding three financial
years and current financial year

Not Applicable

Details of pending litigation involving the issuer, promoter, director, subsidiaries,
group companies or any other person, whose outcome could have material adverse
effect on the financial position of the issuer, which may affect the issue or the
investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest in the debt securities and/or non-
convertible redeemable preference shares.

Not applicable

Details of acts of material frauds committed against the Company in the preceding 3
(three) financial years and current financial year, if any, and if so, the action taken by
the Company

Not Applicable

Details of pending proceedings initiated against the Company for economic offences,
if any

Not Applicable

Consent of directors, auditors, bankers to issue, trustees, solicitors or advocates to
the issue, legal advisors to the issue, lead managers to the issue, Registrar to the
Issue, and lenders (if required, as per the terms of the agreement) and experts.

This has been procured to the extent applicable.

The name(s) of the debentures trustee(s) shall be mentioned with statement to the
effect that debenture trustee(s) has given its consent for appointment along with copy
of the consent letter from the debenture trustee.

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Details of credit rating along with reference to the rating letter issued (not older than
one month on the date of opening of the issue) by the rating agencies in relation to the
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issue shall be disclosed. The detailed press release of the Credit Rating Agencies
along with rating rationale(s) adopted (not older than one year on the date of opening
of the issue) shall also be disclosed.

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document /
letter with similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document
does not contain detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee
and receipt of payment by the investor along with timelines), the same shall be
disclosed in the General Information Document.

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Disclosure of Cash flow with date of interest/dividend/ redemption payment as per day
count convention

The day count convention for dates on which the payments in relation to the non-
convertible securities which need to be made:

Coupon and all other charges shall accrue based on actual/actual day count convention in
accordance with Chapter Ill (Day count convention, disclosure of cash flows and other
disclosures in the offer document) of the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/
2023/119 dated August 10, 2021 on "Master Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible
Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and
Commercial Paper", as may be amended and modified from time to time;

Procedure and time schedule for allotment and issue of securities:

Please refer to the column on “Issue Timing” under Section 5.38 (Issue Details) of this
General Information Document; and

Cash flows emanating from the non-convertible securities shall be mentioned in the
General Information Document, by way of an illustration:

The cashflows emanating from the Non-Convertible Securities, by way of an illustration, are
set out in the respective Key Information Document.

Name(s) of the stock exchange(s) where the non-convertible securities are proposed
to be listed and the details of their in-principle approval for listing obtained from these
stock exchange(s). If non-convertible securities are proposed to be listed on more than
one stock exchange(s) then the issuer shall specify the designated stock exchange
for the issue. The issuer shall specify the stock exchange where the recovery expense
fund is being/has been created as specified by the Board:

The Non-Convertible Securities are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of the BSE
and / or NSE. The Issuer shall comply with the requirements of the listing agreement for debt
securities to the extent applicable to it on a continuous basis.

The Issuer has obtained the in-principle approval for the listing of the Non-Convertible
Securities from NSE and the same is annexed in Annexure VI hereto. The Issuer shall also
be creating the recovery expense fund prescribed as per the SEBI Debenture Trustees
Circular and relevant applicable SEBI regulations with NSE.

The Non-Convertible Securities are not proposed to be listed on more than one stock
exchange.

Other details:
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Creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve (“DRR”) — relevant legislations and
applicability:

(i) The Company hereby agrees and undertakes that, if required under Applicable Law,
it will create a debenture redemption reserve (“DRR”) in accordance with the
provisions of the Act (and the rules and regulations made thereunder) and the
guidelines issued by the relevant Governmental Authorities.

(i) If any guidelines are formulated (or modified or revised) by any Governmental
Authority in respect of creation of the DRR prior to the Final Settlement Date, then
the Company shall comply with such guidelines and shall do all deeds, acts and
things as may be required by the Debenture Trustee in respect of the creation and
maintenance of the DRR.

(iii) Where applicable, the Company shall submit to the Debenture Trustee a certificate
duly certified by a chartered accountant certifying that the Company has transferred
the required amount to the DRR at the end of each Financial Year.

(iv) In addition to the above, to the extent required by Applicable Law, the Company
shall, in any Financial Year, in respect of any amounts of the Non-Convertible
Securities maturing in such Financial Year, invest or deposit amounts up to such
thresholds as may be prescribed by Applicable Law and in such form and manner
as prescribed therein and within the time periods prescribed therein.

Issue / instrument specific regulations — relevant details (Companies Act, Reserve
Bank of India guidelines etc.):

The Issue of Non-Convertible Securities shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act including the relevant notified rules thereunder, the SEBI NCS
Regulations, the SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular, the LODR Regulations the NBFC
Directions, the NCD Issuance Directions and the applicable guidelines and directions issued
by the RBI and SEBI.

Default in payment:

Please refer to the terms and conditions of the Non-Convertible Securities set out in Section
5.38 (Issue Details) of this General Information Document.

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Delay in listing:

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to time, read together with
the requirements in respect of the timelines for listing of debt securities issued on a private
placement basis prescribed in Chapter VIl (Standardization of timelines for listing of securities
issued on a private placement basis) of the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/
2023/119 dated August 10, 2021 on “Master Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible
Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments, Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and
Commercial Paper’ (as amended and modified from time to time), the Issuer confirms that in
the event there is any delay in listing a of the Non-Convertible Securities beyond (T+3)
working days, wherein “T” shall be referred to the issue closing date, the Company will (i) pay
to the Debenture Holders, penal interest of 1% (one percent) per annum over the Interest
Rate, from the date of allotment of the Non-Convertible Securities until the listing of the Non-
Convertible Securities is completed; and (ii) be permitted to utilise the issue proceeds of its
2 (two) subsequent privately placed issuances of securities only after receiving final listing
approval from the stock exchange(s).
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Delay in allotment of securities:

0] The lIssuer shall ensure that the Non-Convertible Securities are allotted to the
respective Debenture Holders and are credited into the demat accounts of the
relevant Debenture Holders within the timelines prescribed under the SEBI Listing
Timelines Requirements.

(i) If the Issuer fails to allot the Non-Convertible Securities to the Applicants within 60
(sixty) calendar days from the date of receipt of the Application Monies (“Allotment
Period”), it shall repay the Application Monies to the Applicants within 15 (fifteen)
calendar days from the expiry of the Allotment Period (“Repayment Period”).

(iii) If the Issuer fails to repay the Application Monies within the Repayment Period, then
Issuer shall be liable to repay the Application Monies along with interest at the
applicable Interest Rate or 12% (twelve percent) per annum, whichever is higher,
from the expiry of the Allotment Period.

Issue details:
Please refer to Section 5.38 (/ssue Details) of this General Information Document.
Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in Section 8 of this General Information
Document.

Disclosure prescribed under PAS-4 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities), Rules, 2014 but not contained in this schedule, if any:

All disclosures under Form No. PAS-4 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities), Rules, 2014 have been set out in Section 10.

Project details: gestation period of the project; extent of progress made in the project;
deadlines for completion of the project; the summary of the project appraisal report (if
any), schedule of implementation of the project:

Not applicable

A statement containing particulars of the dates of, and parties to all material contracts,
agreements:

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business
carried on by the Company or entered into more than 2 (Two) years before the date of this
General Information Document, which are or may be deemed material, have been entered
into by the Company.

The contracts and documents referred to hereunder are material to the Issue, may be
inspected at the Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am to 4.00 pm on working
days.

S. No. ‘ Nature of Contract
1. Certified true copy of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Issuer.

Copy of the resolution passed by the board of directors of the Company dated July
26, 2023 authorizing the issuance of the debentures. In case of any further
resolution passed by the Issuer in relation to the subject (as shall be required) shall
be annexed in the relevant Key Information Document from time to time.
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5.38

S. No. ‘

3.

Nature of Contract

Board Resolution authorizing the respective Tranche/lssuance of Debentures
offered under the terms of this Key Information Document shall be as more
particularly as set out in the relevant Key Information Document, from time to time.

Since the current issuance does not exceed the limit set out under Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, and given the Company is a private limited
company, the shareholders resolution under Section 42 of the Act is not required
for the purpose of issue of Debentures.

Copies of Annual Reports of the Company for the last three financial years.

Credit rating letter from the Rating Agent dated October 13, 2023, read along with
the rating rationale from the Rating Agent along with detailed press release dated
June 27, 2023, for the first issuance under this General Information Document. The
credit rating for the subsequent Tranche / Issuances of the Non-Convertible
Securities shall be as more particularly as set out in the relevant Key Information
Document, as shall be issued from time to time.

Letter from debenture trustee dated October 10, 2023, giving its consent to act as
Debenture Trustee, for the firstissuance under this General Information Document,
a copy of which is set out in Annexure Il of this General Information Document.
The debenture trustee consent letter for the subsequent Tranche / Issuances of
the Debentures shall be as more particularly as set out in the relevant Key
Information Document, as shall be issued from time to time.

Letter from the Registrar and Transfer Agent dated October 10, 2023, giving its
consent to act as the Registrar and Transfer Agent, for the first issuance under this
General Information Document. The consent letter from the Registrar and Transfer
Agent for the subsequent Tranche / Issuances of the Debentures shall be as more
particularly as set out in the relevant Key Information Document, as shall be issued
from time to time.

Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Company.

10.

Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the Registrar
& Transfer Agent and the NSDL/CDSL.

11.

Copy of application made to NSE for grant of in-principle approval for listing of Non-
Convertible Securities.

12.

Relevant Tranche/lssuance Debenture Trustee Agreement to be executed by the
Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.

13.

Relevant Tranche/lssuance Debenture Trust Deed to be executed by the Issuer
and the Debenture Trustee.

14.

Relevant Tranche/lssuance Deed of Hypothecation(s) to be executed by the Issuer
and the Debenture Trustee.

15.

Any other document as deemed relevant and applicable.

16.

Merchant Banking engagement letter dated October 09, 2023 signed between Clix
Capital Services Private Limited and Credavenue Securities Private Limited

Issue Details applicable for this first issuance of the Debentures under the General
Information Document. The issue details of the subsequent issuance of the relevant
Non-Convertible Securities shall be set out in the relevant Key Information Document
that shall be issued from time to time.

(Name

securities which includes Coupon /
dividend,
maturity year)

Security Name As specified in the relevant Key Information

of the non-convertible | Document.

Issuer Name and
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and timeline for listing)

Issuer Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Type of Instrument As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Nature of Instrument (Secured or | As specified in the relevant Key Information

Unsecured) Document.

Seniority (Senior or subordinated) | As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Eligible Investors As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Listing (name of stock As specified in the relevant Key Information

Exchange(s) where it will be listed | Document.

The Issuer shall submit all duly completed documents to the NSE, SEBI, ROC or any other

Governmental Authority, as are required under Applicable Law and procure permission for
listing of the Non-Convertible Securities from the Stock Exchange within (T+3) working days,
wherein “T” shall be referred to the issue closing date (“Listing Period”) of the relevant

Tranche / Issuance of Debentures.

The Issuer shall ensure that the Non-Convertible Securities continue to be listed on the

wholesale debt market segment of the BSE and / or NSE (as relevant and applicable).

Rating of Instrument As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Minimum Subscription As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Option to retain oversubscription (Amount) | As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Objects of the Issue / Purpose for which | As specified in the relevant Key Information

there is requirement of funds Document.

In case the issuer is a NBFC and the | As specified in the relevant Key Information

objects of the issue entail loan to any entity | Document.

who is a ‘group company’ then disclosures

shall be made in the prescribed format:

Details of the utilization of the Proceeds As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Coupon Rate As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Step Up Coupon Rate As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Coupon Payment Frequency As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Coupon Payment Dates As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Coupon Type (Fixed, floating or other As specified in the relevant Key Information

structure) Document.
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Coupon Reset Process (including rates,
spread, effective date, interest rate cap
and floor etc.)

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Day Count Basis (Actual / Actual)

Actual / Actual.

The Coupon (if any) shall be computed on the
basis of actual number of days elapsed in a
year, for this purpose a year shall comprise of
a period of 365 (Three Hundred and Sixty-
Five) days.

In case of a leap year, if 29" February of the
relevant leap year falls during the Tenor of the
Non-Convertible Securities, then the number
of days shall be reckoned as 366 (Three
Hundred and Sixty-Six) days for the one-year
period.

Interest on Application Monies

As specified in the relevant Key Information

Document.

Public & Non Confidential Information

Default Interest Rate As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Tenor As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Redemption Date / Maturity Date As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Redemption Amount As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Early Redemption/ As specified in the relevant Key Information

Mandatory Redemption Document.

Early Redemption Date/ Mandatory As specified in the relevant Key Information

Redemption Document.

Early Redemption Notice As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Voluntary Redemption As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Redemption Premium/ Discount As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Issue Price As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Discount at which security is issued and As specified in the relevant Key Information

the effective yield as a result of such Document.

discount

Premium / Discount at which security is As specified in the relevant Key Information

redeemed and the effective yield as a Document.

result of such premium / discount
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Put Date As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Put Price As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Call Date As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Call Price As specified in the relevant Key Information

Document.

Put Notification Time (Timelines by which
the investor need to intimate Issuer before
exercising the put)

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Call Notification Time (Timelines by which
the Issuer need to intimate investor before
exercising the call)

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Face Value

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Minimum Application and in multiples of
thereafter

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

1)
2)
3)

4)
o)

Issue Timing

Issue Opening Date
Issue Closing Date

Date of earliest closing of the Issue,
if any

Pay-in Date

Deemed Date of Allotment

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Settlement mode of the Instrument

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Depositories

NSDL and CDSL

Disclosure of Interest / Dividend /
Redemption Dates

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Record Date

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

All covenants of the issue (including side
letters, accelerated payment clause, etc.)

Representations and Warranties

As shall be more particularly set out in the
respective Key Information Document.

Affirmative Covenants

As shall be more particularly set out in the
respective Key Information Document.

Negative Covenants

As shall be more particularly set out in the
respective Key Information Document.
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Reporting Covenants

As shall be more particularly set out in the
respective Key Information Document.

Financial Covenants

As shall be more particularly set out in the
respective Key Information Document.

Description regarding Security (where
applicable) including type of security
(movable / immovable / tangible etc.), type
of charge (pledge / hypothecation /
mortgage etc.), date of creation of security
/ likely date of creation of security,
minimum security cover, revaluation,
replacement of security, interest to the
debenture holder over and above the
coupon rate as specified in the Trust Deed
and disclosed in the General Information
Document.

In respect of those Debentures which are
issued as Secured Debentures:

Type of security and charge: As specified in
the relevant Key Information Document.

Date of creation of security/likely date of
creation of security: Prior to the listing of the
relevant Tranche/lssuance of Secured
Debentures

Minimum security cover: As specified in the
relevant Key Information Document.

Replacement of security: As specified in the
relevant Key Information Document.

Revaluation of security: As specified in the
relevant Key Information Document.

Interest to the Debenture Holder over and
above the Coupon rate: As specified in the
relevant Key Information Document.

Transaction Documents

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Conditions Precedent to Disbursement

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Conditions Subsequent to Disbursement

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Events of Default (including manner Of
voting /conditions of joining Inter Creditor
Agreement)

As shall be more particularly set out in the
respective Key Information Document.

Creation of recovery expense fund

Details and purpose of the recovery expense
fund

(a) The Issuer shall create and maintain
the Recovery Expense Fund up to the
amounts prescribed under the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Circular, in
accordance with and within the
timelines prescribed in the Chapter IV
of the SEBI Debenture Trustees
Circular. The Issuer proposing to list
debt securities shall deposit an
amount equal to 0.01% of the
Tranche/lssuance issue size of the
Secured Debentures subject to
maximum of INR 25,00,000/- (Indian
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Rupees Twenty-Five Lakhs only) per
issuer towards the recovery expense
fund with the ‘Designated Stock
Exchange’, pursuant to the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Circular, as may
be amended from time to time.

(b) The Recovery Expense Fund shall be
created to enable the Debenture
Trustee to take prompt action in
relation to the enforcement of the
Security in accordance with the
Transaction Documents.

(c) The amounts in the Recovery
Expense Fund shall be utilised in the
manner as may be prescribed by the
Debenture Holders by a Special
Resolution duly passed at the
meeting of the Debenture Holders
held in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Transaction
Documents.

(d) On the occurrence of an Event of
Default, if the Security is proposed to
be enforced, the Debenture Trustee
shall follow the procedure set out in
the SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular
for utilisation of the Recovery
Expense Fund.

Conditions for breach of covenants (as As shall be more particularly set out in the
Specified in the relevant respective Key Information Document.
Tranche/lssuance Debenture Trust Deed)

Provisions related to Cross Default Clause | As specified in the relevant Key Information

Document.
Role and Responsibilities of Debenture The Debenture Trustee shall comply with all
Trustee its roles and responsibilities as prescribed

under Applicable Law and the Transaction

Documents, including:

(a) the Debenture Trustee may, in
relation to the relevant
Tranche/lssuance Debenture Trust
Deed and other Transaction
Documents, act on the opinion or
advice of or any information obtained
from any solicitor, counsel, advocate,
valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer,
qualified accountant or other expert
whether obtained by the Issuer or by
the Debenture Trustee or otherwise;

(b) subject to the approval of the
Debenture Holders by way of a
Special Resolution passed at a
meeting of the Debenture Holders
held for determining the liability of the
Debenture Trustee, the Debenture
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(c)

(e)

Trustee shall, as regards all trusts,
powers, authorities and discretions,
have the discretion as to the exercise
thereof and to the mode and time of
exercise thereof. In the absence of
any fraud, gross negligence, willful
misconduct or breach of trust the
Debenture Trustee shall not be
responsible for any loss, costs,
charges, expenses or inconvenience
that may result from the
aforementioned exercise or non-
exercise thereof. The Debenture
Trustee shall not be bound to act at
the request or direction of the
Debenture Holders under any
provisions of the Transaction
Documents unless sufficient amounts
shall have been provided or provision
to the satisfaction of the Debenture
Trustee has been made for providing
such amounts and the Debenture
Trustee is indemnified to its
satisfaction against all further costs,
charges, expenses and liability which
may be incurred in complying with
such request or direction;

with a view to facilitating any dealing
under any provisions of the relevant
Tranche/lssuance Debenture Trust
Deed or the other Transaction
Documents, subject to the Debenture
Trustee obtaining the consent of the
Majority Debenture Holders, the
Debenture Trustee shall have (i) the
power to consent (where such
consent is required) to a specified
transaction or class of transactions
(with or without specifying additional
conditions); and (ii) to determine all
questions and doubts arising in
relation to the interpretation or
construction any of the provisions of
the relevant Tranche/lssuance
Debenture Trust Deed;

the Debenture Trustee shall not be
responsible for the amounts paid by
the Applicants for the Debentures;

the Debenture Trustee shall not be
responsible for acting upon any
resolution purporting to have been
passed at any meeting of the
Debenture Holders in respect
whereof minutes have been made
and signed even though it may
subsequently be found that there was
some defect in the constitution of the
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(h)

meeting or the passing of the
resolution or that for any reason the
resolution was not valid or binding
upon the Debenture Holders;

the Debenture Trustee and each
receiver, attorney, manager, agent or
other person appointed by it shall,
subject to the provisions of the Act, be
entitted to be indemnified by the
Issuer in respect of all liabilities and
expenses incurred by them in the
execution or purported execution of
the powers and trusts thereof;

subject to the approval of the
Debenture Holder(s) by way of a
Special Resolution passed at a
meeting of Debenture Holder(s) held
for determining the liability of the
Debenture Trustee and in the
absence of fraud, gross negligence,
willful misconduct or breach of trust,
the Debenture Trustee shall not be
liable for any of its actions or deeds in
relation to the Transaction
Documents;

subject to the approval of the
Debenture Holder(s) by way of
Special Resolution passed at a
meeting of Debenture Holders held
for determining the liability of the
Debenture Trustee and in the
absence of fraud, gross negligence,
willful misconduct or breach of trust,
the Debenture Trustee, shall not be
liable for any default, omission or
delay in performing or exercising any
of the powers or trusts herein
expressed or contained herein or in
enforcing the covenants contained
herein or in giving notice to any
person of the execution hereof or in
taking any other steps which may be
necessary, expedient or desirable or
for any loss or injury which may be
occasioned by reason thereof unless
the Debenture Trustee shall have
been previously requested by notice
in writing to perform, exercise or do
any of such steps as aforesaid given
in writing by the Majority Debenture
Holder(s) or by a Majority Resolution
duly passed at a meeting of the
Debenture Holders. The Debenture
Trustee shall not be bound to act at
the request or direction of the
Debenture Holders under any
provisions of the Transaction
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(i)

(k)

Documents unless sufficient amounts
shall have been provided or provision
to the satisfaction of the Debenture
Trustee has been made for providing
such amounts and the Debenture
Trustee is indemnified to its
satisfaction against all further costs,
charges, expenses and liability which
may be incurred in complying with
such request or direction;

notwithstanding anything contained to
the contrary in the relevant
Tranche/lssuance Debenture Trust
Deed, the Debenture Trustee shall
before taking any action on behalf of
the Debenture Holders or providing
any consent on behalf of the
Debenture Holders, obtain the written
consent of the Majority Debenture
Holders;

the Debenture Trustee shall forward
to the Debenture Holders copies of
any information or documents from
the Issuer pursuant to the relevant
Tranche/lssuance Debenture Trust
Deed within 2 (two) Business Days of
receiving such information or
document from the Issuer; and

the Debenture Trustee shall, until the
Final Settlement Date, adhere to and
comply with its obligations and
responsibilities under the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Circular.

Risk factors pertaining to the issue

Please refer to Section 3 (Risk Factors) of this
General Information Document

Governing Law

As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Additional Disclosures (Security Creation)

As specified in the relevant Key Information

Document.
Additional  Disclosures  (Default in | As specified in the relevant Key Information
Payment) Document.
Additional Disclosures (Delay in Listing) (a) In accordance with the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021 as amended from
time to time, read together with the
requirements in respect of the
timelines for listing of debt securities
issued on a private placement
basis prescribed in Chapter VI
(Standardization of timelines for
listing of securities issued on a private
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Note:

placement basis) of the SEBI circular
no.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/1
19 dated August 10, 2021 on "Master
Circular for issue and listing of Non-
convertible Securities, Securitised
Debt Instruments, Security Receipts,
Municipal Debt  Securities and
Commercial Paper" (as amended and
modified from time to time), the Issuer
confirms that In the event there is any
delay in listing of the Non-Convertible
Securities beyond the Listing Period,
the Issuer will pay to the Debenture
Holders, penal interest of 1% (one
percent) per annum over the Interest
Rate, from the date of allotment the
Non-Convertible Securities until the
listing of the Non-Convertible
Securities is completed; and

(b) be permitted to utlise the issue
proceeds of its 2 (two) subsequent
privately placed issuances of
securities only after receiving final
listing approval from the stock
exchange(s).

In the event there is any delay in listing of the Debentures beyond (T+3) working days,
wherein “T” shall be referred to the issue closing date of the relevant issuance of the
Debenture, the Issuer will:

(i) pay to the Debenture Holders, penal interest of 1% (one percent) per annum over
the Interest Rate, from the date of allotment of the Debentures until the listing of the
Debentures is completed; and

(i) be permitted to utilise the issue proceeds of its 2 (two) subsequent privately placed
issuances of securities only after receiving final listing approval from the stock
exchange(s).

If there is any change in Coupon Rate pursuant to any event including lapse of certain time
period or downgrade in rating, then such new Coupon Rate and events which lead to such
change should be disclosed.

The list of documents which has been executed in connection with the issue and subscription
of debt securities shall be annexed.

While the Secured Debentures are secured to the tune of at least 100% (One Hundred
percent) of the principal and interest amount or as per the terms of General Information
Document, in favour of Debenture Trustee, it is the duty of the Debenture Trustee to monitor
that the security is maintained.

The Issuer shall provide granular disclosures in the relevant Key Information Document, with

regards to the “Object of the Issue” including the percentage of the issue proceeds earmarked
for each of the “object of the issue”.
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As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

5. Future Borrowings

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
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SECTION 6: DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

The following disclosures shall be made if the issuer or its promoter or director is declared wilful
defaulter:

(A) Name of the bank declaring the entity as a Wilful Defaulter: Nil

(B) The year in which the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: Nil

(©) Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: Nil
(D) Name of the entity declared as a Wilful Defaulter: Nil

(E) Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters: Nil

(F) Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the Issuer in order to enable investors to take
informed decisions: Nil

(G) Any other disclosure as specified by SEBI: Nil
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7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

SECTION 7: TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS AND KEY TERMS

Transaction Documents

The following documents shall be executed in relation to the Issue (“Transaction
Documents”):

(@)

(e)

Debenture Trustee Agreement, each of the agreements executed / to be executed
by and between the Debenture Trustee and the lIssuer for the purposes of
appointment of the Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee in connection with
the issuance of the respective Tranche/lssuance of the Debentures. (“Debenture
Trustee Agreement”);

Debenture Trust Deed, each of the trust deeds executed / to be executed by and
between the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer which will set out the terms upon
which the respective Tranche/lssuance of the Debentures are being issued and shall
include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided by the
Issuer. (“Debenture Trust Deed”);

Deed of Hypothecation shall mean each of the unattested / attested deeds of
hypothecation dated on or around the date of the relevant Debenture Trust Deed to
create a charge over the Hypothecated Assets or such other assets as shall be
specified for the respective Tranche / Issuance of Debentures (if applicable), to be
executed between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee to secure the Debenture
Obligations in relation to the respective Tranche / Issuance of the Secured
Debentures. (“Deed of Hypothecation”);

Deed of Corporate Guarantee shall mean the deed of corporate guarantee dated on
or around the date of the Debenture Trust Deed to be executed by the Guarantor in
favour of the Debenture Trustee to provide an unconditional and irrevocable
corporate guarantee (“Deed of Corporate Guarantee”), to the extent applicable;
and

Such other documents as agreed between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee for
each of the respective issuance and as shall be set out in the relevant Key
Information Document.

Representations and Warranties of the Issuer

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
NEGATIVE COVENANTS

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
REPORTING COVENANTS

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
FINANCIAL COVENANTS

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT
As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

CONSEQUENCES OF AN EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
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SECTION 8: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Non-Convertible Securities being offered as part of the Issue are subject to the provisions of the
Act, the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this General Information
Document, Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the
Transaction Documents.

8.1 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferable freely; however, it is clarified that no Investor shall be entitled
to transfer the Debentures to a person who is not entitled to subscribe to the Debentures. The
Debenture(s) shall be transferred and/or transmitted in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Act and other applicable laws. The Debentures held in dematerialized form shall be transferred
subject to and in accordance with the rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL and CDSL and the
relevant DPs of the transferor or transferee and any other applicable laws and rules notified in respect
thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer formalities are completed prior to the
Record Date. In the absence of the same, amounts due will be paid/redemption will be made to the
person, whose name appears in the Register of Debenture Holders maintained by the Registrar and
Transfer Agent as on the Record Date, under all circumstances. In cases where the transfer
formalities have not been completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the transferees would need
to be settled with the transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal procedure followed for transfer
of securities held in dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer of these Debentures held in
dematerialised form. The seller should give delivery instructions containing details of the buyer’'s DP
account to his DP.

8.2 Non-Convertible Securities held in Dematerialised Form

The Non-Convertible Securities shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the
part of the Non-Convertible Securities Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption
proceeds will be paid by cheque/EFT/RTGS to those Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on
the list of beneficiaries maintained by the Registrar and Transfer Agent. The names would be as per
the Registrar and Transfer Agent’s records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption.
All such Non-Convertible Securities will be simultaneously redeemed through appropriate debit
corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the relevant Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name
and account number, address, bank details and DP’s identification number will be given by the R&T
Agent to the Issuer. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation
by EFT/RTGS to the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments.

8.3 Sharing of Information

The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to applicable laws, use on its own, as well as exchange,
share or part with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available with the
Issuer, with its subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus,
agencies, statutory bodies, as may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries and affiliates
nor their agents shall be liable for use of the aforesaid information.

8.4 Non-Convertible Securities Holder not a Shareholder
The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other than
those available to them under the Act. The Non-Convertible Securities shall not confer upon the

Debenture Holders the right to receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of
the shareholders of the Issuer.
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8.5 Modification of Non-Convertible Securities

The Debenture Trustee and the Issuer will agree to make any modifications in the General Information
Document which, in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee, is of a formal, minor or technical nature or
is to correct a manifest error.

Any other change or modification to the terms of the Non-Convertible Securities shall require approval
by the Majority Debenture Holders.

8.6 Right to accept or reject Applications

The Board of Directors/Committee of Directors reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to
accept or reject any application for subscription to the Non-Convertible Securities, in part or in full,
without assigning any reason thereof.

8.7 Notices

Any notice in respect of the Non-Convertible Securities may be served by the Issuer upon the
Debenture Trustee/Debenture Holders in accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents.

8.8 Issue Procedure

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder may apply for the Non-Convertible Securities by
completing the Application Form in the prescribed format in block letters in English as per the
instructions contained therein. The minimum number of Non-Convertible Securities that can be
applied for and the multiples thereof shall be set out in the Application Form. No application can be
made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application Forms should be duly completed in all respects and
applications not completed in the said manner are liable to be rejected. The name of the applicant’s
bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by the applicant. This is required
for the applicant’'s own safety and these details will be printed on the refund orders and /or
redemptions warrants.

The final subscription to the Non-Convertible Securities shall be made by the Eligible Investors
through the electronic book mechanism as prescribed by SEBI under the EBP Guidelines by placing
bids on the electronic book platform during the Issue period. In case the Eligible Investors are not
registered on the EBP Platform, they will have to register themselves as investor on the said platform
(as a one-time exercise) and also complete the mandatory KYC verification process. The Eligible
Investors should also refer to the operational guidelines of the EBP in this respect. The disclosures
required pursuant to the EBP Guidelines are set out hereinbelow:

Details of size of issue including green | Base Issue Size - As specified in the relevant Key

shoe option, if any and a range within | Information Document.

Wh'c.h green shoe may be retained (if Green shoe option — As specified in the relevant Key

applicable) .
Information Document.

Bid opening and closing date Bid opening date: As specified in the relevant Key
Information Document.
Bid closing date: As specified in the relevant Key
Information Document.

Minimum Bid Lot As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Manner of bidding in the Issue As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Manner of allotment in the Issue As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.
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Manner of settlement in the Issue As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Settlement Cycle As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

8.9 Process flow of settlement:

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
8.10  Application Procedure

Potential Investors will be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in the
General Information Document during the period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue
Closing Date (both dates inclusive). The Issuer reserves the right to change the issue schedule
including the Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any reasons. The Issue
will be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the
Issue Schedule, and the procedure will be subject to the EBP Guidelines.

8.11 Fictitious Applications

All fictitious applications will be rejected.

8.12  Basis of Allotment

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, the Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any
application, in part or in full, without assigning any reason. In case of over subscription, allotment
shall be made on a "price time priority basis" in accordance with the EBP Guidelines. The investors
will be required to remit the funds in the account of the clearing corporation of the NSE Limited as
well as submit the duly completed Application Form along with other necessary documents to the
Issuer by the Deemed Date of Allotment.

8.13 Payment Instructions

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

8.14  Eligible Investors

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

8.15 Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

(a) The applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DP’s of NSDL and
CDSL prior to making the application.

(b) The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account number
and DP - ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for Issue of Non-
Convertible Securities in Electronic/Dematerialised Form”.

(c) Non-Convertible Securities allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant’s
respective beneficiary account(s) with the DP.

(d) For subscribing to the Non-Convertible Securities, names in the Application Form should be
identical to those appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the
names should necessarily be in the same sequence as they appear in the account details
maintained with the DP.

(e) Non-transferable allotment advice/refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by the
Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue.
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(f) If incomplete/incorrect details are given under the heading “Details for Issue of Non-
Convertible Securities in Electronic/Dematerialised Form” in the Application Form, it will be
deemed to be an incomplete application and the same may be held liable for rejection at the
sole discretion of the Issuer.

(9) For allotment of Non-Convertible Securities, the address, nomination details and other details
of the applicant as registered with his/her DP shall be used for all correspondence with the
applicant. The applicant is therefore responsible for the correctness of his/her demographic
details given in the Application Form vis-a-vis those with his/her DP. In case the information
is incorrect or insufficient, the Issuer would not be liable for the losses, if any.

(h) The redemption amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders whose
names appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record
Date. In case of those Non-Convertible Securities for which the beneficial owner is not
identified in the records of the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep in
abeyance the payment of the redemption amount or other benefits, until such time that the
beneficial owner is identified by the R&T Agent and conveyed to the Issuer, whereupon the
redemption amount and benefits will be paid to the beneficiaries, as identified.

8.16  Depository Arrangements

The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with CDSL and NSDL for issue and holding of
Debenture in dematerialised form.

8.17 List of Beneficiaries

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each Record
Date. This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monies.

8.18  Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with
the names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and the tax
exemption certificate/document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of
the completed Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority
should be notified to the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address(es)
as may be specified by the Issuer from time to time through a suitable communication.

In case of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or authority, a
certified true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along
with other constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making
the application, failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or
reject any application in whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.
Names and specimen signatures of all the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the
submission of the completed Application Form.

8.19  Procedure for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In case of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must be
made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund/venture capital fund registered with the
SEBI and such applications will not be treated as multiple application, provided that the application
made by the asset management company/trustee/custodian clearly indicated their intention as to the
scheme for which the application has been made.

The Application Forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which
application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of:

(a) SEBI registration certificate
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(b) Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instructions
(c) Specimen signature of authorized signatories
8.20 Documents to be provided by Investors

Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable:

(a) Memorandum and Articles of Association or other constitutional documents
(b) Resolution authorising investment

(c) Certified true copy of the Power of Attorney to custodian

(d) Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

(e) SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)

(f) Copy of PAN card

(9) Application Form (including EFT/RTGS details)

8.21  Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant
and the magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct credit of
redemption amount and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s) through
cheque/EFT/RTGS.

8.22 Succession

In the event of winding up of a Debenture Holder (being a company), the Issuer will recognise the
legal representative as having title to the Debenture(s). The Issuer shall not be bound to recognize
such legal representative as having title to the Debenture(s), unless they obtains legal representation,
from a court in India having jurisdiction over the matter.

The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of such legal
representation, in order to recognise any person as being entitled to the Debenture(s) standing in the
name of the concerned Debenture Holder on the production of sufficient documentary proof and an
indemnity.

8.23 Mode of Payment

All payments must be made through cheque(s) demand draft(s), EFT/RTGS as set out in the
Application Form.

8.24 Effect of Holidays
(a) If any Due Date on which any interest or additional interest is payable falls on a day which is

not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be made on the
succeeding Business Day.

(b) If any Due Date on which any Outstanding Face Value are payable falls on a day which is
not a Business Day, the payment to be made on such Due Date shall be made on the
preceding Business Day.

(c) If the Final Redemption Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day, the payment of any
amounts in respect of any interest and the Outstanding Face Value to be made shall be made
on the preceding Business Day.
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8.25 Tax Deduction at Source

(a) All payments to be made by the Company to the Debenture Holders under the Transaction
Documents shall be made free and clear of and without any Tax Deduction unless the
Company is required to make a Tax Deduction pursuant to Applicable Law.

(b) The Company shall promptly upon becoming aware that it must make a Tax Deduction (or
that there is any change in the rate or the basis of a Tax Deduction) notify the Debenture
Trustee accordingly.

(c) If the Company is required to make a Tax Deduction, it shall make that Tax Deduction and
any payment required in connection with that Tax Deduction within the time allowed and in
the minimum amount required by Applicable Law.

(d) Within the earlier of (A) 60 (sixty) days of making either a Tax Deduction or any payment
required in connection with that Tax Deduction or (B) 60 (sixty) days of each Due Date, the
Company shall deliver to the Debenture Trustee evidence reasonably satisfactory to the
Debenture Trustee that the Tax Deduction has been made or (as applicable) any appropriate
payment paid to the relevant taxing authority.

8.26 Letters of Allotment

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time to time, read together with the requirements in
respect of the timelines for listing of debt securities issued on a private placement basis prescribed
in Chapter VII (Standardization of timelines for listing of securities issued on a private placement
basis) of the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/PoD1/P/CIR/2023/119 dated August 10, 2021 on
"Master Circular for issue and listing of Non-convertible Securities, Securitised Debt Instruments,
Security Receipts, Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial Paper" (as amended and modified from
time to time), the Issuer shall ensure that the Non-Convertible Securities are credited into the demat
accounts of the Debenture Holders of the Non-Convertible Securities within 2 (two) Business Days
from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

8.27 Deemed Date of Allotment

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
8.28 Record Date

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
8.29 Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be
dispatched within 7 (seven) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate of
the application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been made, the
R&T Agent shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the moneys
to the extent of such excess, if any.

8.30 Interest on Application Monies

Not applicable
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8.31 Pan Number

Every applicant should mention its Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) allotted under Income Tax
Act, 1961, on the Application Form and attach a self-attested copy as evidence. Application forms
without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

8.32 Redemption

The face value of the Debentures shall be redeemed at par / premium / discount (as shall be more
particularly set out in the relevant Key Information Document), on the Redemption Date. The
Debentures will not carry any obligation, for interest or otherwise, after the Redemption Date. The
Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the Redemption Amount by the Issuer on
the Final Redemption Date to the registered Debenture Holders whose name appear in the
Debenture Register on the Record Date. Such payment will be a legal discharge of the liability of the
Issuer towards the Debenture Holders.

8.33 Payment on Redemption

Payment on redemption will be made by way of cheque(s)/redemption warrant(s)/demand
draft(s)/credit through RTGS system/funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s) whose
names appear on the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on the Record
Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the redemption amount by the Issuer
on maturity to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of Debenture
Holder(s) on the Record Date. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform NSDL and CDSL
and accordingly the account of the Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL and CDSL will be adjusted.

On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect of the Debentures, the liability of
the Issuer shall stand extinguished.

8.34 Payment of Coupon

Payment of Coupon on the Debenture(s) will be made on Coupon Payment Dates as specified in this
General Information Document and / or the relevant Key Information Document to those Debenture
Holders whose name(s) appear in the Register of Debenture Holder(s) (or to the first holder in case
of joint holders) as on the relevant Record Date fixed by the Issuer for this purpose and /or as per the
list provided by the Depository to the Issuer of the beneficiaries who hold Debentures in demat form
on such Record Date, and are eligible to receive Coupon. Payment will be made by the Issuer after
verifying the bank details of the Debenture Holders, by way of direct credit through Electronic Clearing
Service (“ECS”), Real Time Gross Settlement (“RTGS”) or National Electronic Funds Transfer
(“NEFT”).

In the event of any default in the payment of Coupon and/or in the redemption of the Debentures on
the respective Payment Dates and all other monies payable pursuant to the Transaction Documents
read with this General Information Document, the Issuer shall pay to the Debenture Holders, default
interest at the rate specified in 5.38 (“Issue Details”) for the default in payment of Coupon, and/or
Redemption Amount till the dues are cleared.

8.35 Eligibility to come out with the Issue

The Issuer or the Person in control of the Issuer, or its promoter, has not been restrained or prohibited
any Governmental Authority from accessing the securities market or dealing in securities and such
direction or order is in force.

8.36  Registration and Government approvals

The Issuer can undertake the activities proposed by it in view of the present approvals and no further
approval from any Governmental Authority(ies) is required by it to undertake the proposed activities
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save and except those approvals which may be required to be taken in the normal course of business
from time to time.

8.37  Authority for the Issue

This present private placement of debentures under the General Information Document is being
made pursuant to the resolution passed by board of directors of the Company at its meeting held on
July 26 2023. A copy of the board resolution is attached hereto as Annexure VIII. In case of, the
above mentioned resolutions being amended/replaced/ updated, the same shall be set out in the
relevant Key Information Document from time to time.

8.38 Date of Allotment

All benefits relating to Debentures will be available to the Investors from the Deemed Date of
Allotment. The actual allotment of Debentures may take place on a date other than the Deemed Date
of Allotment. In case if the issue closing date of Debentures is changed (pre-poned/ postponed), the
Deemed Date of Allotment of Debentures may also be changed (pre-poned/ postponed) by the Issuer
at its sole and absolute discretion.

Disclaimer: Please note that only those persons to whom this General Information Document has
been specifically addressed are eligible to apply. However, an application, even if complete in all
respects, is liable to be rejected without assigning any reason for the same. The list of documents
provided above is only indicative, and an investor is required to provide all those documents /
authorizations / information, which are likely to be required by the Issuer. The Issuer may, but is not
bound to, revert to any investor for any additional documents / information, and can accept or reject
an application as it deems fit. Provisions in respect of investment by investors falling in the categories
mentioned above are merely indicative and the Issuer does not warrant that they are permitted to
invest as per extant laws, regulations, etc. Each of the above categories of investors is required to
check and comply with extant rules/regulations/ guidelines, etc. governing or regulating their
investments as applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way, directly or indirectly, responsible
for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the Issuer required to check or
confirm the same.
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SECTION 9: UNDERTAKING

9.1 UNDERTAKINGS IN RELATION TO THE ISSUER BEING ELIGIBLE UNDER THE SEBI
NCS REGULATIONS

The Issuer hereby undertakes and confirms that the following (as set out in Regulation 5 of the SEBI
NCS Regulations) are not applicable to the Issuer as on the date of this General Information
Document:

(a) the Issuer, any of its promoters, promoter group or directors are debarred from accessing the
securities market or dealing in securities by the Board;

(b) any of the promoters or directors of the Issuer is a promoter or director of another company
which is debarred from accessing the securities market or dealing in securities by the Board;

(c) the Issuer or any of its promoters or directors is a wilful defaulter;

(d) any of the promoters or whole-time directors of the issuer is a promoter or whole-time director
of another company which is a wilful defaulter;

(e) any of its promoters or directors is a fugitive economic offender; or

(f) any fine or penalties levied by the Board / Stock Exchanges is pending to be paid by the
Issuer at the time of filing this General Information Document.

9.2 UNDERTAKING ON CREATION OF SECURITY PURSUANT TO REGULATION 48(2) OF
THE SEBI NCS REGULATIONS

The Issuer hereby undertakes that the assets on which charge is proposed to be created as
security for the Debentures are free from any encumbrances or pari-passu as the case may
be as set out in the Key Information Document.

9.3 UNDERTAKING PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 3.3.35 of SCHEDULE | OF THE SEBINCS
REGULATIONS

The Issuer undertakes and states as follows:

(a) Prospective investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an
investment decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on
their own examination of the Issuer and the offer including the risks involved. The securities
have not been recommended or approved by the any regulatory authority in India, including
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy
or adequacy of this document. Specific attention of investors is invited to the statement of
‘Risk factors’ given on page number 19 under the section.

(b) ‘GENERAL RISKS AND RISKS IN RELATION TO THE NON-CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES”;

the Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for, and confirms that
this General Information Document contains all information with regard to the issuer and the
issue, that the information contained in this General Information Document is true and correct
in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and
intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission
of which make this document as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any
such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect; and

(c) the Issuer has no side letter with any debt securities holder except the one(s) disclosed in

this General Information Document. Any covenants later added shall be disclosed on the
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stock exchange website where the debt is listed and shall be disclosed by the Company in
the Transaction Documents.

9.4 DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO THE CHAPTER Il OF SEBI DEBENTURE TRUSTEES
CIRCULAR

(a) Details of assets, movable property and immovable property on which charge is
proposed to be created

Movable assets comprising receivables from loans provided by the Issuer.

(b) Title deeds (original/ certified true copy by issuers/ certified true copy by existing
charge holders, as available) or title reports issued by a legal counsel/ advocates,
copies of the relevant agreements/ Memorandum of Understanding

No title deeds are applicable or available for movable assets comprising receivables from
loans provided by the Issuer over which security is proposed to be created by the Issuer. The
details of the underlying loan agreements will be set out in the Deed of Hypothecation.

(c) Copy of evidence of registration with Sub-registrar, Registrar of Companies, Central
Registry of Securitization Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest (CERSAI) etc

The details of the charge created over the movable assets comprising receivables from loans
provided by the Issuer over which security is proposed to be created by the Issuer under the
Deed of Hypothecation will be reported to the relevant registrar of companies and the Central
Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest (CERSAI) within the
timelines prescribed under Applicable Law. As the charge is being created over movable
assets, no filings are required to be made with any sub-registrar.

(d) For unencumbered assets, an undertaking that the assets on which charge is
proposed to be created are free from any encumbrances

The Issuer hereby undertakes that the assets on which charge is proposed to be created as
security for the Secured Debentures are free from any encumbrances or there is a pari-passu
charge, as the case may be, as set out in the Key Information Document.

(e) In case of corporate guarantee or any other document/ letter with similar intent is
offered as security or a part of security:

(i) Details of guarantor viz. holding/ subsidiary/ associate company etc.:
As set out in the respective Key Information Document

(i) Audited financial statements (not older than 6 months from the date of
debenture trustee agreement) of guarantor including details of all contingent
liabilities:
As set out in the respective Key Information Document

(iii) List of assets of the guarantor along-with undertakings/consent/NOC as per
the Chapter Il of SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular:

As set out in the respective Key Information Document

(iv) Conditions of invocation of guarantee including details of put options or any
other terms and conditions which may impact the security created:

As set out in the respective Key Information Document
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(v) Impact on the security in case of restructuring activity of the guarantor:
As set out in the respective Key Information Document

(vi) Undertaking by the guarantor that the guarantee shall be disclosed as
“contingent liability” in the “notes to accounts” of financial statement of the
guarantor:

As set out in the respective Key Information Document

(vii) Copy of Board resolution of the guarantor for the guarantee provided in
respect of the debt securities of the Issuer:

As set out in the respective Key Information Document

(viii) The Guarantor provides guarantees on a routine basis in the ordinary course
of its business.
As set out in the respective Key Information Document

In case securities (equity shares etc.) are being offered as security then a holding
statement from the depository participant along-with an undertaking that these
securities shall be pledged in favour of debenture trustee(s) in the depository system:
Not applicable

Details of any other form of security being offered viz. Debt Service Reserve Account
etc.: Not applicable

Any other information, documents or records required by debenture trustee with
regard to creation of security and perfection of security: As shall be set out in the
relevant Key Information Document, if any.

Declaration: The Issuer declares that debt securities shall be considered as secured only if
the charged asset is registered with Sub-registrar and Registrar of Companies or CERSAI or
Depository etc., as applicable, or is independently verifiable by the debenture trustee.

Terms and conditions of debenture trustee agreement including fees charged by
debenture trustees(s): Please refer consent letter of the Debenture Trustee for terms and
conditions of the appointment of the Debenture Trustee and the Engagement Letter for fee
of the Debenture Trustee.

Details of security to be created: Please refer section named "Security (Including
description, type of security, type of charge, likely date of creation of security, minimum
security cover, revaluation, replacement of security)" in Section 5.38 (Issue Details).

Process of due diligence carried out by the debenture trustee: The Debenture Trustee
has carried out due diligence in accordance with the manner prescribed in the SEBI
Debenture Trustees Circular. The due diligence broadly includes the following:

(i) A chartered accountant appointed by the Debenture Trustee will be conducting an
independent due diligence as per scope provided by the Debenture Trustee and the
information provided by the Issuer in respect of the security being provided by the
Issuer in respect of the Secured Debentures.

(i) The chartered accountant will verify and ensure that the assets provided by the
Issuer for creation of security are free from any encumbrances or necessary
permission or consent has been obtained from existing charge holders.

(iii) Periodical due diligence will be carried out by the Debenture Trustee in accordance
with the SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular read along with the SEBI (Debenture
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Trustees) Regulations, 1993 and the relevant circulars issued by SEBI from (as
amended from time to time) as per the nature of security provided by the Issuer in
respect of the Secured Debentures.

(iv) The Debenture Trustee will issue such necessary certificate(s) in relation to the due
diligence carried out by it and such certificate(s) will be available on Stock Exchanges
from time to time for information of the Debenture Holders.

Even though the Secured Debentures are to be secured to the extent of at least 100% (One
Hundred percent) of the principal and interest amount or as per the terms of this General
Information Document, in favor of the Debenture Trustee, the recovery of 100% of the amount
shall depend on the market scenario prevalent at the time of enforcement of the security.

Due diligence will be carried out for maintenance of the prescribed security cover depending
on information provided by the Issuer and the chartered accountant appointed by the
Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Trustee will not be responsible for misinformation
provided by Issuer.

Due diligence certificate as per the format specified in Annexure A: Enclosed as
Annexure IX.

Due diligence certificate as per the format specified in Annexure II-A of the Chapter I
of SEBI Debenture Trustees Circular: Enclosed as Annexure IX.

OTHER UNDERTAKINGS

The Issuer hereby confirms that:

(@)

(d)

the Issuer is eligible and in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended from time to time,
to make the private placement of debt instruments;

(to the extent applicable) the Issuer or its promoters or whole-time directors are not in
violation of the provisions of Regulation 24 of the SEBI Delisting Regulations, 2009;

neither the Issuer nor any of its promoters or directors is a willful defaulter as defined under
Regulation 2 (1) (ss) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; and

the Issuer, its promoters, its directors are not in violation of the restrictions imposed by SEBI
under SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/ MRD/DSA/CIR/P/2017/92 dated August 01, 2017.

For CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Authorised Signatory

Name: Mr. Rakesh Kaul
Title: Whole-Time Director
Date: 25t October 2023
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Serial No: As set out in the relevant Key Information Document
Addressed to: As set out in the relevant Key Information Document

SECTION 10: FORM NO. PAS-4

(Pursuant to Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(3) of the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014)

Note: This Form No PAS-4 is prepared in accordance with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014.

ISSUE OF SENIOR / UNSUBORDINATED / SUBORDINATED, SECURED / UNSECURED,
RATED, LISTED, PRINCIPAL PROTECTED OR NOT, MARKET LINKED OR NOT, GREEN
DEBT SECURITIES OR NOT, NON-CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES AGGREGATING FOR AN
AMOUNT AS SHALL BE MORE PARTICULARLY SET OUT IN THE KEY INFORMATION
DOCUMENT, IN MULTIPLE TRANCHES / ISSUANCES, FOR CASH, AT PAR OR AT
PREMIUM OR AT DISCOUNT, EITHER FULLY PAID ISSUANCE OR PARTLY PAID
ISSUANCE, IN A DEMATERIALISED FORM ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS (THE
“|SSUE”) BY CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”) OR
(“ISSUER”).

10.1

(@)

General Information:

Name, address, website, if any, and other contact details of the Company, indicating
both registered office and the corporate office:

Issuer / Company: Clix Capital Services Private Limited (the "Issuer" or "Company")

Registered Office: Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Aggarwal Corporate Tower Govind Lal Sikka
Marg, Rajendra Place, New Delhi - 110008, India, India.

Corporate Office: 901 B, 9th Floor, Two Horizon Centre, DLF Phase-5, Gurugram -
122002, Haryana, India

Telephone No.: 0120 646 5400

Website: www.clix.capital

Fax: Not Applicable

Contact Person: Vinu Rajat Kalra

Email: Clix.listing@clix-capital.com

Date of Incorporation of the Company:
February 11, 1994

Business carried on by the Company and its subsidiaries with the details of branches
or units, if any;

Lending. For further details, please refer to paragraph 5.4 (a) of Section 5 of this General
Information Document.

Branch details:

Please refer to paragraph 5.4 (b) of Section 5 of this General Information Document.
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Subsidiary details:
Clix Housing Finance Limited
(d) Brief particulars of the management of the Company:
Please refer to paragraph 5.4 (a) of Section 5 of this General Information Document.

(e) Name, addresses, Director Identification Number (DIN) and occupations of the
directors:

Please refer to Section 5 of this General Information Document.
10.2 MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION OF RISK FACTORS:

Please refer to Section 3 of this General Information Document.
10.3 RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

Please refer to Section 3 of this General Information Document.

10.4 Details of defaults, if any, including therein the amount involved, duration of default,
and present status, in repayment of:

(a) Statutory Dues: Nil

(b) Debentures and interest thereon: Nil
(c) Deposits and interest thereon: Nil
(d) Loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon: Nil

10.5 Name, designation, address and phone number, email ID of the nodal / compliance
officer of the Company, if any, for the private placement offer process:

Name of
Nodal/Compli | Designation Address Email ID
ance officer )
Vinu Rajat | Company 901 B, 9th Floor, | 98101139 Vinu.Kalra@clix.capital
Kalra Secretary Two Horizon | 79
Centre, DLF
Phase-5,

Gurugram 122002
Haryana, India

10.6  Any default in annual filing of the Company under the Companies Act, 2013 or the
rules made thereunder:

Not Applicable

10.7 Particulars of the Offer:

Financial position of the | Please refer to Annexure V below.
Company for the last 3 (three)
financial years

Date of passing of Board | Board resolution dated July 26, 2023.
Resolution for the current issue of
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Debentures that forms the part of
issuance under the General
Information Document

In case of any further resolution passed by the Issuer in
relation to the subject (as shall be required) shall be
annexed in the relevant Key Information Document from
time to time.

Date of passing of resolution in
the general meeting, authorizing
the offer of securities

Since the current issuance does not exceed the limit set out
under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, and
given the Company is a private limited company, the
shareholders resolution under Section 42 of the Act is not
required for the purpose of issue of Debentures.

Kind of securities offered (i.e.
whether share or debenture) and
class of security; the total number
of shares or other securities to be
issued

Base Issue Size — As specified in the relevant Key
Information Document.

Green shoe option — As specified in the relevant Key
Information Document.

Price at which the security is
being offered, including premium
if any, along with justification of
the price

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Name and address of the valuer
who performed valuation of the
security offered, and basis on
which the price has been arrived
at along with report of the
| registered valuer

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Relevant date with reference to
which the price has been arrived
at

(Relevant Date means a date at
least 30 days prior to the date on
which the general meeting of the
Company is scheduled to be held)

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

The class or classes of persons to
whom the allotment is proposed
to be made

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Intention of promoters, directors
or key managerial personnel to
subscribe to the offer (applicable
in case they intend to subscribe
to the offer) [Not required in case
of issue of non-convertible
debentures]

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

The proposed time within which
the allotment shall be completed

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

The names of the proposed
allottees and the percentage of
post private placement capital
that may be held by them [Not
applicable in case of issue of non-
convertible debentures]

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

The change in control, if any, in
the company that would occur

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.
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consequent to the private
placement

The number of persons to whom
allotment on preferential basis /
private placement / rights issue
has already been made during the
year, in terms of securities as well
as price

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

The justification for the allotment
proposed to be made for
consideration other than cash
together with valuation report of
the registered valuer

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Amount, which the Company
intends to raise by way of
proposed offer of securities

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Terms of raising of securities:

Duration, if | As specified in the relevant Key
applicable: Information Document.
Rate of Interest | As specified in the relevant Key
or Coupon: Information Document.
Mode of | As specified in the relevant Key
Payment Information Document.
Mode of | As specified in the relevant Key
Repayment Information Document.

Proposed time schedule for
which the Issue/Offer Letter is
valid

Issue Open Date: As specified in the relevant Key
Information Document.

Issue Closing Date: As specified in the relevant Key
Information Document.

Pay-in Date: As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.

Deemed Date of Allotment: As specified in the relevant
Key Information Document.

Purpose and objects of the
Issue/Offer

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Contribution being made by the
promoters or directors either as
part of the offer or separately in
furtherance of such objects

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

Principal terms of assets charged
as security, if applicable

As specified in the relevant Key Information Document.

The details of significant and
material orders passed by the
Regulators, Courts and Tribunals
impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its
future operations

Nil

The pre-issue and post-issue shareholding pattern of the Company in the following format:
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Pre-issue

Post-issue

A Promoters’
holding

No. of

Percentage

shares held (%) of

shareholding

No. of
shares held

Percentage

(%) of
shareholding

Indian

1 Individual

Bodies
Corporate

Sub-total

2 Foreign
promoters

1,43,569,93,543  99.9993%

1,43,59,93,543

99.9993%

Sub-total
(A)

1,43,569,93,543  99.9993%

1,43,59,93,543

99.9993%

B Non-
promoters’
holding

1 Institutional
Investors

2 Non-
Institutional
Investors

3 Private
Corporate
Bodies

4 Directors
and
relatives

5 Indian
public

6 Others
(Employee
Stock
Trust)
(including
Non-
resident
Indians)

100 0.00070%

100

0.00070%

Sub-total
(B)

100 0.00070%

100

0.00070%

GRAND
TOTAL

1,43,59,93,643 100%

1,43,59,93,643

100%

10.8

0 Cheque

Mode of payment for subscription:
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o] Demand Draft

(o] Other Banking Channels

10.9 Disclosure with regard to interest of directors, litigation, etc:

Any financial or other material
interest of the directors,
promoters or key managerial
personnel in the offer/ Issue and
the effect of such interest in so
far as it is different from the
interests of other persons

Nil

Details of any litigation or legal
action pending or taken by any
Ministry or Department of the
Government or a statutory
authority against any promoter
of the Company during the last
3 (three) years immediately
preceding the year of the issue
of this private placement offer
cum application letter and any
direction issued by such
Ministry or Department or
statutory authority upon
conclusion of such litigation or
legal action shall be disclosed

Nil

Remuneration of directors
(during the current year and last
3 (three) financial years)

Mr. Rakesh Kaul is an employee of Issuer and draw regular
salary and compensation. There are no separate director fees
payable.

Related party transactions
entered during the preceding 3
(three) financial years
immediately preceding the year
of issue of this private
placement offer cum
application letter and current
financial year with regard to
loans made or, guarantees
| given or securities provided

Please refer to CHAPTER B of this General Information
Document.

Summary of reservations or
qualifications or adverse
remarks of auditors in the last 5
(five) financial years
immediately preceding the year
of issue of this private
placement offer cum
application letter and of their
impact on the financial
statements and financial
position of the Company and
the corrective steps taken and
proposed to be taken by the
Company for each of the said

Reservations or Corrective steps
qualifications or taken and
adverse remarks proposed to be
of auditors taken
2022-23
2021-22
2020-21 Nil Nil
2019-20
2018-19

95

Public & Non Confidential Information



General Information Document Private & Confidential
Date: 25th October 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

reservations or qualifications or

adverse remark 2017-18

2016-17

Details of any inquiry,
inspections or investigations
initiated or conducted under the
securities law or Companies
Act or any previous company
law in the last 3 (three) years
immediately preceding the year
of circulation of this private
placement offer cum
application letter in the case of | | 2022-23
the Company and all of its
subsidiaries and if there were | | 2021-22
any prosecutions filed (whether | | 2020-21 Nil Nil
pending or not) fines imposed,
compounding of offences in the | | 2019-20
last 3 (three) years immediately | | 5454519
preceding the year of this
private placement offer cum
application letter and if so,
section-wise details thereof for
the Company and all of its
subsidiaries

Details of any Details of any
inquiry, prosecutions filed
inspections or (whether pending or

investigations not) fines imposed,
initiated or compounding of
conducted offences

10.10 Financial Position of the Company:

The capital structure of the company in the following manner in a tabular form:

The authorized, issued, subscribed
and paid up capital (number of

securities, description and aggregate Share Capital A_mount
nominal value) (in Rs.)
Authorised Share Capital
3,361,000,000 shares of 33,610,000,000
face value of INR 10/- each
TOTAL 33,610,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and 14,359,936,430
Fully Paid- up Share
Capital
TOTAL 14,359,936,430
Size of the Present Offer As specified in the relevant Key Information
Document.
Paid-up Capital:
a. After the offer: a. Not Applicable
b. After the conversion of convertible | b. Not applicable as each Debenture is a non-
instruments (if applicable) convertible debt instrument which is being issued
at face value.
Share Premium Account:
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a. Before the offer: a. Not Applicable
b. After the offer: b. Not Applicable
Details of the existing share capital of the Issuer in a tabular form, indicating therein with regard to
each allotment, the date of allotment, the number of shares allotted, the face value of the shares
allotted, the price and the form of consideration:
Cumulative Paid Up
Capital
Issue No Equit Equity
Price  Consider Nature of f y  Share
(in ation  Allotment gq,; Share Premi
Rs.) ty Capit um
Shar al (in
€S (inRs.) Rs.)
August | 61,56,03, | INR | INR | Cash & | Transfe | #615603425 -Cash &
31, 425 10 22.2 | Cash r Cash
2016 shares 9 per | Equivalent Share Capital: Equival
were fully |s (Via Rs. 615,60,34,250 ents
transferr paid | Bank (Via
ed to equit | Transfer) Share Premium: Bank
Plutus y Rs. 756,85,60,739 Transfe
Financial shar r)
s Pvt Ltd. e
(For 2
shares
Plutus
Capital
Pvt Ltd
was
acting as
nominee
sharehol
der)
Novem | 80,02,84, | INR | INR | Cash & | Bonus #3800884452 Cash &
ber 04, | 452 10 10 Cash Cash
2016 bonus Equivalent Share Capital: Rs. Equival
equity s (Via 800,28,44,520 ents
shares Bank (Via
allotted Transfer) Bank
to Plutus Transfe
Financial r)
s Pvt Ltd
Novem | buy-back | INR | INR | Cash & | Buybac | #118803425 Cash &
ber 21, | of 10 12.7 | Cash k Share Capital: Rs Cash
2016 118,803, per Equivalent 11880342%0 B Equival
425 from fully | s (Via ents
Plutus paid | Bank Premium: (Via
Financial equit | Transfer) 320769247.5 Bank
s Pvt Ltd y Transfe
shar r)
e
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March For 2 | INR | INR | Cash & | Revoca | #2 Cash &
28, shares 10 12.7 | Cash tion of Share Capital: Rs.20 Cash
2017 nominee per Equivalent | Nomina prial: RS- Equival
rights of fully | s (Via | tion Share Premium: | ents
Plutus paid | Bank Rs.5.4 (Via
Capital equit | Transfer) Bank
Pvt Ltd y Transfe
were shar r)
revoked e
by Plutus
Financial
s Pvt Ltd
pursuant
to
transfer
of
beneficia
I
ownershi
p.
Septem | Issue of | INR | INR | Cash & | Rights #11050000 Cash &
ber 30, | 11,050,0 | 10 17.5 | Cash Cash
2019 00 5 per | Equivalent Share Capital: Equival
allotted fully |s (Via Rs. 11,05,00,000 ents
to Plutus paid | Bank (Via
Financial up Transfer) Share Premium: Bank
s Private equit Rs. 8,34,27,500 Transfe
Limited y r)
Shar
es
23-11- | Issueof |INR |INR | Cash & Rights Share Capital: Rs. Cash &
2020 2840909 | 10 17.6 | Cash @10 Cash
1 shares 0 per | Equivalent Equival
allotted fully | s (Via A ents
to Plutus paid | Bank ?%are Premium: Rs. | v/ig
Financial up Transfer) ' Bank
s Private equit Transfe
Limited y r)
Shar
es
#100
31-03- Issue of INR | INR | Cash ESOP Share Capital: Rs Cash &
2023 100 10 13.1 1000 ' cash
shares 0 per Equival
allotted fully Share Premium: Rs. ents
to paid 3.10
Catalyst up
Trustees equit
hip under y
the Shar
ESOP es
Scheme
The number and price at which | Nil
each of allotments were made
by the Company in the last 1
(one) year preceding the date of
this placement offer cum
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application letter separately
indicating the allotments made
for consideration other than
cash and details of the
consideration in each case

Profits of the Company, before
and after making provision for

Profits before

INR in Crores

tax, for the 3 (three) financial AnEnEE making me'ts’. a.fter (7L 417
years immediately preceding VEED provision for tax AR LG
the date of circulation of this 30 June 18 14
private placement offer cum 23
application letter. 2022-23 34 24
2021-22 -129 -98
2020-21 7 4
g:;’r':':::; . t::::)aergtdof by the Year Fiscal FY  Fiscal FY  Fiscal FY
. ) e -23 21-22 20-21
3 (three) financial years; interest Dividend Nil Nil Nil
coverage ratio for last three Declared
years (cash profit after tax plus
interest paid/interest paid) Interest 1.72 1.86 1.53
Coverage
Ratio

*(Profits before tax+ Depreciation and Amortization +
Provision- Tax+ Finance cost)/Finance cost

A summary of the financial
position of the Company as in
the 3 (three) audited balance
sheets immediately preceding
the date of circulation of this
private placement offer cum
application letter

As on As As
30t on on Ason Ason
Financial June’2 31st 31st 31st
Parameter 3 Marc March March
s h 2021 2020
2022
(in Rs. Crore)
Share 1436 | 1436 | 1436 | 1436 | 1408
Capital
Reserves 615
and 595 562 516 490
Surplus
3679 3,30
Borrowings 6 2664 | 2506 2530
Invesstment 255.10 269 458 515 1213
Revenue 214.80
from 679 638 475 481
Operations
Profit/ 18.4
(Loss) 34 -124 7 58
before Tax
Profit after 13.80 o4 93 4 21
Tax

Audited Cash Flow Statement
for the 3 (three) years
immediately preceding the date
of circulation of this private

Please refer CHAPTER A of this General Information

Document.
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placement offer cum application
letter

Any change in accounting
policies during the last 3 (three)
years and their effect on the
profits and the reserves of the
Company

No
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PART B
FORM NO PAS-4

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER LETTER
(To be filled by the applicant)

S| No. Particulars ‘ First Holder Second Holder

1 Name [] []
2 Father's Name [] []
3 Complete Address (including Flat/ [] []
House Number, Street, Locality, Pin
Code)
4 Phone Number, if any [] []
5 Email ID, if any [] []
6 PAN Number [ []
7 Bank Account Details [ []
8 Number of Non- Convertible [] []

Debentures subscribed

9 Total value of Non- Convertible [*] []
Debentures subscribed

10 Tick whichever is applicable: - [] []

(a) The applicant is not required to
obtain Government approval
under the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt
Instruments) Rules, 2019 prior
to subscription of shares.

(b) The applicant is required to
obtain Government approval
under the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt
Instruments) Rules, 2019 prior
to subscription of shares and
the same has been obtained,
and is enclosed herewith

Signature of the Subscriber
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DECLARATION (To be provided by the Directors)

A. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made hereunder;

B. The compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder do not imply
that payment of dividend or interest or repayment of preference shares or debentures, if
applicable, is guaranteed by the Central Government; and

C. the monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated
in this General Information Document.;

| am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Issuer vide resolution number 09 dated July 26,
2023, to sign this General Information Document and declare that all the requirements of Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters
incidental thereto have been complied with.

Whatever is stated in this General Information Document and in the attachments thereto is true,
correct and complete and no information material to the subject matter of this General Information
Document has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the
promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly
and legibly attached to this General Information Document.

The Issuer declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations/guideline issued by SEBI and
other applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this General Information
Document is contrary to the provisions of the regulations/guidelines issued by SEBI and other
applicable laws, as the case may be. The information contained in this General Information Document
is as applicable to privately placed debt securities and subject to the information available with the
Issuer. The extent of disclosures made in this General Information Document is consistent with
disclosures permitted by regulatory authorities to the issue of securities made by the companies in
the past.

For CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Authorised Signatory
Name: Mr. Rakesh Kaul
Title: Whole-Time Director
Date: 25™ October 2023
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Enclosed

Chapter A — Audited Cash Flow Statement for the 3 (three) years immediately preceding the date of
circulation of this Offer Letter alongwith unaudited financial statements for the period ended 30" June
2023.

Chapter B — Related party transactions entered during the last 3 (three) financial years immediately
preceding the year of issue of this General Information Document and the current financial year with
regard to loans made or, guarantees given or securities provided

Optional Attachments, if any
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CHAPTER A - AUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE 3 (THREE) YEARS IMMEDIATELY
PRECEDING THE DATE OF CIRCULATION OF THIS GENERAL INFORMATION DOCUMENT

Audited Financials for FY 2020-2021, FY 2021-2022 and FY 2022-2023 along with the unaudited
financial statements for the period ended 30" June 2023 are attached separately to this General
Information Document

Please refer to Annexure V of the General Information Document

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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CHAPTER B - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ENTERED DURING THE LAST 3 (THREE)
FINANCIAL YEARS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE YEAR OF ISSUE AND THE CURRENT
FINANCIAL YEAR

Audited Financials for FY 2020-2021, FY 2021-2022 and FY 2022-2023 along with the unaudited
financial statements for the period ended 30th June 2023 are attached separately to this General
Information Document

Please refer to Annexure V of the General Information Document

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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SECTION 11: DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTORS
Each of the directors of the Company hereby confirm and declare that:

A. the Issuer is in compliance with the provisions of Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder;

B. the compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules does not imply that payment of
dividend or interest or repayment of non-convertible securities, if applicable, is guaranteed
by the Central Government;

C. the monies received under the Issue shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated
in this General Information Document;

D. whatever is stated in this General Information Document and in the attachments thereto is
true, correct and complete and no information material to the subject matter of this General
Information Document has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records
maintained by the promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and the Articles
of Association;

E. It is hereby declared that this General Information Document contains full disclosures in
accordance with the NCS Regulations, as amended from time to time and the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder; and

F. The Issuer accepts no responsibility for the statements made otherwise than in this General
Information Document or in any other material issued by or at the instance of the Issuer and
that anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at his own
risk.

General Risk

Investment in non-convertible securities is risky and investors should not invest any funds
in such securities unless they can afford to take the risk attached to such investments.
Investors are advised to take an informed decision and to read the risk factors carefully
before investing in this offering. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on
their examination of the issue including the risks involved in it. Specific attention of
investors is invited to statement of risk factors contained under Section 3 of this General
Information Document. These risks are not, and are not intended to be, a complete list of
all risks and considerations relevant to the non-convertible securities or investor’s decision
to purchase such securities.

Confidentiality

The information and data contained herein is submitted to each recipient of this General Information
Document on a strictly private and confidential basis. By accepting a copy of this General Information
Document, each recipient agrees that neither it nor any of its employees or advisors will use the
information contained herein for any purpose other than evaluating the specific transactions
described herein or will divulge to any other party any such information.

| am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number 09 dated July 26,
2023, to sign this General Information Document and declare that all the requirements of Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this General Information
Document and matters incidental thereto have been complied with.
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It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly
and legibly attached to this form.

For CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Authorised Signatory
Name: Mr. Rakesh Kaul
Title: Whole-Time Director
Date: 25™ October 2023
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ANNEXURE I: TERM SHEET

(As specified in the relevant Key Information Document)
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ANNEXURE II: RATING LETTER, RATING RATIONALE AND DETAILED PRESS RELEASE
FROM THE RATING AGENT

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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No. CARE/NRO/RL/2023-24/1944

Ms. Ruchika Sharma

AVP

CLIX capital Services Private Limited
901B, 9th Floor,

Two Horizon Centre, DLF Phase V,
Gurgaon

Haryana 122002

October 13, 2023

Confidential

Dear Madam,

Credit rating for Non-Convertible Debentures

Please refer to our letter no. CARE/NRO/RL/2023-24/1030 dated June 23, 2023 and your request for revalidation of
the rating assigned to the Non-Convertible Debentures of company, for a limit of Rs.1,680.80 crore.

2. The following rating(s) have been reviewed:

Sr. No. Instrument ATl Rating® Rating Action
(GENEeI())

CARE PP-MLD
A; Stable
(Principal
Protected-

1. Market Linked Debentures 50.00 Market Linked Reaffirmed

Debentures
Single A;
Outlook:

Stable)

CARE PP-MLD
A; Stable
(Principal
Protected-

Market Linked
Debentures
Single A;

Outlook:

2. Market Linked Debentures 100.00 Reaffirmed

1Complete definitions of the ratings assigned are available at www.careedge.in and in other CARE Ratings Ltd.’s publications.

(2

CARE Ratings Limited

Corporate Office :4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum,
Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai - 400 022

Phone: +91-22-6754 3456 « www.careedge.in

CIN-L67190MH1993PLCO71691
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Amount
(GENE eI (3))

Rating? Rating Action

Stable)

CARE PP-MLD
A; Stable
(Principal
Protected-

3. Market Linked Debentures 100.00 Market Linked Reaffirmed

Debentures
Single A;
Outlook:

Stable)

CARE PP-MLD
A; Stable
(Principal
Protected-

4. Market Linked Debentures 100.00 Market Linked Reaffirmed

Debentures
Single A;
Outlook:

Stable)

CARE PP-MLD
A; Stable
(Principal
Protected-

5. Market Linked Debentures 135.80 Market Linked Reaffirmed
Debentures

Single A;
Outlook:
Stable)

CARE A; Stable

(Single A;
Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
(Single A;
Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
(Single A;
Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
(Single A;
Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
(Single A;

6. Non Convertible Debentures 150.00 Reaffirmed

7. Non Convertible Debentures 200.00 Reaffirmed

8. Non Convertible Debentures 20.00 Reaffirmed

9. Non Convertible Debentures 400.00 Reaffirmed

10. Non Convertible Debentures 40.00 Reaffirmed

(s

CARE Ratings Limited

Corporate Office :4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum,
Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai - 400 022

Phone: +91-22-6754 3456 « www.careedge.in

CIN-L67190MH1993PLCO71691
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Amount

— . .
Instrument (Rs. crore) Rating Rating Action
Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
11. Non Convertible Debentures 85.00 (Single A Reaffirmed
Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
12. Non Convertible Debentures 100.00 (Single A Reaffirmed
Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
13. Non Convertible Debentures 100.00 (Single A Reaffirmed
Outlook:
Stable)
CARE A; Stable
14. Non Convertible Debentures 100.00 (Single A Reaffirmed
Outlook:
Stable)
1,680.80
(Rs. One
Thousand Six
Total Instruments Hundred
Eighty Crore
and Eighty
Lakhs Only)
The NCDs are repayable as per Annexure |I.
4, Please arrange to get the rating revalidated, in case the proposed issue is not made within six months from
the date of this letter.
5. Please inform us the below-mentioned details of issue immediately, but not later than 7 days from the date of

placing the instrument:

Issue Name and

. Coupon . Details
Instrument ISIN Size  Coupon Payment Terms of Redemption contact of top 10

B0 (xe Rl investors

Redemption details of
Trustee/1PA

6. CARE Ratings Ltd. reserves the right to undertake a surveillance/review of the rating from time to time, based

on circumstances warranting such review, subject to at least one such review/surveillance every year.

(s

CARE Ratings Limited

Corporate Office :4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum,
Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai - 400 022

Phone: +91-22-6754 3456 « www.careedge.in

CIN-L67190MH1993PLCO71691
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10.

CARE Ratings Ltd. reserves the right to revise/reaffirm/withdraw the rating assigned as a result of periodic
review/surveillance, based on any event or information which in the opinion of CARE Ratings Ltd. warrants
such an action. In the event of failure on the part of the entity to furnish such information, material or
clarifications as may be required by CARE Ratings Ltd. so as to enable it to carry out continuous monitoring of
the rating of the debt instruments, CARE Ratings Ltd. shall carry out the review on the basis of best available
information throughout the life time of such instruments. In such cases the credit rating symbol shall be
accompanied by "“ISSUER NOT COOPERATING”. CARE Ratings Ltd. shall also be entitled to
publicize/disseminate all the afore-mentioned rating actions in any manner considered appropriate by it,

without reference to you.

Our ratings do not factor in any rating related trigger clauses as per the terms of the facility/instrument, which
may involve acceleration of payments in case of rating downgrades. However, if any such clauses are
introduced and if triggered, the ratings may see volatility and sharp downgrades.

Users of this rating may kindly refer our website www.careedge.in for latest update on the outstanding rating.

CARE Ratings Ltd. ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell, or hold any securities.

If you need any clarification, you are welcome to approach us in this regard.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

Anushree Chhabra Neha Kadiyan
Rating Analyst Associate Director
anushree.chhabra@careedge.in neha.kadiyan@careedge.in

Encl.: As above

CARE Ratings Limited

Corporate Office :4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum,
Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai - 400 022

Phone: +91-22-6754 3456 « www.careedge.in

CIN-L67190MH1993PLCO71691
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Disclaimer

The ratings issued by CARE Ratings Limited are opinions on the likelihood of timely payment of the obligations under the rated instrument and are not
recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. These ratings do not convey
suitability or price for the investor. The agency does not constitute an audit on the rated entity. CARE Ratings Limited has based its ratings/outlooks
based on information obtained from reliable and credible sources. CARE Ratings Limited does not, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or
completeness of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions and the results obtained from the use of such information. Most
entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by CARE Ratings Limited have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of bank
facilities/instruments. CARE Ratings Limited or its subsidiaries/associates may also be involved with other commercial transactions with the entity. In
case of partnership/proprietary concerns, the rating /outlook assigned by CARE Ratings Limited is, inter-alia, based on the capital deployed by the
partners/proprietor and the current financial strength of the firm. The rating/outlook may undergo a change in case of withdrawal of capital or the
unsecured loans brought in by the partners/proprietor in addition to the financial performance and other relevant factors. CARE Ratings Limited is not
responsible for any errors and states that it has no financial liability whatsoever to the users of CARE Ratings Limited’s rating.

Our ratings do not factor in any rating related trigger clauses as per the terms of the facility/instrument, which may involve acceleration of payments in
case of rating downgrades. However, if any such clauses are introduced and if triggered, the ratings may see volatility and sharp downgrades.

CARE Ratings Limited

Corporate Office :4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum,
Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai - 400 022

Phone: +91-22-6754 3456 « www.careedge.in

CIN-L67190MH1993PLCO71691
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Annexure |

. Size of the Rating assigned
Name of the Instrument PEUD ©)F Sl lel HELSY Issue (X along with
Issuance Rate Date .
crore) Rating Outlook
Non-convertible debentures INE157D08019 25-May-18 9.00% 25-May-23 200* CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D08027 27-Jun-18 9.00% 27-Jun-23 200* CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D07DE7 30-Jun-20 10.80% 26-Jun-23 25* CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D07DJ6 18-Sep-20 10.60% 18-Sep-23 20* CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D07DR9 30-Jun-22 10.10% 31-Dec-23 18 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D0O7DTS 16-Sep-22 10.10% 16-Sep-24 50 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D07DV1 22-Sep-22 9.20% 21-Mar-23 60* CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D07DX7 03-Mar-23 10.25% 02-Sep-25 25 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D07DY5 27-Apr-23 2.00% 27-Oct-24 49
Non-convertible debentures INE157D07DZ2 24-May-23 10.15% 24-May-25 35
Non-convertible debentures INE157DO7EA3 12-Jun-23 10.40% 12-Jun-25 50
Non-convertible debentures INE157DO7EB1 30-Jun-23 10.10% 30-Sep-25 50
Non-convertible debentures INE157DO7EC9 10-Jul-23 10.25% 10-Oct-24 35
Non-convertible debentures Proposed - - - 378 CARE A; Stable
Market linked debentures INE157DO7DMO | 10-Jun-21 G-Sec | 414 pec-22 32% CARE PP-MLD A;
linked Stable
Market linked debentures INE157DO7DN8 | 29-Jun-21 G-Sec | 56 Mar-23 29.9% CARE PP-MLD A;
linked Stable
Market linked debentures INEI57D07D06 | 15-dul-21 | NS0 |y aoro3 11% CARE PP-MLD A;
linked Stable
. INE157D07DO6- Nifty 50 > CARE PP-MLD A;
Market linked debentures Tranche 2 05-Aug-21 linked 11-Apr-23 13.4 Stable
Market linked debentures INE157D07DQ1 30-Sep-21 N!fty 50 27-Jun-23 20* CARE PP-MLD A;
linked Stable
Market linked debentures INE157DO7DS7 | 20-Jul-22 G-seC | 50-Nov-23 50 CARE PP-MLD A;
linked Stable
Market linked debentures INEI57D07DU3 | 26-Sep22 | NS0 | 51 5eros 35 CARE PP-MLD A;
linked Stable
Market linked debentures INE1I57DO7DW9 | 29-Sep-22 G-Sec | 59 Mar-24 20 CARE PP-MLD A;
linked Stable
Market-linked debentures Proposed - - - 2745 CARESIESI\QLD A

*NOC received, pending for withdrawal.

(s

CARE Ratings Limited

Corporate Office :4th Floor, Godrej Coliseum,
Somaiya Hospital Road, Off Eastern Express
Highway, Sion (E), Mumbai - 400 022
Phone: +91-22-6754 3456 « www.careedge.in
CIN-L67190MH1993PLCO71691
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June 27, 2023

Facilities/Instruments Amount (X crore) | Rating Action
Long-term bank facilities 1,770.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Long-term / Short-term bank facilities 1,130.00 CARE A; Stable / CARE A1 Reaffirmed
Market linked debentures 100.00 CARE PP-MLD A; Stable Reaffirmed
Market linked debentures 50.00 CARE PP-MLD A; Stable Reaffirmed
Market linked debentures 100.00 CARE PP-MLD A; Stable Reaffirmed
Market linked debentures 135.80 CARE PP-MLD A; Stable Reaffirmed
Market linked debentures 100.00 CARE PP-MLD A; Stable Reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 400.00 CARE A; Stable Assigned
Non-convertible debentures 40.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 85.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 100.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 100.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 100.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 20.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 200.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Non-convertible debentures 150.00 CARE A; Stable Reaffirmed
Commercial paper 200.00 CARE Al Reaffirmed
Commercial paper 100.00 CARE Al Reaffirmed

Details of instruments/facilities in Annexure-1.
Rationale and key rating drivers

The ratings assigned to the instruments of CLIX Capital Services Private Limited (CLIX) continue to reflect track record of regular
capital infusion from the promoters and adequate capitalisation profile. The ratings are also supported by the company’s well-
diversified resource profile, which has helped the company to restart growth in the assets under management (AUM) to 34,375
crore as on March 31, 2023, registering 20% y-o0-y growth, after witnessing degrowth in FY22 on account of COVID-19. CARE
Ratings Limited (CARE Ratings) notes that the core book has seena sharp increase in the AUM by 30% as compared with FY22.

The ratings also take into account improving asset quality trend, as reflected from decline in the gross non-performing assets
(GNPA) ratio from 4.95% as on March 31, 2022, to 2.38% as on March 31, 2023. The improvement was driven by write-offs, as
well as improving collection efficiency trends aided by improving macro -economic environment post COVID-19.

The ratings are, however, constrained by moderate profitability with return on total assets (ROTA) of 0.5% in FY23, albeit
improved from -1.9% in FY22.

Going forward, the ability of CLIX to capitalise on its adequate leverage profile and report significant growth in the loan book,
clubbed with maintenance of GNPA and credit costs within comfortable bounds, remains a key rating sensitivity.

Rating sensitivities: Factors likely to lead to rating actions.

Positive factors — Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to a review for positive rating action /
upgrade

e Significant growth in the loan book while maintaining asset quality.
e Sequential improvement in profitability resulting in ROTA above 1.5% on an annual basis.
e The ability to raise additional debt at competitive cost coupled with stabilisation in net interest margins (NIMs).

Negative factors — Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to a review for negative rating action /
downgrade

1Complete definition of the ratings assigned are available at www.careedge.in and other CARE Ratings Ltd.’s publications.
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e Deterioration in the asset quality profile with credit costs (including write-offs) remaining elevated on a sustained basis,
leading to deterioration in profitability metrics.
e Any material changes in support from the promoters.

Analytical approach:
CARE Ratings has based its assessment on the consolidated financials of CLIX, which includes its 100% owned subsidiary, CLIX
Housing Finance Limited (CLIX Housing).

Outlook: Stable

The outlook reflects the expectations of improved profitability driven by controlled credit costs and higher income with growth
in portfolio, while maintaining adequate liquidity and capitalisation.

Detailed description of the key rating drivers:

Key strengths

Long track record of equity support from promoters:

CLIX has long track record of receiving equity support fromthe promoters. In FY20 and FY21, it received equity infusion of X200
crore and %50 crore, respectively, from - AION Capital and from Anil Chawla and Pramod Bhasin. AION Capital was incorporated
as a jointventure (JV) between ICICI Ventures and Apollo Global Management. ICICI Ventures Funds exited from the JV in June
2020, while Apollo Global Management became sole 85% shareholders.

Furthermore, equity infusion is expected by the promoters - Pramod Bhasin and Anil Chawla (combined 15% shareholders) in
current fiscal year, which will further support the credit profile of the company.

Comfortable capitalisation profile:

CLIX has comfortable capitalisation level with consolidated gearing (measured as total borrowings to tangible net worth [TNW])
0f2.30x as on March 31, 2023, albeitincreased from1.96x as of March 31, 2022, owing to debt-funded growthinthe loan book
(net loans increased by 20% during the period). The regulatory - capital adequacy ratio of standalone Clix and Clix Housing
remains comfortable at 37.08%% and 35.08% as on March 31, 2023, which is well above the regulatory requirements. The same
is expected to continue over the medium term.

Diversified resource profile:

CLIX has well-diversified resource profile with good mix of PSU banks (21%), private banks (36%), NBFC (27%), domestic
financial institutions (7%) and other (8%) as on March 31, 2023. However, the share of bank borrowing has reduced from 28%
in FY22 to 21% in FY23, with corresponding higher share from NBFCs to 27% from 14%. The proportion of off-balance sheet
borrowings also increased with off-balance portfolio at 7.7% of AUM as on March 31, 2023, compared with 3.0% a year ago.
Going forward, the ability of the company to raise debt at competitive rates will be key monitoring factor.

Key weaknesses

Moderate asset quality profile, albeit improving post March 2022:

Owing to the slippagesinthe overall loan portfolio, which was exacerbated by the impact of second wave of COVID -19 pandemic
on the borrower profile of salaried and self-employed employees along with corporates, CLIX reported moderation in its asset
quality profile with GNPA of the company elevating to 4.95% as on March 31, 2022, on a consolidated level, as compared with
3.5% as on March 31, 2021. On account of improving collection efficiency fromits restructured and non-restructured retail loan
portfolio, CLIXreported significantimprovementinits asset quality metrics postMarch 2022 with GNPA improving to 2.4% at end
March 31, 2023.

As on March 31, 2023, the company has stressed assets at 7% of AUM as on March 31, 2023 (0d-90d restructured book of 0.3%,
investment in security receipts of 4.4% (reduced to around 2.4% as of date) and NPA of 2.3%), the performance of which needs
to be monitored. CARE Ratings notes that the company is carrying provision of 80% on the 60+dpd stock of OTR book and 43%
on outstanding security receipts.

GNPA of CLIX Housing has increased to 5.8% as of March 31, 2023, from 3.2% a year earlier, primarily because of declinein the
portfolio base. Going forward, the ability of the management to control additional slippages inits retail unsecured portfolio and
recover from the overall stressed portfolio would be a key rating sensitivity.

Moderate market share in key product categories:

The growthin portfolio had remained constrained inpast 2-3 years due to write-offs in unsecured OTR book and low additional
disbursements indiscontinued segments like corporate bookand other core segment owing to COVID-19-related stress. However,
it picked up inFY23 leading to AUM of %4,375 crore as on March 31, 2023, registering y-o-y growth of 20%. It is also noteworthy
that the core book AUM has increased by 30% in the last fiscal year, and CARE Ratings expects the growth trend to continue.
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The AUM is segregated in different product categories having moderate market share. The largest segment is lending through
tech-platforms whichis end-to-end digitally driven with outstanding balance of X1,740 crore as on March 31, 2023. The segment
grew only 1.5% y-o0-y and is expected to be at current levels only over the medium term given that CLIX is focused towards
increasing its MSME and niche segments.

The second-largest segment is lending to MSME with outstanding AUM of 1,377 crore as on March 31, 2023, increased from
%610 crore a year ago. This segment will be the key growth driver over the medium term. The other major segmentis lending to
school and healthcare equipment financing, having outstanding AUM of 1,113 crore as on March 31, 2023 (increased from X835
crore a year earlier).

In Clix Housing, the company has stopped disbursement and is inthe process ofmerging it withits parent. The loanbook reduced
to X106 crore from 3206 crore due to repayment and sale of book through direct assignment.

Moderate profitability:

The company achieved turnaround in profitability with net profit of 28.3 crorein FY23 (excluding the one-time exceptional item,
profitability was at ¥49 crore) on a consolidated basis compared to net loss of X98.5 crore in FY22. In FY22, weak profitability
has been primarily on account of high provisioning and write-off of 291 crore on the OTR book. Overall moderate NIM and
relatively high credit costs resulted in moderate profitability indicator with ROTA of 0.5% in FY23.

CARE Ratings continues to monitor the developments in the financial profile of CLIXinrespect of its ability to control credit costs,
scale-up inits loan book growth, and avail borrowings at competitive pricing, all of which are imperative for a positive improvement
in overall credit profile of the company.

Liquidity: Adequate

The company maintains cash equivalents covering debt maturities up to 2 months as on May 30, 2023. Furthermore, it has
unutilised committed credit line of X337 crore, which covers the cumulative mismatches of X80 crore and %22 crore in 2M-3M and
3M-6M time buckets.

Applicable criteria
Policy on default recognition
Consolidation
Financial Ratios - Financial Sector
Rating Outlook and Credit Watch
Short Term Instruments
Non-Banking Financial Companies

About the company and industry

Industry classification
Macro-Economic Sector Industry Basic Industry

Indicator
Financial Services Financial Services Finance Non-Banking Financial
Company (NBFC)

CLIX Capital Services Pvt Ltd (CLIX; formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Pvt Ltd) was incorporated in February 1994
as Countrywide Consumer Financial Services Pvt Ltd by the GE Group to continue the business of consumer finance, auto leasing,
corporate lending and healthcare equipment financing for GE group products in India. In March 2016, the GE group entered into
management buy-in arrangement with Pramod Bhasin and Anil Chawla, former top executives at GE India, to exit its Indian
commercial finance business. The management buy-in by Pramod Bhasin and Anil Chawla was backed by funding from private
equity (PE) firm, AION Capital Partners Limited. Following the exit of GE as the shareholder, the name of the company was
changed to CLIX Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. in August 2016. In September 2016, CLIX Finance India Pvt Ltd (formerly known as
GE Capital Services India), became a 100% subsidiary of CLIX. CLIX Finance was later merged into CLIX in March 2022.

Clix Housing, whichis 100% owned subsidiary of Clix, has stopped disbursements and is in the process of getting merged into its

parent.
Brief Financials* (X crore) ‘ March 31, 2022 (A) March 31, 2023 (UA)
Total operating income 685.9 732.8
3| CARE Ratings Ltd.
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Brief Financials* (X crore) \

March 31, 2022 (A)

March 31, 2023 (UA) \

PAT -98.5 28.3
Interest coverage (times) 0.6 1.2
Total Reported Assets 5,087.3 5,823.5
Net NPA (%) 14 1.6
ROTA (%) -1.9 0.5

A: Audited UA: Unaudited; Note: ‘the above results are latest financial results available;’ *Consolidated financial results

Status of non-cooperation with previous CRA: Not applicable
Any other information: Not applicable

Rating history for last three years: Please refer Annexure-2

Covenants of rated instrument / facility: Detailed explanation of covenants of the rated instruments/facilities is givenin
Annexure-3

Complexity level of various instruments rated: Annexure-4

Lender details: Annexure-5

Annexure-1: Details of instruments/facilities

Name of Instrument

Date of
issuance

Coupon Rate

Maturity
Date

issue (R

Rating assigned along
with Rating Outlook

crore)

F“”d'basf:a; LT-Term - - - March 2026 | 1,770 CARE A; Stable
Fund-based / non-fund- CARE A; Stable /
based-LT/ST March 2023 | 1,130 CARE A1
Commercial paper INE157D14ED3 28-Nov-22 9.60% 28-Nov-23 21.9 CARE Al
Commercial paper INE157D14EE1 10-Mar-23 9.65% 07-Mar-24 15 CARE Al
Commercial paper INE157D14EF8 17-Apr-23 10.50% 29-Sep-23 25 CARE A1
Commercial paper INE157D14EG6 17-Apr-23 10.50% 13-Oct-23 45 CARE A1
Commercial paper INE157D14EH4 24-05-23 9.90% 27-09-23 25 CARE Al
Commercial paper Proposed 168.1 CARE A1
Non-convertible debentures | INE157D08019 25-May-18 9.00% 25-May-23 200* CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures INE157D08027 27-Jun-18 9.00% 27-Jun-23 200 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures | INE157D07DE7 30-Jun-20 10.80% 26-Jun-23 25 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures | INE157D07DJ6 18-Sep-20 10.60% 18-Sep-23 20 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures | INE157D0O7DR9 30-Jun-22 10.10% 31-Dec-23 18 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures | INE157D07DT5 16-Sep-22 10.10% 16-Sep-24 50 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures | INE157D07DV1 22-Sep-22 9.20% 21-Mar-23 60* CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures | INE157D07DX7 03-Mar-23 10.25% 02-Sep-25 25 CARE A; Stable
Non-convertible debentures Proposed - - - 597 CARE A; Stable
Market linked debentures | INEL57DO7DMO | 10-Jun-21 | G-Seclinked | 10-Dec-22 32% CARESF;ZE)'YLLD A;
Market linked debentures INE157DO7DN8 | 29-Jun-21 G-Sec linked 26-Mar-23 29.9* CARESF;;'\I/LLD A
Market linked debentures | INE157D07DO6 | 15-Jul-21 | Nifty 50 linked | 11-Apr-23 11* CARESF;Z;YLLD A
Market linked debentures | ' E12/D07D0O6- 05-Aug-21 | Nifty 50 linked | 11-Apr-23 13.4* CARE PP-MLD A;
Tranche 2 Stable
Market linked debentures | INE157D07DQ1 | 30-Sep-21 | Nifty 50 linked | 27-Jun-23 20 CARESF;;'\I"eLD A
Market linked debentures INE157D07DS7 20-Jul-22 G-sec linked 20-Nov-23 50 CARESI:Z;)'\I/LLD A;
Market linked debentures INEL57D0O7DU3 | 26-Sep-22 | Nifty 50 linked 31-Oct-25 35 CARESF,:;'YIELD A;
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Market linked debentures | INEL57DO7DWO | 29-Sep-22 | G-Seclinked | 29-Mar-24 20 CARESF;Z;)'Y'GLD A;
Market-linked debentures Proposed - - - 2745 CARESF;;I\I/LLD A;

*Qutstanding amount is nil. Pending withdrawal

Annexure-2: Rating history for the last three years

Current Ratings Rating History

Date(s) Date(s) Date(s)
Name of the and and DEiEE) and

Instrument/Bank Amount and

Rating(s) | Rating(s) Rating(s)

iliti Type Outstandin Ratin REE
el B = < assigned | assigned . a( ). assigned
(X crore) assigned in

in 2023- in 2022- 2021-2022 in 2020-
2024 2023 2021
1)CARE
A+; Stable
/ CARE
Al+
(03-Feb-
21)

2)CARE
A+; Stable
/ CARE
Al+
CARE 1)CARE A; 1YCARE A: (06-Nov-
A; Stable / ) ’ 20)
Fund-based/non- Stable /
1 LT/ST* 1130.00 Stable / | - CARE Al
fund-based-LT/ST CARE 07-Oct CARE A1 3)CARE
(07-Oc ©7-3an-22) |
Al 22) A+; Stable
/ CARE
Al+
(12-Aug-
20)

4)CARE
A+; Stable
/ CARE
Al+
(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)

2)CARE
Debentures-Non . A+; Stable
. 1)Withdrawn
2 Convertible LT - - - - (03-Feb-
(07-Jan-22)
Debentures 21)

3)CARE
A+; Stable
(06-Nov-
20)

5 | CARE Ratings Ltd.
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4)CARE
A+; Stable
(14-Jul-
20)

5)CARE
A+; Stable
(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
Al+
(03-Feb-
21)

c 1P 1)CARE 2)CARE
ommercial Faper- CARE AL 1)CARE A1l | AL+
3 Commercial Paper ST 200.00 -
Al (07-Oct- (07-Jan-22) (12-Aug-
(Standalone)

22) 20)

3)CARE
Al+
(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(03-Feb-
21)

2)CARE
A+; Stable

(06-Nov-
1)CARE A;
CARE 1)CARE A; 20)

Fund-based - LT- Stable

4 LT 1770.00 A; - Stable
Term Loan (07-Oct-

Stable 22) (07-Jan-22) 3)CARE

A+; Stable
(12-Aug-

20)

4)CARE
A+; Stable
(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)

2)CARE
1)Withdrawn | A+; Stable
(07-Jan-22) (03-Feb-
21)

Debentures-Non
5 Convertible LT - - - -
Debentures

3)CARE
A+; Stable
(06-Nov-
20)

6 | CARE Ratings Ltd.
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4)CARE
A+; Stable
(14-Jul-
20)

5)CARE
A+; Stable
(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)

2)CARE
A+; Stable
(03-Feb-
21)

3)CARE
1)Withdrawn | A+; Stable
(07-Jan-22) (06-Nov-
20)

Debentures-Non
6 Convertible LT - - - -
Debentures

4)CARE
A+; Stable
(14-Jul-
20)

5)CARE
A+; Stable
(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)

2)CARE
A+; Stable
(03-Feb-
21)
1)CARE A;
Debentures-Non CARE Stable 1)CARE A; 3)CARE
7 Convertible LT 40.00 A; - Stable

Debentures Stable (07-Oct- (07-Jan-22) A+; Stable
22) (06-Nov-

20)

4)CARE
A+; Stable
(14-Jul-
20)

5)CARE
A+; Stable

7 | CARE Ratings Ltd.
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(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)

2)CARE
A+; Stable
(03-Feb-
21)

Debentures-Non CARE ;igbAle A | 1ycARE A: 3)CARE

. A+; Stable
8 Convertible LT 85.00 A; - Stable

(07-Oct- (06-Nov-
Debentures Stable 22) (07-Jan-22) 20)

4)CARE
A+; Stable
(14-Jul-
20)

5)CARE
A+; Stable
(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)

2)CARE
A+; Stable
(03-Feb-
21)

1)CARE A; 3)CARE
Debentures-Non CARE Stab! 1)CARE A; A+ Stabl
9 Convertible LT 100.00 A: - able Stable - Stable
Debentures Stable (07-Oct- (07-Jan-22) (06-Nov-
22) 20)

4)CARE
A+; Stable
(14-Jul-
20)

5)CARE
A+; Stable
(30-Jun-
20)

1)CARE
1)CARE A;
Debentures-Non CARE Stable 1)CARE A; A+; Stable
10 Convertible LT 100.00 A; - (07-Oct Stable (19-Mar-
Debentures Stable 22) (07-Jan-22) 21)

8 | CARE Ratings Ltd.
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2)CARE
A+; Stable
(03-Feb-
21)

3)CARE
A+; Stable
(06-Nov-
20)

4)CARE
A+; Stable
(14-Jul-
20)

5)CARE
PP-MLD
A+; Stable
(30-Jun-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)

2)CARE
A+; Stable
1)CARE A; (03-Feb-
Debentures-Non CARE Stable > | 1)CARE A; 21)
11 Convertible LT 100.00 A; - (07-Oct- Stable
Debentures Stable 22) (07-Jan-22) 3)CARE
A+; Stable
(06-Nov-
20)

4)CARE
A+; Stable
(12-Aug-
20)
1)CARE
PP-MLD
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)

CARE L)CARE 1)CARE PP- 2)CARE
Debentures-Market PP-MLD PP-MLD A; MLD A; PP-MLD
12 . LT 100.00 - Stable ’ A+; Stable
Linked Debentures A; Stable
(07-Oct- (03-Feb-

Stable (07-Jan-22)
22) 21)

3)CARE
PP-MLD
A+; Stable
(06-Nov-
20)

9 | CARE Ratings Ltd.
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4)CARE
PP-MLD
A+; Stable
(12-Aug-
20)
1)CARE
A+; Stable
(19-Mar-
21)
1)CARE A; 2)CARE
Debentures-Non CARE Stabl 1)CARE A; A+- Stabl
13 | Convertible LT 20.00 A; able Stable » otable
(07-Oct- (03-Feb-
Debentures Stable (07-Jan-22)
22) 21)
3)CARE
A+; Stable
(06-Nov-
20)
1)CARE
PP-MLD
A+; Stable
1)CARE (19-Mar-
CARE PP-MLD A- 1)CARE PP- 21
Debentures-Market PP-MLD ) " | MLD A; )
14 . LT 50.00 Stable
Linked Debentures A; Stable
Stabl (07-Oct- 07-Jan-22 2)CARE
able 22) (O7-Jan-22) | o mip
A+; Stable
(03-Feb-
21)
1)CARE PP-
MLD A;
CARE 1)CARE Stable
PP-MLD A; | (07-Jan-22)
Debentures-Market PP-MLD
15 . LT 100.00 Stable -
Linked Debentures A;
(07-Oct- 2)CARE PP-
Stable
22) MLD A+;
Stable
(12-Jul-21)
1)CARE A;
Stable
1)CARE A;
Debentures-Non CARE Stable (07-Jan-22)
16 Convertible LT 200.00 A; (07-Oct- -
Debentures Stable 22) 2)CARE A+;
Stable
(12-Jul-21)
CARE 1)CARE 1)CARE PP-
PP-MLD A;
Debentures-Market PP-MLD MLD A;
17 . LT 135.80 Stable -
Linked Debentures A; (07-Oct- Stable
Stable (07-Jan-22)
22)
1)CARE A;
Debentures-Non CARE Stable
18 Convertible LT 150.00 A; 07-Oct - -
Debentures Stable (07-Oct-
22)
10 | CARE Ratings Ltd.
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1)CARE
CARE )
Debentures-Market PP-MLD PP-MLD A;
19 ) LT 100.00 - Stable - -
Linked Debentures A;
(07-Oct-
Stable
22)
. 1)CARE
Commercial Paper-
20 C ial P ST 100.00 CARE AL
ommercial Paper . - - -
p Al (07-Oct-
(Standalone)
22)
Debentures-Non
. CARE A
21 Convertible LT 400.00
Stable
Debentures

*Long term/Short term.

Annexure-3: Detailed explanation of covenants of the rated instruments/facilities: Not applicable

Annexure-4: Complexity level of the various instruments rated.

| Sr. No. Name of the Instrument | Complexity Level
1 Commercial Paper-Commercial Paper (Standalone) Simple
2 Debentures-Market Linked Debentures Complex
3 Debentures-Market Linked Debentures Highly Complex
4 Debentures-Market Linked Debentures Simple
5 Debentures-Non Convertible Debentures Simple
6 Fund-based - LT-Term Loan Simple
7 Fund-based/non-fund-based-LT/ST Simple
Annexure-5: Lender details
To view the lender wise details of bank facilities please click here

Note on the complexity levels of the rated instruments: CARE Ratings has classified instruments rated by it on the basis
of complexity. Investors/market intermediaries/regulators or others are welcome to write to care@careedge.in for any
clarifications.
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Media Contact Analytical Contacts

Mradul Mishra

Director

CARE Ratings Limited
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Dinesh Sharma

Director

CARE Ratings Limited
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Director
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About us:

Established in 1993, CARE Ratings is one of the leading credit rating agencies in India. Registered under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, it has been acknowledged as an External Credit Assessment Institutionby the RBI. With an equitable
positioninthe Indian capital market, CARE Ratings provides awide array of credit rating services that help corporatesrais e capital
and enable investors to make informed decisions. With an established track record of rating companies over almostthree decades,
CARE Ratings follows arobustand transparentrating process that leverages its domainand analytical expertise, backed by the
methodologies congruent with the international best practices. CARE Ratings has played a pivotal role in developing bank debt
and capital market instruments, including commercial papers, corporate bonds and debentures, and structured credit.

Disclaimer:

The ratings issued by CARE Ratings are opinions on the likelihood of timely payment of the obligations under the rated instrument and are not recommendations to
sanction, renew, disburse, or recall the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell, or hold any security. These ratings do not convey suitability or price for the investor.
The agency does not constitute an audit on the rated entity. CARE Ratings has based its ratings/outlook based on information obtained from reliable and credible
sources. CARE Ratings does not, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions
and the results obtained from the use of such information. Most entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by CARE Ratings have paid a credit rating fee,
based on the amount and type of bark facilities/instruments. CARE Ratings or its subsidiaries/associates may also be involved with other commercial transactions with
the entity. In case of partnership/proprietary concerns, the rating/outlook assigned by CARE Ratings is, inter-alia, based on the capital deployed by the
partners/proprietors and the current financial strength of the firm. The ratings/outlook may change in case of withdrawal of capital, or the unsecured loans brought
in by the partners/proprietors in addition to the financial performance and other relevant factors. CARE Ratings is not responsible for any errors and states that it has
no financial liability whatsoever to the users of the ratings of CARE Ratings. The ratings of CARE Ratings do not factor in any rating-related trigger clauses as per the
terms of the facilities/instruments, which may involve acceleration of payments in case of rating downgrades. However, if any such clauses are introduced and
triggered, the ratings may see volatility and sharp downgrades.

For the detailed Rationale Report and subscription information,
please visit www.careedge.in
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ANNEXURE lll: CONSENT LETTER AND ENGAGEMENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE
TRUSTEE

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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CL/DEB/23-24/1114 Date : 10-Oct-2023

To,

Ruchika Sharma,

Clix Capital Services Private Limited,
9th Two Horizon Center, 901B, ,

DLF Phase 5, Sector 43, Gurugram,
Gurgaon,

Haryana,

India 122002.

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Re: Consent to act as a Debenture Trustee for Private Placement of Fully Paid, Rated, Listed,
Redeemable, Transferable, Secured, Non-Convertible Debentures of X 40.00 Crores with green shoe
option of 25.00 Crores Crores aggregating to 65.00 Crores.

We refer to your letter dated 10.10.2023 , requesting us to convey our consent to act as the
Debenture Trustee for captioned issue of Debentures.

We hereby convey our acceptance to act as Debenture Trustees for the said issue Debentures,
subject to execution of Debenture Trustee Agreement as per Regulation 13 of SEBI (Debenture
Trustee) Regulations, 1993, thereby agreeing to execute Debenture Trust Deed and to create the
security if applicable within the timeline as per relevant Laws / Regulations and in the Offer
Document / Information Memorandum / Disclosure Document / Placement Memorandum and
company agreeing / undertaking to comply with the provisions of SEBI ( Debenture Trustee )
Regulations, 1993, SEBI ( Issue and Listing o f Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations 2021, SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
thereunder and other applicable laws as amended from time to time.

Fee Structure for the proposed transaction will be as per annexure A.

Assuring you of the best professional services.
Thanking you.

Yours faithfully, c ,_-;}7.‘;‘%
S {57

e <. \ - Tk
(ﬁﬁf(\z""ﬁﬂ:j,_ii, ":g::.,: _-. ':.:E- 25

Name : Radhika Sharma

Designation : Manager
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Annexure A

Fee Structure for transaction CL/DEB/23-24/1114

PARTICULARS AMOUNT /
PERCENTAGE
Acceptance fees (one-time, non-refundable, payable on our %100000.00000

appointment)

Annual Trusteeship Fees(Amount/Percentage) %100000.00000

Annual Trusteeship Fees are payable in advance each year from date of execution till termination of
the transaction. Pro-rata charges would apply for the first year till FY end, as applicable.

The taxes on above fee structure are payable at applicable rates from time to time.

All out of pocket expenses incurred towards legal fees, travelling, inspection charges, etc shall be
levied and re-imbursed on actual basis.

Please return the second copy this letter duly signed by Authorized Officer from your company.

Yours Faithfully, We accept the above terms.
For Catalyst Trusteeship Limited For Clix Capital Services Private Limited
- Q8 g (,-;‘:.E-'E—;
({f(a« T e = "-\.‘?ft
N7
Wan e
Name : Radhika Sharma Name :
Designation . Ruchika Sharma
Designation : Manager AVP, Treasury
DATALYET TRUSTEREMIF LIRS IR Eisse o {4 i issiis —l ol
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Date: 25th October 2023 For Private Circulation Only
(This General Information Document is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus)

ANNEXURE IV: APPLICATION FORM

(As specified in the relevant Key Information Document)

111

Public & Non Confidential Information



General Information Document Private & Confidential
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ANNEXURE V: LAST AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Audited Financials for FY 2020-2021, FY 2021-2022 and FY 2022-2023 along with the unaudited
financial statements for the period ended 30" June 2023 are attached separately to this General
Information Document

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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S.R. Batisol & AssOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

ta the preparation and presentation of the Statement that aive a true and fair view and are free from
matarial misstatement, whather due lo fraud or eror,

In preparing the Statement. the Board of Directors are responzible for assessing the Company's ability 1o
continue as a golng concarn, disclosing, as applicanle, matlers related lo going concearn and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Beard of Directors either intends to liquidzte the Company
of o cease operations, or has no realistic allermative bul Lo do sa,

The Board of Directors are also respansible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasorable assurance about whether the Stetement as a whole is fres from
matarial misstatement, whather due to fraud or emror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
apinion, Reasonable assurance s a high level ol assurance but is nol a guaranies thal an audil conduclad
in accordance with SAs will always delect a material misstalement when it exisis, Misstatemenis can arise
fram frawd or error and are congiderad material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably
be axpected o (nfluerce the economic decisions of Users taken on the basis of lhe Slatement,

As parl of an audil in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skapiicism throughout the audit, We alsa;
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2020-2021 CONSOLIDATED
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SR Batimon & Associares LLP
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FY 2021-2022 Consolidated Financials

(i} is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations in this
regard; and

(ii) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the récognition and measurement principles {ald down in
the applicable accounting standards, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated net less and other comprehensive income and other financial informaticn of the Group for
the year ended March 31, 2022,

Basis for Opinion

Ve conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {543) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Our responsibitities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Consatidated Financial Résults section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our dudit of the
Statement under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us and other auditer in terms of their report referred to in “Other Matters™ paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Hatibhakti & Coo LLP, Chartared Ancosntants 2egn. Noo ALl 3758, imited todiilty piethership foEar g o odia lcoovested on 17t Ao, 2014
frep fn Hastiwnkn & Go. FRN: 103323w)

3red Floar, 518 Okbla Industeiss Ares, Phgss ), Nesy Doty « 110000, Indi Tel+9t 15 4717 9395 Fanie01 11 £701 098

RegZioved ofTico; 05, Looa Bukiness Park, Andhori- Kk Roadd, Anchort (63, Mombal - 400059, pidkis.

Other officos: Ahmedsdsd, Bengator, Chennat, Hyderabad, Kotkata, Mumbol, Fune.
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FY 2021-2022 STANDALONE FINANCIALS

Basis for Opinion

We canducted eur audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143{10) of the Lompanes &ct, 2013 {"Act"). Uur responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Results section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAIT) together with the.
etrical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Statement under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in
aceordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
v fave obtoincd i3 aufficicnt and eppropriate to provide o bai for our opinice,

Emiphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the Statement:

a) Note 3 to the Statement, which explains the management’s evaluation of the financial impact
due to COVID-19 pandemic. The assessment of the impact is highly subjective and dependent
upon the: circumstances as they evolve,
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+ Evaluate the overall presentaticn, structure and content of the Statement. including the
disclosures, and whether the Statement represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiied with
retevant. othical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

a) The audit of the standalone financial results for the year ended March 31, 2021 was carried
put and reported by the Company’s predecessor auditors’ M/s, S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP,
vide their unmodified audit report dated June G4, 2021 whos2 report has been fumished to us
by the management and which has been relied upon By us for the purpose of our audit of the
Statement. '

A5 explained in note 11 to the Statement and point b) of the Emphasis of Matter paragraph
zbove, these audiled figures have however been restated by the Managenent to give effect
of the said amalgamation. The restated financial results for the aforesaid year has been
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors but have net been subject to audit,

Dur report s not modified in respect of thismatter.

Continuaison shoot
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FY 2022-2023 STANDALONE FINANCIALS
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Chartered Accountants

We comeunicate with thise charged with govemance regading. amung othwr mattars, the planncd
scope and tmieg of the aude wed sigaificant audnt findings. mdudimg sy significea dolicndes in
nTernzd control that we sdentify durag ol Gkt

Wi pdsi prouide thse dhanged with porersance with o statemed that we have complied with rdevant
ethical ragsrmeinds reganding edependence, a0d 10 comysucicate with tem Wl rdationships and ether
matiers that may ressonatly be thought 10 sew on oar ndepeadence, and whine applcadls, relatvd
safoguards.

Other matbers.

2 The sudit of the standaione fisandal resdts for ted yoie ended March 31, 2002 wirs carmed cut and
repoted by tha comgany’s prececeszor auittors’ My, Marltoakn B Co, LLP, s thefr urencéifiod
utht report deted May 30, 2002 wiras report has beers furnished t 3% by the masagemant and
wiich has been rebied upon by us Sor the purpoe of owr dudit of the sttement.

b} Tho Statement inchdes the cesuks for the quarter cnded Mardi: 33, 2022, bsiog the batardng Sgure
Betwoen mafited figeres In respec of full Ananci! yeor ended Madr 31, 202, and unieited figures
I respect of A monts ynded December 31, 2021, as opivred in oote 35 & 9 to the Stetarent,
the figures for the nine months ended Decembes 31, 2025, have been restated by the maragement
10 g sffect of the siio amolgamanon. The resiaed fgures for the aforesihd perkod hove beea
sppecnd by the Corvpany’s Boaed of Birectors bot has mot been subject 1o fned review of Juds,

Dy sptnian on the standafone finsecal resslts & sot moditied nrespect of above matters,

For Srahmayyak Co,,
Ohartered Azcountants
Frmt's mm.ob.:mosus :

Phace: Sorugr e Partner
Date: 20 My, 2023 Memberiip No. 223656

Geoand flear, SUF PRerd Towor Sutub Enclavn TV - TN A
whofk f sane dha, Guosgraay, Harpene - T3 iR L med delhigiaeshmaypaom | s hoEmgyylata
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Ciix Capital Services Private Limited

CIN; UG5923DL1995PTCLAG256
Regd Office: Aggarveal Corporate Tower, Plot Ko, 23, Sth Flaor, Goving Lal Stkka Merg, Rejendra Place, New Delkd- 110008
Telephone: +91-124 3302000 | Walssike: wiv.tiix.capital

[INR I l2cs EP

Statemant of Standalone Fluancial resilts for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023
Quarter ended Year anded
Particalrs 31:Mar-23 3i-Dac-12 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
refernote 1) | frefernote-12) | freernota-33) | e udited
[Revanue frem aperations
Interest Income 16,376 15554 13,128 60,851 53,884
fental Income LT 402 567 1,685 3455
Feas and commissian Incame 751 00 628 2,809 3,304
Met gain on falr value changes {3 185 3% a7 i L]
Met gain on d f financlal | amortised 1176 263 - 1,678 125
cust category
Total revenue from opesations 1867 17,888 15,362 61,305 53,752
Gther incoma 861 538 1112 2,15 1,598
Tatal income 18,500 18,522 16,474 70,640 66,350
Expenses
Financa costs B528 7,768 6,680 30,175 8218
Fees and commission expenss 218 127 247 851 £l
Impairment on financlal instrumants 1564 A4,042 2,054 1228 26,552
Employee bornefit sxpenses 2505 3u84 1470 8,409 1546
Depreciation and amartiztion 563 624 1304 2515 4,018
Other expanses 250 1,803 3,6 10,642 B,G75
Total expenses 16379 17,505 14,781 §5,221 TR708
Profit/{loss) bef J eeaptional itam 3,161 91 L3 5,419 112,358}
items [refor note - 10} {2,058) . . {2,054
Profit/(loss] before tax Lu7 827 1,693 3,365 (12,358)
Tax expense;
(1) Current tax - - 1483} - -
{2) Current tax for aarller years (432) - (5) (432) 13)
{3) Deferred Tex 2 33 at4 1,356 (3,022)
Profit/ (loss) for the periodyyear 751 64 1227 2,041 {8,331)
Other comprehenslva Income
2 liems that will not be reclassifiod to profit of loss
Ferpeasuraments of defined banaft iauiity 6l 15 7 R 51
Income tax seleting to [tema that will not be reclassified to 2 1) {t0) 19) 13)
profit or logs
Otiver Comprehensive Income/{less) ) 1 17 8 38
Tatal eamprehensive income/{loss) for the perbod/year Wl 706 L2534 2,469 {9,293)
Earpings per equity share*
Basiz (INR) 0.05 005 0.08 047 .65y
Diuted (MR .05 [ .08 016 [0.55)
Mominal Value Eﬂm‘c iINRI i 10 10 10 10

*Quarter end Bazle EPS and Diluted EFS are net annualiszd

fer and an behalf of the Board of Directors
h Eapital Services Private Limted

Piace: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023
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Clin Capitod Services Private Limbted

CIN: YES929DL1994PTCLI6ZSE
R, Office: Aggaresal Corporate Tawer, Plat No, 23, 5th Flear, Govind Lal $Tkka Marg; Rajeudea Flace, New Delhi- 110008
Tehephons: +91-124 3302000 | Wekbsite: waww.dik.capital

{INR I laes)
Statemant of Standalone Assets and Liabilities as at 31 March 2023
Asat Asat
Porticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Financial assats
Cash and eash aguivalents 30471 25,190
Bank belance other than above 27,783 17,633
Lians 4,02,583 3,33,603
Investments 26,548 45,769
Other financizl assets 3,339 3,005
Non- financla) assats
Current tax #ssets {net) BSTT 5,039
Deferred tax assets (net} 16,474 17,839
Property, plant and equl pment 4,621 5,404
Intangille assets under development 0 793
Goodwill 36,768 36,765
Other Intangibla assats 2,490 2,251
Rlght-of-use assets 455 593
Other non- financial assets 4,318 4,314
Assets held for sale o07 505
Total assets 5,75,643 4,985,726
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
i} Trade payables
a) Totzl eutstanding dues of micro enterprises 223 32
and small enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of craditors ether 14,234 5,079
than micro entenprises and small entenprises
I} Other payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprizes -
and small entensprises
) Tetal outstanding dwes of creditors other 10,086 751
than micra enterprises and small enterprises —_—
Dbt securities 47,601 T, 563
Borrowings (ether than debt securities) 283,007 1,591,945
Lease Nabilities 617 T35
Cther financial liabilites 8,578 8,578
_ FY 2022-2023 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS
Mo T i cial lablities
Prowisions 3429 3359
Cther non-financial Liabilithes 3850 2,600
Total lizblites 3,72,515 2,598,925
Equity
Equsity share capital 143,599 1,043,500
Other sty 59,524 56,202
Tatal equity 2,083,123 1,99,601
Total labilities and equity 5,753,648 4,598,726

For and on behalf of the Sosrd of Directors
Clix Capital Servicas Privata Limited

wWhole Time Divector and CEO
DN DIARGEES.

Piace: Gurugram
Date: 26 May M3
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o Floon BLF Pl Tosrer, Gub Encleve,
[ibics 10, Spedesr A, GHirunrm, sprein - 22002

INDEPENDENT ALDITORS REWRET

T thia Bgand of Disectoors of {8 Caphial Services Prbvrts Limibed
Tt s S At o s Carnsasliclstesd Fiinclad Winsiita
Opinien

Wer hirve sudibed the aoosm paryig conselidated sonoal firanciel resubs of Ot Capltal Sendcas Prvacse
Limitad £ the Holding Compame’ 2nd fs srbsikdany (the Waliding and fis subsdlary mmmwrmmdw 51.

“the oo’ for e year ended March 23, 3001 (the st " atiched b ith, biriog
try Ehe Holdng © o e reg of w52 of the SEED {Listing Obligarioes
ang stlomire Heg iz Heg , SOES, a5 e | Listing Aegulations'].

11 aur ooinkon andto the bestaf cor Infonma on and aecssding be the erplansdioes gl be i, widbared
o the canskderation of the regorts of B ather awdiod o0 sepanats sudited Rnancisl rolis of sphagoeyg,
the afaresaid consedaned linamdal reashs:

& bchidis S ool Tinaocaf results of 2ho follosding entites:

. B o e £y [ Belntinniia__ '
1 il Capiral Services Frivate Limied | Hiiding Company
1 l.'JH .Hnu.-q,_FIan-u&wd wwmgﬁhgchmm
B pre presseaedin it with the res g b 5ol che Livting Regulations in tho
Fegand; and
€, e 3 brue and- e eioe i conformity with e recognd S THeas " i bk dowm

m the apphcable idlan socoenting siandards {*ind A57), R8I geidelings s nilse agosuming
principles gretally socopted in Incka of thio et probt s nibsy ceitipreh frides Moome and othes
firancial infermak ke ol tha Sroup for the v seded March 31, 2053,

Basks for Ol

e conchiciod gur mls o acconderce weth the Sendards on Audsieg (Rosh, geecilied under @iton
BT &f the L Act, 213 s i If'dwmﬂ.l:l-ur mum&llmmrmmm
afehurther desotbed o the "duditors she Audirof the O d Fisansi Reeyies”
SRk of qur report

W ane moepeadent of ohe Group, 0 Ecoidanes wilh the Code of Eoiecs isscod by the Erdiube of
Chirtered Aocoumdaents of fdiz S10AF) tepether with The ofbecal oo oments ghil weo releist e Gur
0% of B statemi under the pRowisians of the Aot Rukes thérmeedien, and w hine Tulildeg gur
abher cohical responsibifties b aocordante with these requisamonts and The Cide o [rves., We rliee
thal he sudit esidiondd: sbigined Dy ut and ofhor il in Dvve of Ther eport ey fed B i T e
Fatter’ pardgrasts bodby, 1 silliant o aporoseiati o providy o bk for gur apinian,
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Chartarad hoopundams

G Feon, DLF Pz for Cotoh Endas,
Tack U, Sectre 104 CHiuenare, Haraia - T 0

E o Rz ity e thar Eumsoliduted Fhaanclal feesubs

Tho statdmat kave been prepared on the besis of theoodaslidaned Asedal findndial scatements Tha
Huolding Compay's Boend of Dircoiors e respordibt $or T gr inn i procetatios H"hﬂ-ﬂ
skl Gt e a rue asd far viss od the o dideted mart profit, corsetidatad ofher compoah
i i otk Tinadciad information of the Growp in dooprdancs with g Indan Aecirestivg Stadands
spadilied under section 133 of the Aot and Rules shimeosdir, the deenlirs, guididinis Wdl'wkha
it by Ohe Fareerve Sank of bca (RED from dme o tme {0 Ganlelivan’] snd sthor
princplins pesTally docepted in ndia aodtin cemplanon with regolatnn 53 of the Listing Reguntions.

The respuclie Bosed of Ditetors of the Companos induded 6 the Group e msperaibin: o
maintenenos of adipeds  accountig reconds in aooordance wiiny the. pmsssions of the A for
alepuaring of the st f tha Greup and for presenting and detecting frawds ind othes imegd artting
setection and sppbcition of apgeopriate sccounting poices, making jadgments and cstimatio that e
reazerable pred prudent; ond disign, iniph atfan and o adenuabe irdemal § ]
comtrol thal wero opesaling effeciiady for eoouring acourzoy ond comp of tee 8
mm 1 T p:gpm'auun and presentation of the Saterment that ghve a troc and fer ves nd
arefreef A mmmma:mrnhkhmmmhmwme
ol preparation of the stafement by B Iiiecrorof the Hoiding Comiparny, a5 aloeosid

i preganing the stztement, the cepoches Boaed of Dingcso's of tha O incaded in tha P
rEspansibie for assessing the atelty of the G g e Centingi ie 3 poang concern, tiednsing, as appicabie,
s velatey by Roing concem and usng the i condeen Bk of stosinting unkass the Board of
Dirpctors citfeer fnbands o liquidate the Group o 10 orse cpealiom, or Ras se realslic @ernaties bl
o diss,

Thes respaczie Boaed of Bineccors o the entitp drchadiad bn Bat Group e s fingssss b b st iaeing
she finasesal heporting prooess of the Geoup,

Psrlitsr's Ringonsibifties fes the AU of the Consalidisted Sinsacel Bisui

it obmctives are fo ghtain fesomabbe acsurano: ahoar whether te statenent as @ whale ars oo from
mraberial misskabomuns, whethie due b fraud o conon, and o issoe a9 audror's neport thak mcdades o
cqdnion. Reasanabln seaupsn iva Bigh fevsd of sxserance, bt is nod a graranbee that s audd cenductad
N Acerderoe with S wil o bemps doiec arnagieiol Mt st nt whealt anlsts. Misstatemonas con arsa
Sross Frad or wroe and sre corsidwmd metedal i ndiiialy o e D apiTegabe; thiy codd reasonably
e ppoetad Un iflion the acnnmmis decivang ol woon tabon en U ks of thess Saoement

st of 7 gt In acoordance wieh S, wereerise grefessional id et v [
Tepaici Braughout e audt, We alsx

=ttty and sises thiersks of al at of the ether dos be fraud ar
arr, design aned pichieenm Andl proredUnns reponsre bo those rists, and nh'lah st eaidarie that
I sulifcient and apprepriatets movdn o hasis for sur opisian. The risk of not deteciog 2 matecal
mrésstabemen resnling from fraod o kighee G for one reseiing from ennar, as fraud may mvobee
céhisos, [ongery, IMentinnsl omissons, mermemdnation, or the ovenite of e na control,

v (Ezin an aesentanding of aiomal controd refemnt o the st inorder to desgn audd procedures.
et ArT aporopeiate in the aniss. Mnder sectan JA3[3 1| of the Ak, we a0e sy regoonsibie
Por cuprecsing car spininn Thrugh h eepaate raport on the camplkte st of fnnds statememts on

B ]
E malhisivahmayamn | wewhehnrgacnn
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—_——— Chartersd AofounLanls

Gl Fesi, [ILF-Pae Towes, Guih Enciyes,
Bk B Sootte H, S nn b - 12 & mai LS EEEAR Lo | e LR o R

whmther the Compary has sdequate P sl conirols wa relemenoe T Snarcal statemens
i ploce g fhn operating affeckheneis of Sich congnels,

¢ Ewiduais the appapratenes of sopsumbing policied wond and the mpagneblenes of stsiuntiog
T i refatod disch 1= s by the Baerd of Directers,

» Conclede o0 i apprapratensss of the Scard of Direclors’ use of the ‘Roing -cancerm basis of
“accnianiing s, Based on 1he st meidencd obtained, whether o meterial upoeriznty eslst relzneg
b ety o CouliTlor Bl may rest sgefiant doubt on the atiFy of the Groes to oomine as.d
pomigs coneir Hwen conelig that 3 mateial uaoertainky eslsts, we are requinsd fo drv ttenon
aurmd e rédai? 10 the wdaled dsdagees in the statemint o, IF such dsdosere: e inadequate,
b gy cur ppiran Qe canclisians ane hased on the aud avderce obisned wp to the date of
oo apdibor's report Howeper, fufue gl & Soed iy Caise Che Grosg T o cantinae
253 gning manoem,

+  Evalabe T oerrad presertmion, siruciune s matent of e sateniin, inchaling the disdneams,
anil whethor e staberent Tepesenl the imderhying ronesctions. ped pepcty oo omannie that
achkeas Tai geEsentation

4 N TN A aEhiane swdit evigence reganding the finarop resohs of ghe ertities within the
S Lo uapsiss an Sk on the statenenl W are resporsite lor e dnedion, supersbion and
pecfurmrann of the fudit of Snantal inforratan of such entity Indidsd i the statement of which
‘wn g the P pirdent audiars, For me other entiy Inchetded I the staterwert, which e been
it By o2 e anatitery, sucds otfer audhers temain mesponetits far the dhection, seperdston and
perfiregnes of Uss sl G 0ot By chem . Whe Femoin sodely responsibie for o audit opinkon

Whe rommairieate with those cherged with governsnce & thi Habdog Company regarding, among other
miatners, the panned soope and tiring of s auditand signilicen Audin indéngs; nduding any sgrelicant
deficharias iy eAmna mnteol thak s idenbify drey our aude.

W ke provvide thase tharnged with povirnancs with a clitirrend Thin s S eompling with neeyvant
ethiboad f e epanding independance, pod i i it thipen sl reltbermbips and athar
migrters that may riasonably be thoughs o bear o o independiveor, and whan appficablo, et
salrguart.

rchear sxbbery .

L. The statomentind utes the sudibed fieanotal resuts of aabsulidlany, whess Tisancial sanits refleg
Growp's skare ol okl assets of Bs. 13984 v an st Banch T0, A00%, Gooip's chivs of toMal revsnus
Gl RL 2707 Lecs, Genun's share of batal met proft sftes o of B B0 Laty o mid cowh cotflows
amoerig bo RE 3448 Lacs for the year ended korch 30, 2003 e ctivety, astonsidered i the
stabemment, which hess been sudited By thek respective independent auditor. The independert
Ausnzy’ eports nn Feancied ress of the enciy Taee been fumdshed 1o 5s by the mamagemes and
g njrinitn on Dhi Vb mewd, e FaF o i relanes bo this arvebas ond s sckosres incded in mspent
of shis enthty, m haded sally en Ui report of such audor and the procedures performed By us e
a5 skated bn poedarapt: sl
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ki Ther gk of o + 1 For thipear ended Rlanch 3, 2002, wr catried mul
arad reported by the Group's predeaes sodion” WS, Heibuakt  Co 4P, vl e snoddied
it repors dated Moy 30, SR wheas repart ban boen Turasthod o us by Sl mansgesenl angd
which has Doy peied upon by us S the purjidse oo audi of e Slatemnl.

3. Do monion o consoddsted financial Skatements s not arxified with s ln o relani on the
wnrl dowe s the repoets of the other audion:

e

N, Wemkata Sunesd
Flace: Gunigem Pty
DMy 267, 23 Membership Mo, J2I05E
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Maticnal Stock Exchange OFf India Limited
Ref. No: NSE/LIST/6871 October 19, 2023

The Company Secretary

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Aggarwal Corporate Tower,
Govind La SikkaMarg, Rajendra Place,

New Delhi - 110008, India

Kind Attn.: Ms. Vinu Rajat Kalra
Dear Madam,

Sub.: In-principle approval for proposed listing of non-convertible debentures on private placement
basis.

This is with reference to your application requesting for in-principle approval for General Information
Document dated October 19, 2023 for proposed Senior/ Unsubordinated / Subordinated, Secured /
Unsecured, Rated, Listed, Principal Protected or not, Market Linked or not, Green Debt Securities or not,
Non-Convertible Securities of face value of Rs. 100000/- each, to beissued in varioustranches on a private
placement basis. In this regard, the Exchange is pleased to grant in-principle approval for the said issue,
subject to adequate disclosures to be made in the General Information Document / Key Information
Document in terms of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as
amended from timeto time, applicable SEBI Circulars and other applicable lawsin thisregard and provided
the Company prints the Disclaimer Clause as given below in the Genera Information Document / Key
Information Document after the SEBI disclaimer clause:

“As required, a copy of this General Information Document / Key Information Document has been
submitted to National Stock Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter referred to as NSE). It is to be
distinctly understood that the aforesaid submission or in-principle approval given by NSE vide its
letter Ref.: NSE/LIST/6871 dated October 19, 2023 or hosting the same on the website of NSE in
terms of SEBI (Issue And Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from
time to time, should not in any way be deemed or construed that the document has been cleared or
approved by NSE; nor does it in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or
completeness of any of the contents of this document; nor does it warrant that this Issuer’s securities
will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; nor does it take any responsibility for the
financial or other soundness of this Issuer, its promoters, its management or any scheme or project
of this Issuer.

Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquire any securities of this Issuer may do so
pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the
Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or
in connection with such subscription /acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to
be stated herein or any other reason whatsoever.”

Please note that the approval given by us should not in any way be deemed or construed that the General
Information Document / Key Information Document has been cleared or approved by NSE; nor doesit in
any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this
document; nor doesit warrant that the securitieswill belisted or will continue to belisted on the Exchange;

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited | Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051,
India+91 22 26598100 | www.nzsindiz.com | CIN US7120MH199 2PLCOS9TEY
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nor does it take any responsibility for the financia or other soundness of the Company, its promoters, its
management or any scheme or project.

Kindly aso note that these debt instruments may be listed on the Exchange after the allotment process has
been completed, provided the securities of the issuer are eligible for listing on the Exchange as per our
listing criteria and the issuer fulfills the listing requirements of the Exchange. The issuer is responsible to
ensure compliance with all the applicable guidelines issued by appropriate authorities from time to time
including SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 as amended from time
to time, applicable SEBI Circulars and other applicable lawsin thisregard.

Specific attention is drawn towards Para 1 of Chapter XV of SEBI Operationa Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021. Accordingly, Issuers of privately placed debt
securities in terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 and for whom accessing the electronic book platform (EBP) isnot mandatory
shall upload details of the issue with any one of the EBPs within one working day of allotment of securities.
The detail s can be uploaded using the following links:

https://www.nse-ebp.com
https://www.nseebp.com/ebp/rest/reportingentity ?new=true

Thisin-principle approval shall be valid for a period of one year from the date of opening of the first issue
of securities under this General Information Document. Kindly note that such first issue of securities under
this General Information Document should be opened within one year from the date of this letter.

Kindly note, this Exchange letter should not be construed as approval under any other Act
/Regulation/Rule/Bye laws (except as referred above) for which the Company may be required to obtain
approval from other department(s) of the Exchange. The Company isrequested to separately take up matter
with the concerned departments for approval, if any.

Y ours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Prakash Kelkar,
Manager
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ANNEXURE VII: ALM STATEMENTS AS ON 315T MARCH 2023

(i Details with regard to lending done out of the issue proceeds of earlier issuances of
debt securities (whetherpublic issue or private placement) by NBFC:

All the proceeds from issuance of non-convertible debentures were utilized for general
corporate purpose or for onward lending of mortgage loans

(ii) Lending Policy Details:

SegKr::Znts Usr;(:::':rzld Sourcing* | Underwriting | Avg. Tenure | Avg. Ticket Size
Business Unsecured P+D Manual 30 20L
Loan

Merchant Secured D D 18 1L
Lending

Healthcare Secured P Manual 60 75L

Equipment

Finance

School Secured P Manual 120 80L
Loan

Personal UnSecured D D 36 2.5L
Loan

*P= Physical D=Digital

(iii) Classification of loans given to associate or entities related to Board, senior
management, promoters, etc.:

Nil
(iv) Classification of loans into several maturity profile denomination:
(All amount in INR Lakhs, except for share data unless stated otherwise-prepared
yearly only)
L 2 bt g _ 32 Mard 1120 |
| Fartiesbr g ot g Prphes leme  TRhar Sroadl ol o ] leme. Cibarbmedd o
| (o cirkt Lty b iw EE'\*.-I!::! dnki L ey =28
| saaiis] | waallen
{ L S 1 25T HEEE: 511 B e H et ] 45 e I B
[Tar T Tmes 150 E i imE|  EET g S
{1k 3 peech B gt 4 i) [T i 6 TR L
| e Eopmman 15 LikE HLrn ] &y
ol b i BaTH Lifre|  dsim e A s L |
(v) Details of loans, overdue and classified as non-performing assets:
. Stage Stage 3 Total
Entity Stage 1 2 (NPA) Loans
Clix Capital as on June 30, 2023 (In Rs 4011.54 | 376.47 11.72 | 4499,73
Crores)

Details of borrowings of the Company, as on June 30, 2023
Details of Secured Loan Facilities as on June 30, 2023
(For Merged Entity CC + CF)
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Name of Amount Principal Repay Credit
I Sanctio Avail ment Rating, Asset
ender Type of Amount . . P
Bank /Fl  Facilit ned. ed Outstand date Security |f. Cla§5|f|c
Y (INRin Amt . Isched applica ation
Name ( ing
Crore) ule ble
Bank of Term 200 200 40 Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Baroda Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
IDFC First Term 470 470 341.66 |Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Bank Loan/ Debts | (Stable)
wecdl/c and
c Receiva
bles
Bank of India | Term 75 75 28.13 |Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
Karnataka Term 50 50 25.00 |Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Bank Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
State Bank of | Term 305 305 219.36 | Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
India Loan/c Debts | (Stable)
c and
Receiva
bles
Indian Bank Term 195 195 120.52 | Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan/c Debts | (Stable)
c and
Receiva
bles
Suryoday Term 44 44 24.50 Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Small Loan Debts | (Stable)
Finance and
Bank Receiva
bles
DCB Term 40 40 23.93 |Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan/c Debts | (Stable)
c and
Receiva
bles
Bank of Term 200 200 177.72 |Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Maharashtra Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
NABARD Term 200 200 110.00 |Quarterly | Book Acuite | Standard
Loan Debts A+
and (Stable)
Receiva
bles
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Name of Amount Principal Repay Credit
I Sanctio Avail ment Rating, Asset
ender  Typeof ™ q Amount i te Security if | Classific
Bank /Fl  Facility |£eR . : Outstand y # .
Name ( in mt . Isched applica ation
Crore) ule ble
Nabsamrudhi | Term 48 48 26.72 |Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Financial Loan Debts | (Stable)
Services and
Receiva
bles
Northern Arc | Term 220 220 146.25 |Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
MAS Term 121.25 | 121. 80.94 Monthly Book |CARE A | Standard
Financial Loan 25 Debts | (Stable)
Services and
Limited Receiva
bles
Maanaveeya Term 50 50 25 Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Finance Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
Federal Bank | Term 250 250 225 Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan/c Debts | (Stable)
c/wedl and
Receiva
bles
South Indian Term 60 60 9.58 Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Bank Loan/c Debts | (Stable)
c and
Receiva
bles
JM Finance Term 100 100 17.34 | Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
ICICI Bank CcC 15 15 0.00 Quarterly Book |CARE A | Standard
Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
Kisetsu Term 79 79 53.63 |Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Saison Loan Debts | (Stable)
Finance and
(India) Pvt. Receiva
Ltd. bles
Utkarsh Term 30 30 21.25 Monthly Book |CARE A | Standard
Small Loan Debts | (Stable)
Finance and
Bank Receiva
bles
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Name of Amount Principal Repay Credit
I Sanctio Avail ment Rating, Asset
ender — Typeof ™ 4 d Amount jte Security if | Classific
Bank/FI  Facility 2%~ °  Outstand 2 ° y # .
Name ( ] mt ing sche applica ation
Crore) ule ble
Hinduja Term 50 50 38.51 |Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Leyland Loan Debts | (Stable)
Finance Ltd. and
Receiva
bles
SIDBI Term 100 100 90.91 Monthly Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
Bandhan Term 50 50 46.67 |Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Bank Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
Cholamandal | Term 15 15 13.57 | Monthly Book |CARE A | Standard
am Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
Manappuram | Term 40 40 36.2 Monthly Book |CARE A | Standard
Finance Ltd. Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
Indusind Term 50 50 41.67 Monthly Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
ABFL Term 25 25 22.50 |Quarterly| Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
CSB Bank Term 25 25 25 Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Ltd Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
CanaraBank | Term 50 50 50 Quarterly | Book |CARE A | Standard
Loan Debts | (Stable)
and
Receiva
bles
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Name of Amount Principal Repay Credit
Sanctio Avail ment Rating, Asset
lender Type of Amount . . P
e ned ed date Security if Classific
Bank /Fl  Facility . Outstand . .
N (INRin Amt . Isched applica ation
ame ing
Crore) ule ble
Global Term 82.02 | 82.0 82.02 Yearly Book |CARE A | Standard
Climate Loan 2 Debts | (Stable)
Partnership and
Fund S.A,, Receiva
SICAV-SIF bles

Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities as June 30, 2023:

Name of L.

Amount . Principal Repayment
lender - . Availed

Bank / FI Type of Facility San_ctloned Amt Amoun_t date
Name (INR in Crore) Outstanding /schedule

Clix Housing

Finance Ltd. TL 10 10 9 17-Feb-23

Non-Convertible Debentures as on June 30, 2023

Series of ISIN Tenor Amount Date Redempt Cre Secured Security
NCS Outstand of ionDate/ dit /
ingin Cr. Allot Schedule Rati Unsecur
ment ng ed

ESZSF/D INE157D0 | 36 | 10.6 20 18- 18- CA Secured | Book
21/08 7DJ6 0% Sep- | Sep-23 | RE Debts
20 A and

Receiv

ables

INE157D0 | 18 | 10.1 6 30- 31- CA Secured | Book

CCSPL/D 7DR9 0% Jun- | Dec-23 | RE Debts
EB/22- 22 A and
23/01 Receiv
ables

s | INE157D0 | 16 | 100 | 50 | 20- | 20- | CA |Secured| Book
3/02 7DS7 0% Jul-22 | Nov-23 | RE Debts
A and

Receiv

ables

INE157D0 | 24 | 10.1 | 31.25 16- 16- CA |[Secured| Book

CCSPL/D 7DT5 0% Sep- | Sep-24 | RE Debts
EB/22- 22 A and
23/03 Receiv
ables

CSPSD | INE157D0 | 37 | 106 | 35 | 26- |31-Oct | CA |Secured| Book
23/05 7DU3 6% Sep- 25 RE Debts
22 A and
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Series of Amount Date Redempt Cre Secured Security
NCS Outstand of ionDate/ dit /
ingin Cr. Allot Schedule Rati Unsecur

Receiv

ables

INE157D0 18 9.65 20 29- 29- CA |Secured| Book

CCSPL/D 7DW9 % Sep- | Mar-24 | RE Debts
EB/22- 22 A and
23/06 Receiv
ables

CE:S/%;L/D INE157D0 | 30 | 10.2 25 3-Mar- | 2-Sept- | CA |Secured| Book
23/07 7DX7 5% 23 25 RE Debts
A and

Receiv

ables

INE157D0 18 2% 49 27- 27-Oct- | CA |Secured| Book

CES/Z;/D 7DY5 Apr-23 | 24 RE Debts
- A and
24/01 Receiv
ables

Coon’® | INE157D0 | 24 | 104 | 35 | 24- | 24- | CA |Secured| Book
24/02 7DZ2 5% May- | May-25 | RE Debts
23 A and

Receiv

ables

INE157D0 24 10.4 50 12- 12- CA |Secured| Book

CCSPL/D 7EA3 0% Jun- | Jun-25 | RE Debts
EB/23- 23 A and
24/03 Receiv
ables

ES/S;L/D INE157D0 | 27 10.1 50 30- 30- CA |Secured| Book
24/04 7EB1 0% Jun- Sept- RE Debts
23 25 A and

Receiv

ables

The amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer along with name of the counterparty
(like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group-company, etc.) on behalf of whom it has been
issued. (if any):

NA

Details of Commercial Paper: The total Face Value of Commercial Papers Outstanding as on
the latest quarter end i.e. June 30, 2023 and its breakup
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Teno
r/
Matu
rity
Perio | Coupon | nding
din i
no.
of
DEVES
- | INE157D14 | 365 DP.6% 21.90 | 28- |28- CARE | Unsec NA ICICI
CP | ED3 Nov- [Nov- A1 ured Bank
issuanc 22 23
el22-
23/03/1
- | INE157D14 | 363 DB.65% 15 10- 7-Mar- | CARE | Unsec NA ICICI
CP | EE1 Mar- (24 A1 ured Bank
issuanc 23
el22-
23/03/2
- | INE157D14 | 165 [10.5% 25 17-  |29- CARE | Unsec NA ICICI
CP | EF8 Apr- |Sept- A1 ured Bank
issuanc 23 23
e/22-
23/03/3
- | INE157D14 | 179 [10.5% 45 17- 13- CARE | Unsec NA ICICI
CP | EG6 Apr- |Oct- A1 ured Bank
issuanc 23 23
el22-
23/03/4
- | INE157D14 | 126 DP.9% 25 24- |27- CARE | Unsec NA ICICI
INE157 | EH4 May- |Sept- A1 ured Bank
D14EH 23 23
4

(vi) Any change in promoters holding in NBFC during last financial year beyond the
threshold prescribed by RBI - NA

(vii) Disclosures of assets under management

State wise break

-up of Total
Active Client As on March 31,2021  AsonMar22 AsonMar23 AsonJun23
(No. of
borrowers)
Maharashtra 17536 12401 16938 21103
Telangana 12856 8067 9818 13104
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State wise break

-up of Total
Active Client As on March 31,2021 AsonMar22 AsonMar23 AsonJun23
(No. of
borrowers)

Delhi 12742 6120 7040 10176
Karnataka 12175 8121 10418 12797
Haryana 10176 30838 66694 43409
Tamil Nadu 6887 5010 8637 11268
Uttar Pradesh 4957 111 3717 4274
Gujarat 3965 2816 5627 6980
Rajasthan 1465 1323 3883 4382
Punjab 522 37 837 1974
West Bengal 367 25 1782 2347
Andhra Pradesh 214 11 3143 4339
Madhya Pradesh 85 12 1203 1807
Odisha 85 10 1180 1677
Bihar 63 7 1463 2050
Kerala 37 6 919 1313
Himachal Pradesh 32 2 7

Uttarakhand 24 5 154 117

Digital Partnership Excluded

Segment Wise Active

As on March 31,

As on March

As on March As on Jun

Client Numbers

2021

22

23 23

SME 6519 5813 9269 12472
Business Loans 5269 4192 7163 11016
Healthcare Financing 65 730 697 730
School Financing K12 588 740 1381 715
Supply chain - 13 0 0 0
Loan against card 584 151 28 11

receivables

Retail - Consumer 77652 70726 86876 130645
Personal Loans 54909 60646 84867 84458
Auto Lease and Two 22544 9724 1810 7347

Wheeler
Housing loan (DA) 199 356 199 98

Corporate Lending 24 163 157 31

| Digital Partnership 47178 38711

Total Borrowers of Clix 84195 321008 143480 143117

Capital

a) Segment Wise NPA as Mar 31, 2023

Segment GNPA

Core Book Mar 31, 2023
BL 12.27
PL 15.71
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Segment GNPA
HFS 16.97
K-12 2217
LAP 1.62
Others 31.03
Grand Total 99.77
Clix Capital | Mar-23
GNPA 2.48%
NNPA 1.58%
b) ALM 2 Summary (Rs. in cr)

Clix Capital Services Private Limited ALM 2 based on provisional financials

As on March 31, 2023

A. TOTAL OUTFLOWS | 60.14 | 31.22 | 304.1 | 382.2 | 260. | 523. | 807. | 1,22 | 180 | 2,23 | 6,0

9 8 92 29 94 8.11 | .87 |9.03 | 17.

99

B. TOTAL INFLOWS 769.6 | 17.96 | 40.91 | 185.6 | 212. | 696. | 890. | 1,40 | 579 | 1,45 | 6,2
2 5 65 28 38 149 | .33 |8.36 | 52.

62

C. Mismatch (B - A) 709 (13) (263) | (197) | (48) | 173 | 82 173 | 398 | (781)
D. Mismatch as % to 1180 | -42% | -87% | -51% | - 33% | 10% | 14% | 220 | -35%
outflows (Cas % toA) | % 19% %

E. Cumulative 60 91 396 778 1,039 | 1,562 | 2,370 | 3,598 | 3,77 6,018
outflows 9

F. Cumulative 709 696 433 236 188 361 443 617 1,0 | 235
Mismatch 15

G. 1179. | 762.0 | 109.4 | 30.38 | 18.1 | 231 | 18.7 | 171 | 26. | 3.90
Cumulative Mismatch | 74% 5% 5% % 0% 1% 1% 4% 87 %

as % to Cumulative %

Outflows (F as % to E)
* Gap between total outflows and total inflows due
to Contingent Liability/Off Balance sheet items
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ANNEXURE VIIl: BOARD RESOLUTION

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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CERTIFIED COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED IN ITS MEETING HELD ON 26™ JULY 2023

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all earlier resolutions passed in relation to issue of non-convertible
debentures by the Company and pursuant to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association
of the Company, subject to applicable law, rules, regulations, norms, circulars, guidelines, clarification,
directives, and notifications prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”) approval be and is hereby accorded for the issue of secured/unsecured,
rated/unrated, listed/unlisted, fixed/floating rate, non-convertible debentures, in one or more tranches,
on private placement basis (“NCDs”) of an amount not exceeding INR 2500 Crore for onward lending,
refinancing of existing debt, working capital and general business purposes of the Company, both
unsecured or secured against such security and on such terms as approved in the manner hereinafter
provided.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board hereby authorises the officers of the Company as per Authorisation
Table 1 (“Authorised Officers 1”), in the manner and subject to the limits mentioned in the said table to
exercise the powers and carry out the functions set out in the Authorisation Table 2 below in relation to
the NCDs, including where required, to issue a power of attorney for sub-delegation of such powers:

Authorization Table 1: (Authorised Officers I)

S.No. Name Authorization Limit

1 Rakesh Kaul NCDs up to a sum not
2 Gagan Aggarwal Any two jointly exceeding INR 2500
3 T. Prakash Shetty Crore

4 Vikram Rathi

Authorisation Table 2:
S.No. Description

1. Approval and adoption of the private placement offer letter, information
memorandum, and/or and shelf disclosure document, or updates, modifications or
addendums thereto, to be made available to the investors and/ or lenders, in
relation to the issuance of the aforementioned NCDs.
2. Recording and approval of the names of the investor(s)/ lender(s) eligible to invest
in the NCDs, to whom offers for subscription are to be made in terms of Section 42
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Investors”);
3. Determination of the terms and conditions of issuance of the NCDs, including but
not limited to timing of issuance, dates of offer opening and closing, and vary any
of the terms, if required, as per discussions with the Investors;

4, Approval of the final rate and tenor applicable for any issuance of the NCDs;
5. Approval of the type of security to be provided for the NCDs, if any
6. Appointment/change debenture trustees, registrar and transfer agents, and rating

agencies, where required, and to negotiate and determine the terms and conditions
of appointment of the aforementioned persons;

7. Acceptance of the ratings provided by the rating agency and to comply with the
terms and conditions that may be set out in such ratings;

Clix Capital Services Private Limited
901B, 9t Floor, Two Horizon Center, DLF Phase V, Gurugram, Haryana 122002, India

CIN: U65929DL1994PTC116256, PAN: AAACCO642F, Regd. Office: Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Aggarwal corporate Tower, Govind Lal Sikka Marg, Rajendra Place, New Delhi- 110008
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8. Appointment of legal counsel(s) in respect of the transactions under or pursuant to
the issuance of the NCDs and to negotiate and decide the terms and conditions of
such appointment;

9. Dealing with/ making representations/ submitting filings to, the appropriate
statutory and regulatory authorities and other bodies corporate in connection with
the issuance the NCDs including but not limited to the registrar of companies, the
RBI, the SEBI, depositories, stock exchanges, and rating agencies, as may be

required;

10. Doing all such acts as are required in compliance with the applicable rules,
regulations, guidelines in relation to the issuance of NCDs;

11. Doing any other activity as may be required to give effect to all or any of the

abovementioned activities and exercise of such other powers as may be delegated
by the Board from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers | shall constitute the Allotment Committee for approval
of allotment of NCDs to eligible investors and/or lenders upto the limits mentioned in the Table 1, to sign
such deeds, documents, certifications and instructions as may be required for the aforementioned
purpose and make such filings with statutory bodies, stock exchanges, depositories, and other relevant
authorities for or in relation to the allotment of the NCDs. The approval of the Committee may be
accorded in a meeting of the Committee or through circulation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the NCDs shall be issued in dematerialized form and may be listed on the stock
exchanges of the BSE Limited (“BSE”) or the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”), as may be
determined by the Authorised Officers (table 1), and shall comply with all applicable regulations, including
those issued by SEBI, RBI and, where applicable, the Company shall comply with the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 , SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities JRegulations,2021 and other applicable provisions for the time being inforce.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any two of Mr. Anil Chawla, Mr. Utsav Baijal or Mr. Kaushik Ramakrishna are
authorized to approve the early redemption of the Non-Convertible Debentures/Securities, subject to the
applicable regulatory requirements.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the NCDs may be secured in the manner determined by the Authorised Officers
(table 1), by creating charge on immovable property and / or any kind of other assets / property of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers (table 1) be and are hereby authorised to appoint
Debenture Trustee and the Debenture Trustee shall hold the security so provided by the Company to
secure the NCDs in trust for the debenture holders, in accordance with the debenture trust deed, the
deed of hypothecation or any other document executed for the relevant issuance of NCDs.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers (table 1) be and are hereby authorised to finalize,
execute, ratify and circulate the (a) shelf disclosure document, (b) each of the supplemental information
memorandum, (c) private placement letter of offer and (d) information memorandum and such other
documents, each as may be required in connection with the issuance of NCDs.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT some of the terms of the NCDs shall be as follows:

Clix Capital Services Private Limited www.clix.capital
9018, 9* Floor, Two Horizon Center, DLF Phase V, Gurugram, Haryana 122002, India hello@clix.capital
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Face value : INR 10 Lakh each/ INR 1 lakhs or such other amount
as may be permitted in the law

Security : To be confirmed by the Authorised Officers (table 1)

Rate of Interest : To be confirmed by the Authorised Officers(table 1)

Tenure : To be confirmed by the Authorised Officers (table 1),
but shall not exceed 10 years

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the persons set out in the Authorisation Table 3 below (“Authorised Officers
II”), in the manner and subject to the limits mentioned in the said table, be and is hereby authorised to
negotiate, finalize, execute and/ or ratify (a) the debenture trustee agreement, (b) the debenture trust
deed or subscription agreement, (c) the deed of hypothecation (if required), (d) mortgage documents (if
required), (e) private placement offer letter, (f) or any similar agreement, deed, or undertaking as may be
required for the issuance of NCDs or for the provisions of security for such NCDs, or any amendments or
modifications thereto:

Authorisation Table 3: (Authorised Officers Il)

Group Name Authorization

A Rakesh Kaul Any two jointly from Group A
T. Prakash Shetty
Gagan Aggarwal

Sanjay Rajpal
Ruchika Sharma
Dhairya Parikh

Ankit Aggarwal
B Pooja Mehta Any one from Group B jointly with any one
Naman Jain from Group A

Priyank Pande
Rashmi Ameriya
Amit Jain
Deepak Singhal

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers Il be and are hereby severally authorised to undertake
necessary steps and to do all such things as may be required including to further delegate powers to one
or more employees of the Company, to finalize the documents required for the creation, satisfaction and
vacation of charges related to NCDs (if required) and to file the requisite forms for registration/vacation
of the charges, return of allotment, offer letter, and record of private placement offers, with the Registrar
of Companies and with respect to any mortgage of land, to register it with the relevant Sub Registrar, and
to use any external consultant approved by the Authorised Officers | for the same.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers Il be and are hereby severally authorised, to list the
NCDs with BSE/ NSE in compliance with the listing requirements and to do all other things related
thereto, to file or execute with any authority, including the BSE, the NSE, the National Security Depository
Limited (“NSDL”), the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”), and/ or any other entity, all or
any such documents as may be required to complete the process of issuance, and/ or listing of the NCDs
in dematerialized form, to settle and make payments under the NCDs, to pay any stamp duty related to
the NCDs, to take necessary steps, including, due diligence of applications for subscribing to the NCDs,
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settlement, payment and execution of all other document(s), paper(s), and application(s) as may be
required, and to do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or incidental to the foregoing.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers Il be and are hereby severally authorised, to do all other
things related filing or execution with any authority, including the BSE, the NSE, the National Security
Depository Limited (“NSDL”), the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”), and/ or any other
entity, all or any such documents as may be required to complete the process of allotment (including e-
allotment) of the NCDs in dematerialized form.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers | be and are hereby authorised to, to the extent that
the limits prescribed for the issuance of NCDs pursuant to this resolution of the Board have not been
utilised, revalidate the present approval of the Board for such further period or periods as may be
required, including for the purposes of compliance with applicable law and/ or regulations of the RBI.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT officers as mentioned in Authorization Table 1, acting any two jointly, are
authorised to modify the list of person(s) in Authorization Table 3, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or the Company Secretary be and is hereby severally
authorised to issue notice to convene an extra ordinary general meeting of the shareholders of the
Company to approve by way of a special resolution an issuance of the NCDs if required, in accordance
with applicable law.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or the Company Secretary be and is hereby severally
authorised to make statutory and/ or regulatory filings for the issuance of the NCDs as contemplated
herein.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors, Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) the Chief Financial
officer (CFO) and/ or the Company Secretary (CS) of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised
to certify a copy of the foregoing resolutions as true.”

Certified to be true copy
For Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Digitally signed
RAKESH by RAKESH KAUL

Date: 2023.08.03
KAUL 44530 20530
Rakesh Kaul
CEO & WTD
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CTL/23-24/03287 (Annexure Il A)

DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE TO BE GIVEN BY THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE AT THE TIME OF FILING THE
DRAFT OFFER DOCUMENT OR PRIVATE PLACEMENT MEMORANDUM/ INFORMATION MEMORANDUM
(Applicable for Secured and Unsecured Issuances)

To,

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, 5 Floor, Plot C/1, G Block,
Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sir / Madam,

SUB: ISSUE OF UP TO 6,500 (SIX THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED) SENIOR, RATED, SECURED, TAXABLE,
LISTED, REDEEMABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES BEARING A FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/-
(INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH AGGREGATING TO INR 65,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES
SIXTY FIVE CRORES ONLY) INCLUDING A BASE ISSUE UP TO 4,000 (FOUR THOUSAND) SENIOR,
RATED, SECURED, TAXABLE, LISTED, REDEEMABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES BEARING A
FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY) EACH, AGGREGATING TO INR
40,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES FORTY CRORES ONLY) AND A GREEN SHOE OPTION OF ISSUING UP
TO 2,500 (TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED) SENIOR, RATED, SECURED, TAXABLE, LISTED,
REDEEMABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES BEARING A FACE VALUE OF INR 1,00,000/-
(INDIAN RUPEES ONE LAKH ONLY) AGGREGATING TO INR 25,00,00,000/- (INDIAN RUPEES TWENTY
FIVE CRORES ONLY), ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS BY CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED.

We, the debenture trustee(s) to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue state as follows:

1) We have examined documents pertaining to the said issue and other such relevant documents,
reports and certifications.

2) On the basis of such examination and of the discussions with the Issuer, its directors and other
officers, other agencies and on independent verification of the various relevant documents, reports

and certifications:

We confirm that:

a) The Issuer has made adequate provisions for and/or has taken steps to provide for adequate
security for the debt securities to be issued and listed.

b) The Issuer has obtained the permissions / consents necessary for creating security on the said
property(ies).

c) The Issuer has made all the relevant disclosures about the security and its continued obligations
towards the holders of debt securities.

d) Issuer has adequately disclosed all consents/ permissions required for creation of further charge
on assets in offer document or private placement memorandum/ information memorandum and
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all disclosures made in the offer document or private placement memorandum/ information
memorandum with respect to creation of security are in confirmation with the clauses of
debenture trustee agreement.

e) Issuer has given an undertaking that charge shall be created in favour of debenture trustee as per
terms of issue before filing of listing application.

f) Issuer has disclosed all covenants proposed to be included in debenture trust deed (including any
side letter, accelerated payment clause etc.), offer document or private placement
memorandum/ information memorandum and given an undertaking that debenture trust deed
would be executed before filing of listing application.

g) Alldisclosures made in the draft offer document or private placement memorandum/ information
memorandum with respect to the debt securities are true, fair and adequate to enable the
investors to make a well-informed decision as to the investment in the proposed issue.

We have satisfied ourselves about the ability of the Issuer to service the debt securities.

Place: Mumbai

Date: October 13, 2023

For Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
For OAYALY LY ;:’;??p‘mn CRLE LIS

‘U‘\J‘yy?‘“ -

T ey

Ms. Kalyani Pandey
Compliance Officer
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Peer Review Board

{

The Institube of Charbered Accountants of India
New Delhi ._

This is to certify that the Peer Review of
M/s Brahmayya & Co
48, Masilamani ﬂ{pmf,.
Balaji Nagar, Royapettah,
Chennai-600014

FRN /Mem. Np. 0005115
(Name of PU, Address, FR No./M. No.)

has been carried out for the period
0L 2016-31.03.2019

pursuant to the Statement on Peer Review.
This Certificate shall be effective from 21-04-2021
and shall remain valid till 30-04-2024
Issued at New Delhi on 03-02-2021
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